Annual Report and Accounts
2006

At Schroders, asset management
is our only business. Our goals are
completely aligned with our clients’
– the creation of long-term value.
We manage £128.5 billion on behalf of institutional
and retail investors, financial institutions and high
net worth clients from around the world, invested in
a broad range of asset classes across equities, fixed
income and alternatives.
We employ more than 2,600 talented people worldwide
operating from 35 offices in 26 different countries
across Europe, the Americas and Asia Pacific, close to
the markets in which we invest and close to our clients.
Schroders has developed under stable ownership
for over 200 years and long-term thinking governs
our approach to investing, building client relationships
and growing our business.
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Highlights and results

1

Profit before tax
2005: £250.7m, £230.3m underlying†

Private Equity profit before tax
2005: £40.3m

£290.0m

£34.6m

Asset Management profit before tax
2005: £193.9m, £173.8m underlying†

Funds under management
31 December 2005: £122.5bn

£219.0m

£128.5bn

Private Banking profit before tax
2005: £6.3m, £6.0m underlying†

Total dividend per share
2005: 21.5 pence

£26.9m

25.0 pence

† The term ‘underlying’ denotes that the relevant 2005 comparative has been adjusted
to remove the impact of the one-off gain recorded in 2005 on the discontinuation of a
project to outsource the UK custody and portfolio accounting services. The effect of
this adjustment is to reduce profit before tax in 2005 by £20.4 million (split between
£20.1 million in the Asset Management segment and £0.3 million in Private Banking).

Chairman and Chief
Executive’s statement
We expected 2006 to be a year of
consolidation after four years of rapid growth
in profit and with a programme of investment
underway to position the firm for longer-term
growth. It is very pleasing therefore to report
another year of significantly higher profit,
a further increase in gross margins as we
pursue our strategy of focusing on higher
margin business, a major step forward
in Private Banking and two acquisitions
which extend our offering in alternative
investment areas.
Group profit before tax at £290.0 million
(2005: £250.7 million) was up 16 per cent.,
with underlying profit up 26 per cent.
excluding the one-off payment received
in 2005 for the termination of an
outsourcing contract.
Underlying Asset Management profit was up
26 per cent. to £219.0 million and underlying
Private Banking profit increased more than
four times to £26.9 million. Private Equity profit
was £34.6 million (2005: £40.3 million). Funds
under management ended the year up 5 per
cent. at £128.5 billion (2005: £122.5 billion).
Asset Management
Revenues and profit increased in Asset
Management as we concentrate on higher
margin products and sales channels.
New business won in Institutional came
in on average fees which were 31 per cent.
higher than the fees charged on business
lost, and we returned to growth in the higher
margin Retail channel with £3.8 billion of
net sales. Asset Management gross profit
margins moved up to 55 basis points (2005:
51 basis points).

Michael Miles, Chairman
Michael Dobson, Chief Executive

We had a very successful year in our Retail
business with a resumption of significant net
inflows after the hiatus of 2005. In European
equities, strong performance across a range
of products and a strengthened investment
team resulted in net inflows of £2.0 billion.
In the UK, Retail had a record year with net
inflows of £1.4 billion including sub-advisory
business, and our market share of net fund
flows from the independent intermediary
sector was 5 per cent., up sharply on 2005.
We also had net inflows in Retail in continental
Europe and Asia Pacific and in our first year in
the intermediary business in the US. Funds
under management in Retail ended the year
at £42.5 billion (2005: £36.0 billion).
Net outflows in Institutional were £8.0 billion
and included UK balanced mandates where
the industry continues to restructure. At the
same time we are seeing good flows into
‘new balanced’, our diversified growth offering
for institutional clients which encompasses
alternatives as well as traditional asset classes
and third party as well as Schroders products.
The largest institutional outflows were in
Japanese equities on the back of recent
weak returns after a long track record of
outperformance. We have taken steps to
address these performance issues but in the
short term we expect to see further outflows.
By contrast, we had net institutional inflows
into European equities of £1.1 billion. Funds
under management in Institutional ended the
year at £77.4 billion (2005: £78.7 billion).
Non-UK clients now account for 56 per cent.
of our assets under management, up from
43 per cent. five years ago, and we see
further excellent growth opportunities in
our international business. We have a highly
profitable and rapidly expanding business in
Latin America with assets under management

of £2.1 billion. We have one of the fastest
growing joint venture fund management
companies in China with our partner, Bank of
Communications, which has seen significant
net inflows not included in our net new
business flows because of our minority
(30 per cent.) position. In 2007, we plan to
open offices in Dubai to serve our expanding
base of Middle Eastern clients, and in India
to access the rapidly growing funds market.
NewFinance Capital (NFC), the funds of
hedge funds business we acquired in May
2006, has made good progress. We merged
our existing funds of hedge funds business
into NFC, assets under management now
total £1.9 billion, investment performance
has been strong and we are seeing a good
pipeline of new business opportunities.
At the end of 2006 we announced the
acquisition of Aareal Asset Management,
a continental European property business
with €1.9 billion under management for
institutional clients, which was successfully
completed at the end of February this year.
At a time when institutional clients are seeking
to broaden their exposure in Europe, this
opportunity represents a good strategic fit
with our existing Property business which
has £8.2 billion under management,
predominantly in the UK.
Private Banking
We saw a major advance in the contribution
from our Private Banking business in 2006.
With revenues up 33 per cent. to £98.5 million
and costs only marginally higher than in
2005, underlying profit increased sharply to
£26.9 million (2005: £6.0 million). Revenue
growth came from good increases in
investment management revenues in London
and Switzerland and significantly higher

banking fees in London. We are on target with
the planned move of our back office operations
to Zurich, which will lead to important
improvements in both client service and cost
effectiveness from the second half of 2007.
Private Banking now accounts for nearly
10 per cent. of total profit, a significant
increase on recent years as a result of a
distinctive offering for private clients drawing
on Schroders’ wide ranging investment
expertise and banking skills, a clear focus
on the UK and continental Europe from our
principal private banking offices in London,
Guernsey, Geneva and Zurich, and tight
control of costs. We expect the share of
total profit generated by Private Banking
to increase. Net new business in 2006
amounted to £0.4 billion and funds under
management ended the year at £8.6 billion
(2005: £7.8 billion).
Group
In 2006 we achieved total returns of
£107.6 million (2005: £86.8 million) on our
investment capital which totalled £789.0
million at the year end, an average return
of 14 per cent. (2005: 11 per cent.). Within
these returns, £75.7 million was reflected in
realised profits while the unrealised balance
of £31.9 million was added to shareholders’
equity, to be taken to profit as it is realised in
future years (2005: £84.8 million realised and
£2.0 million unrealised).
Investment capital is deployed in a variety of
forms. At year end, £145.6 million was held
in Schroder investment products, as part of
our active programme of seeding new funds
and strategies before taking them to market,
and £120.7 million was invested in a
diversified, low volatility portfolio of hedge
funds, managed by NewFinance Capital.

The majority of the balance was invested
in private equity (£168.2 million) and liquid
assets (£311.8 million).
We continue to believe that maintaining a
strong financial position is a key competitive
advantage and enables us to take a long-term
view in building our business.
Dividend
In the light of the underlying growth in profit in
2006, the Board is recommending an increased
final dividend of 17.5 pence per share payable
on 27 April 2007 to shareholders on the
register at 16 March 2007. This brings the
total dividend for the year to 25.0 pence per
share (2005: 21.5 pence per share).
The Board’s policy is to increase the dividend
progressively, in line with growth in profit.
Outlook
We have now achieved five years of
significant annual increases in profit to a level
not seen since the sale of the investment
banking business.
Schroders is well placed for further growth,
with a broadly diversified business by asset
class, by region and by client type. However,
we still need to improve in certain areas
and we will continue to focus on these and
invest for the future, most particularly in
adding to our talented group of people in
what is a highly competitive marketplace,
and in continuing to upgrade our information
technology and operations infrastructure.
Long term we see significant further
opportunities to grow organically in
institutional, retail and high net worth
channels, supplemented by complementary
acquisitions which strengthen our business.
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Our objective is to be a pre-eminent
provider of active asset management
services to institutional and retail
clients worldwide and in doing so
reward our shareholders by growing
returns on a sustainable basis over
the long term.
We believe we are strongly placed
to meet this objective.

In 2006, we generated
net inflows into European
equity strategies of

£3.3bn

Schroders is a leading global, independent
asset management company, with over two
hundred years of experience in the world’s
financial markets.
We serve institutional, retail and high
net worth clients with a broad range of
investment products.
Our business proposition is underpinned
by some key beliefs:
That the interplay between market
economics and long-term trends in
demographics, investments and savings
offers interesting opportunities and
exciting growth prospects for the asset
management industry;

short-term deposits. Longer-term savings are
generally held in equities, fixed income and
‘alternative’ investments. While we do manage
short-term savings for our clients, Schroders’
principal role is to enable savers to meet their
investment goals on longer-term savings.
We operate across a number of
different client segments
Our core skills in devising, producing and
delivering products for clients across the full
range of asset management activities allow
us to meet the needs of a broad spectrum
of clients.
We group these clients into three main
categories reflecting the current structure
of the savings industry:

That our exclusive focus on asset
management minimises conflicts of
interest and aligns our objectives with
our clients’ objectives.

Institutional – where we manage assets,
in pooled or segregated form, on behalf
of large corporate, local authority, central
government and charitable entities, including
both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension funds. Schroders has a long
history in this market with Institutional funds
under management accounting for more
than 60 per cent. of our total funds under
management.

Schroders’ role is to help clients
with their savings
Savings have a critical role in the global
economy, both as a store of wealth and as
a source of financial capital for industry and
commerce. Savings are controlled both by
institutions (governments, charitable bodies,
commercial organisations) and by private
individuals and are accumulated to meet a
variety of different needs. The majority of
these savings are temporary in nature and
are held in the form of bank accounts and

Retail – where we manage assets on behalf
of individuals via mutual funds and investment
trusts, delivered in a variety of user-friendly
forms. This business has become increasingly
important in recent years and accounts for
33 per cent. of total funds under management.
It uses similar investment disciplines to our
institutional business, with a greater emphasis
on short-term performance and products with
higher risk/reward characteristics. We have
developed strong relationships with financial
intermediaries, from local banks and financial

That our research-based approach allows
us to identify and exploit inefficiencies
inherent in the marketplace, using a
disciplined investment process to add
value to client assets;

Our share of the UK retail market
increased with record gross sales of

£4.5bn

Schroders
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intermediaries to global banks and insurance
companies, through which we distribute a
range of Schroder branded or sub-advised
mutual funds around the globe.
Private Banking – where we manage assets
on behalf of high net worth individuals and
family offices. We provide a full range of
products including deposit-taking, cash
management, custody and execution
services, advisory and discretionary asset
management and specialised lending. Our
private bankers use input from our economics
and investment strategy teams, and use both
proprietary Schroder investment products
and external funds in structuring our clients’
portfolios.
We serve our clients in different ways but
there are aspects of our service that are
common to all
Clients come to us as a trusted manager
and because we offer the essential service
that they are looking for. At its most basic,
that means the right service at a competitive
price and with competitive performance. In a
highly competitive industry where clients have
many choices, we must exceed these basic
requirements and go further. We have to
excel in client service and we have to offer a
partnership of real value to the client over and
above the immediate product we are providing.

Our new balanced fund, Diversified
Growth, has won on average one new
institutional client a week since launch.

Institutional clients will often come to us
through their own advisor or consultant.
The assignments we are given are typically
highly specific and dovetail with their other
investments in a range of asset classes and
with the other managers they employ. We
are judged in relation to performance against
client objectives and the quality of the client
service and advice we provide.
In our Retail channel we work very closely with
banks, insurance companies or independent
financial advisors. These intermediaries advise
the ultimate client on meeting their financial
goals; we support them by providing the
information they need to judge the suitability
of our products.

and risk/reward characteristics. Our approach
is research-based using an extensive group
of analysts located around the world in the
markets in which we invest, combined with
state of the art computerised quantitative
research, modelling and risk management.
Fixed Income securities in all major currencies
including sovereign debt, high-grade corporate
bonds, high-yield instruments and emerging
market debt. Today’s fixed income markets
demand a deep knowledge of credit markets.
We have built a global credit team located on
the ground in Asia, Europe and America to
support our fixed income fund managers.

In Private Banking we advise wealthy
individuals directly. Our high net worth clients
are looking to maintain or grow their assets
after taking into account inflation, taxes, fees
and other charges. We work with them in
realising their goals using the full range of
Schroder capabilities combined with thirdparty products.

Alternative asset classes such as property,
commodities, private equity and hedge
funds. These asset classes and the trading
strategies associated with them are increasing
in popularity with our clients. Their attraction
is based on the opportunities that they offer
to provide new, uncorrelated sources of
returns for portfolio diversification purposes
and the prospect of generating superior risk
adjusted returns.

We provide our clients with the flexibility
to invest across a wide range of
products, including:
A range of Equity products covering most
regions, industry sectors, investment styles

The breadth of our product range is designed
to accommodate for a wide range of investor
needs and risk appetites. Our product range
extends from benchmark products with
limited risk, designed to deliver returns

moderately in excess of standard market
indices to ‘high alpha’ products designed
to exceed benchmarks by a greater margin
but with higher associated risk. We also
provide unconstrained products designed to
deliver returns independent of benchmarks
and absolute return products that focus on
wealth protection as well as growth.
We operate on a global scale
Operating in 26 countries, through 35 offices,
gives us a wide geographic coverage. This
allows us to access clients in the traditional
areas of the UK, Europe, US and Japan
where the demand for asset management
services is long established, and the fastgrowing savings pools in the emerging and
more recently developed economies in the
Middle East, Asia Pacific and Latin America.
To meet the challenge of successfully
delivering across a diverse range of
clients, products and geographies,
we are organised as:
Investment – where we manufacture
products to meet client needs.
All investment activities are managed
within a single division with a clear objective
of delivering performance which meets or
exceeds client objectives. This area contains
all our portfolio management, research and

dealing activities. It plays a key role in product
design, concentrating particularly on the
risk/reward features of each product and
is responsible for delivering reliable and
sustainable investment performance,
reflecting specific investment objectives.
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Distribution – which is responsible for
delivering products to institutional and
retail clients.
We look to build successful, long-term
relationships with clients across a wide spread
of locations and markets by understanding
their investment requirements and ensuring
that we provide suitable investment solutions.
This process is supported by sales and client
service teams who deliver across the full
range of strategies, market segments,
distribution channels, products and
geographies.
Private Banking – where we provide
services to wealthy individuals and families.
Private Banking comprises dedicated
relationship management and investment
functions, whilst our Private Banking Service
Centre provides the integrated infrastructure
resources to support this business.

* International Investment Centres
** Local Investment Operations
All offices provide sales and distribution services

Bermuda
Cayman Islands
Mexico City
New York*
Philadelphia**
Toronto

Buenos Aires**
Sáo Paulo**

Amsterdam
Copenhagen
Frankfurt
Geneva
Guernsey
Jersey

Lisbon
London*
Luxembourg
Madrid
Milan
Padua

Paris
Rome
Stockholm
Vienna
Zurich**

Beijing
Hong Kong**
Jakarta**
Melbourne
Seoul**

Shanghai **
Singapore*
Sydney**
Taipei
Tokyo**

In addition to these parts of the business,
we have two further groupings.
Infrastructure – which is responsible for the
operational platform and ensures quality
assurance, control and efficiency.
This area provides and maintains the
operating platform and services necessary to
deliver our products to clients whilst ensuring
that we meet the high standards of quality
assurance and control expected by our
clients, shareholders and other external
stakeholders such as regulatory bodies.
Its responsibilities range from Operations,
Information Technology, Human Resources
and Facilities to Finance, Tax, Legal, Risk
and Compliance. In addition, it manages
all of the Group’s major projects and
outsourcing arrangements.
Private Equity – where we concentrate
our interests in the specialist private
equity asset class.
This division delivers private equity fund
of funds solutions to our clients, as well as
maintaining an investment portfolio in the
Group’s current and legacy private equity
products. We also use our experience in
this area as a basis for offering administrative
services to third-party private equity funds.

Market performance in 2006
2006 saw our operating environment
affected by a number of economic and
market factors
As an asset manager with a majority of our
assets under management being held in
equities, our business has a high degree
of sensitivity to growth levels in the global
economy and the associated movements
in the world’s equity markets.
In 2006 equities strongly outperformed fixed
income, with the major world stock market
indices seeing rises across the year in local
currency terms. This produced positive
investment returns for our clients.
This positive market performance had a
number of key drivers, including:
• Prices within equity markets in 2006
reflecting a widely held view that neither
the US nor world economies would fall
into recession in 2007. This view was
underpinned by expectations for 2007
that inflation would stabilise around
current levels, US interest rates would
not rise dramatically (thereby maintaining
US consumer spending levels) and that
oil prices would fall from the peaks
seen in 2006;
• The ongoing strength of corporate earnings
growth: operating earnings in Standard &
Poors 500 companies were 21 per cent.
higher for Q3 2006 compared to Q3 2005;
• Company liquidity remained strong with
companies using the strength of their
balance sheets to make acquisitions
or return cash to shareholders.

The table below shows the movement in a
number of recognised stock market indices
over 2006*:
Local Stock markets
FTSE 100
S&P 500
Nikkei 225

10.7% increase
13.6% increase
6.9% increase

Broad Market Indices
MSCI World
MSCI Europe ex UK
MSCI Pacific

13.5% increase
18.9% increase
9.6% increase

Meanwhile, Alternatives fared well after a
shaky second quarter, while Fixed Income
markets were subdued.
The following tables show the movement in a
number of benchmarks for a number of these
other asset classes*:
Fixed Income Bonds:
10 year benchmark clean prices
UK Gilts
US Treasuries
Japan Treasuries
Alternatives
UK Property Index, Capital Growth
Credit Suisse/
Tremont Hedge Fund Index

5.6% decrease
3.6% decrease
1.1% decrease

12.4% increase
13.4% increase

* 31/12/06 close vs 31/12/05 close; in local currency terms.

Our Multi Manager Cautious
Portfolio has been best in class
since launch in 2005.

Revenue growth
631.3
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808.0

1,200
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800
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110.5

400

520.8

667.8

811.1

2005

2006

200

Revenues in Asset Management increased by
21 per cent., with growth in both Institutional
(19 per cent.) and Retail (23 per cent.). This
was driven by a combination of market
growth, growth in our retail business, higher
margins and increases in performance
fees earned.
Private Banking revenues increased by
33 per cent. against 2005. This increase
was across both the banking and asset
management areas of Private Banking.
Revenue from Private Equity decreased by
23 per cent. in the year. Our revenue potential
in this area remains strong with a net increase
of £42.8 million in unrealised gains recognised
in reserves in 2006, including £10 million in
relation to our investment in SVG Capital.

In a turbulent market we achieved
strong performance and low volatility
in our new Commodity fund.

0
2004
Other

Asset Management

Gross profit margins on average funds under
management have continued to grow. In
2006 they were 59bp (2005: 54bp) for Asset
Management and Private Banking combined.
Gross profit margins for Asset Management
were 55bp, an increase of 4bp from 2005.
Asset management – gross profit margins
46

51

55

2005

2006

56
54
52
Basis points

Our financial performance was
strong in 2006
Income and margins
Overall income performance in 2006 saw
a 20 per cent. growth in revenues and an
18 per cent. growth in gross profit compared
to 2005.
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Looking forwards into 2007 we continue to
expect slower growth in the US and world
economies without entering into recession.
The effect of this, plus some reduction in
interest rates by the US Federal Reserve,
should be positive for equity markets, even
allowing for a slowdown in the rate of
corporate earnings growth. The main threat
to this viewpoint would be a slowdown in
US consumption driven by reducing growth
levels or falling house prices.
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Costs
Whilst the overall cost base has grown in
the year, the ratio of total costs to operating
revenues has fallen to 73 per cent. in 2006
from 79 per cent. in 2005.
Overall compensation costs have risen this
year by £35.4 million (11 per cent.), reflecting
in part increased headcount during 2005
and 2006, however, the ratio of total
compensation costs to operating revenues
has reduced to 47 per cent. (2005: 51 per
cent.), below our target for 2006 of 49 per
cent. In the long term this ratio is targeted
to reduce further to 45 per cent.

Cost as percentage of operating revenue

Total costs: operating revenues ratio %
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Non-compensation

Non-compensation costs amounted to
26 per cent. of operating revenues in the
year. We have continued to invest in both
our product and infrastructure capabilities.

The primary drivers of increased noncompensation costs in Asset Management
during the year were marketing and
increased operational costs following the
termination of the JP Morgan outsourcing
contract, as well as spending on infrastructure
replacement projects.

We have maintained our levels
of investment performance
Funds performance

Private Banking costs increased as a result
of expenditure on a project to centralise
operations in Zurich. This project is expected to
lead to lower costs in the second half of 2007.

Institutional

Investment performance
Percentage of Institutional and Retail assets
above and below benchmark
3 years to 31 December 2005

Group costs were lower due to a decrease in
spending on financial systems against 2005
and reduced provisioning for vacant space in
our London offices, partially offset by higher
staff costs.
Profit before tax
Headline profit before tax grew strongly by
16 per cent. to £290 million. It increased by
26 per cent. on an underlying basis, excluding
the effect of the one-off payment received in
2005 on the discontinuation of the JP Morgan
outsourcing contract.
Profit after tax
Profit after tax also increased strongly, up
overall by 15 per cent. to £222 million, and
up 24 per cent. on an underlying basis.
The tax rate of 23 per cent. in 2006 is similar
to the tax rate for 2005. This is lower than the
current UK corporate tax rate of 30 per cent.
principally because of the level of profit arising
in low or nil tax jurisdictions.

39%

Retail

61%

35%

65%

3 years to 31 December 2006
Institutional

40%

Below benchmark

Retail

60%

32%

68%

Above benchmark

The segmental analysis of results is shown
in more detail in note 2 on pages 53 to 55.
Looking across our range of funds, 64 per
cent. of fund assets have performed above
their three-year benchmark in 2006,
compared to 63 per cent. in 2005.

2006 saw recognition of our success across asset classes, client segments and geographies.
Awards included:
Team
Opus Credit
Schroders Australia
UK Institutional
Schroders Argentina
Schroder Recovery Fund

Award
Best Performing Fund
of Hedge Funds (Specialist)
Australian Equities Fund Manager
Best Overall Fund Manager
Business Development
Team of the Year
Fund Manager of the Year 2006
UK All Companies Best Fund

We continue to enrich our product range
We have launched a number of successful
funds in 2006, including:
• European Special Situations Fund
• BRIC (Brazil, Russia, India, China) Fund
• Diversified Growth Fund
• Sterling Broad Market Fund
• Agricultural Commodities Fund
• European Real Estate Fund of Funds
During 2006 we built up the life assurance
company established in 2005 to help meet
the demands of the defined contributions
market in the UK. As at 31 December 2006
this company was responsible for over
£1.5 billion of funds under management.
Our acquisition during the year of NewFinance
Capital enhanced our capabilities in the hedge
funds of funds product area.
We announced during the year the intended
acquisition of Aareal Asset Management.
This acquisition, which completed in February
2007, extends our coverage of the property
sector across continental Europe.

Sponsor
Hedge Fund Review’s
European Hedge Funds Awards 2006
Australian Fund Manager Awards 2006
Financial News Awards 2006
Standard & Poor’s
Moneywise Fund Awards

Sales
Sales to Retail clients saw net inflows of
£3.8 billion (2005: net inflows of £nil) with
strong sales performance in UK and European
retail products.
Sales to Institutional clients saw net outflows
of £8.0 billion (2005: net outflows of £5.9 billion)
with the main outflows in UK balanced
mandates and Japanese equities.
Private Banking achieved net sales inflows
of £0.4 billion (2005: £0.6 billion).
Net new business for the year was a net
outflow of £3.8 billion (2005: net outflow of
£5.3 billion).
The estimated annualised revenue effect of
net new business in the year is an increase
of £28.9 million.
The profits we generated were used
in a number of ways
We distributed funds to shareholders
£120 million of the funds earned in the year
were distributed to shareholders via the
payment of dividends and the repurchase
of our own shares.

Our Global Quantitative Equity
product achieved its 7th consecutive
year of out-performance*.

* Schroder Global Quantitative Core Composite
relative to MSCI World NDR
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The dividends declared and paid in 2006,
being the final dividend for 2005 and the
interim dividend for 2006, came to 22 pence
per share or £63.4 million, an increase of
£3.9 million on 2005. Share buybacks net
of inflows from the exercise of share options
totalled £56.5 million in the year.
A final dividend of 17.5 pence per share or
£49.7 million has been recommended.
We invested in organic growth
• We are continually looking at ways of
improving our product offering, investing
in our people and increasing operational
efficiency. During the year we increased
average headcount across the business
by 163 as well as spending £42 million on
infrastructure projects.
We invested in acquisitions
• In 2006 we acquired NewFinance Capital,

a London-based manager of funds of
hedge funds, for an initial consideration
of £57.4 million. This added £1.4 billion
of funds under management at acquisition.
The business was amalgamated with our
existing funds of hedge funds business
so as to ensure a consistent level of
institutional quality for our clients. Since the
acquisition our revenues in this area have
seen a strong increase and funds under
management ended the year at £1.9 billion.
• In December 2006 we announced the

purchase of Aareal Asset Management
GmbH (‘AAM’) and related companies,
a pan-European property asset manager
based in Germany. AAM had assets
under management of €1.9 billion as at

Our Emerging Markets equity team
increased assets under management
by 83 per cent. to

£4.8bn

September 2006, managing seven property
funds across European markets. This
acquisition, which provides the platform
to extend our successful UK property
business across Continental Europe,
completed on 28 February 2007.
We maintained our pool of working
and investment capital
Schroders has a substantial pool of capital to
support the business, derived from retained
earnings and the proceeds from the sale of
its investment banking business in April 2000,
divided between:
Regulatory and working capital –
£654 million (2005: £463 million)
This represents the Group’s investment in
the underlying operating companies and
the capital required for the day to day
management of the business together with
retained profits awaiting distribution to the
Group holding companies. The increase in
the year is made up of:
Increase in regulatory capital
Increase in retained profits
Effect of new business
Other
Total

£29m
£54m
£64m
£44m
£191m

Investment capital – made up of:
Liquid funds – £312 million (2005: £412 million)
The lower risk tranche of investment capital,
designed to give flexibility to react to the
changing requirements on the business. This
is managed against a target return of LIBOR.
The return on these assets in the year was
4.3 per cent. (2005: 4.3 per cent.).

Other investment capital – £477 million
(2005: £468 million)
This comprises investments to support
existing products and businesses via shortterm seed capital investments as well as
longer-term investments in hedge, property
and private equity funds. These are managed
against limits defined for each type of
investment. The return for the year on these
investments reflected in the income statement
was 15.8 per cent. (2005: 17.3 per cent.).
In addition, unrealised profits from this area
added a net £32 million to shareholders’
equity in 2006 (2005: £2 million).
The strength of our capital position not only
enables us to maintain our credit ratings but
also provides our clients and investors with
continued confidence in the resilience of our
business over the long term and gives us the
flexibility to consider acquisition opportunities
as they become available.
We are a People Business
Our employees continue to be the most
important asset of the Group. We have great
talent throughout Schroders and it remains
a priority for us to develop, manage and retain
this talent in order to deliver our potential as
an organisation. Schroders is a place where
talented professionals can develop their skills
and experience throughout a rewarding and
challenging career.
We aim to recruit and retain outstanding
people and we invest in their professional
and personal development. Our recruitment,
performance review and development
planning processes are designed to find,
train and motivate people to achieve the
best results for Schroders and for our clients.

We employ more than 2,600 people in five
continents and our aim is to be an employer
of choice wherever we operate. For us,
this means ensuring that our employees
understand the strategic aims and objectives
of the Group and are clear about their role in
achieving them. It also means that we work
to ensure that employee policies and
treatment reflect current legislation and
best practice within each of the countries
in which we operate.

concentrated in a few key centres – London,
Singapore, Luxembourg and Switzerland.
This ensures a wide reach across the globe
while delivering economies of scale in both
front and middle offices and the associated
operations and administration platforms.

In 2006 we focused on the identification
and development of our talented people at
all levels of Schroders. Initiatives included:

We continue to invest in our infrastructure
to roll out the Target Operating Model (TOM)
defined in 2005 at the time of the termination
of our outsourcing arrangements with JP
Morgan, which required the renewal of a
number of the core components of our
systems architecture as well as enhanced
process automation.

• Establishing a clear framework of

competencies to underpin all performance
management and development activities;
• Making available a broad range of training
courses to build the competencies
identified;
• Delivering intensive development
programmes for our most talented people
including observation, feedback, coaching
and personal development plans.
Our infrastructure is continually reviewed
against the needs of our business
Our organisational model is designed
to ensure efficiency across the business.
Our unified investment function allows
the sharing of investment and research
excellence and disciplines across the
organisation, and ensures a common
understanding of best practice.
We have three key international investment
centres located in the UK, US and Singapore.
Our administrative systems are similarly

NewFinance Capital’s Opus Credit
Fund won ‘Best Performing Fund
of Hedge Funds (Specialist)’ at the
Hedge Fund Review’s European
Hedge Funds Awards 2006.

The Schroders brand, supported by subbranding as appropriate, is used in all our
product areas and geographies and is
recognised across the industry.

Implementation of the TOM commenced
during 2006, the major project being the
replacement of our existing portfolio systems
with a single Book of Records, which will
support all aspects of our investment
business, from portfolio accounting to client
reporting. This strategic solution is expected
to take three years to implement and will
provide a platform capable of supporting
Schroders’ business development across
the next 10-15 years.
Other projects in the pipeline include
enhancing performance measurement and
attribution analysis, automating reconciliation
processes, streamlining the flow of data
between systems and enhancing our
derivatives capabilities.
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Another major project is the migration
of the local support for our London and
Guernsey based Private Banks to Zurich.
This is expected to complete during the first
half of 2007 and will deliver an integrated
service centre for Private Banking, reducing
complexities in the operating platform,
increasing automation and raising
business efficiency.
Across our business we are seeing
a number of long-term changes
Key global demographic trends are changing
the outlook for savings and therefore the
long-term outlook for Schroders.
• In the major western economies alone

average life expectancy has increased
by over 10 per cent. in the period 1960
to 2005, with further increases expected.
Taking a retirement age of 65, life
expectancy post-retirement has nearly
tripled in this period.
• Birth rates are falling across the major
western economies. Allied to increased
life spans this will dramatically increase
the ratio of non-working age individuals
to those of working age (20-65) in the
next 30-40 years.
Increased life expectancy will require savers
to accumulate even more assets before
retirement in order to generate income that
will last them through their retirement years.
At the same time reduced birth rates will
decrease the supply of new workers to help

fund longer-living retirees. This will have a
major impact on the cost of state-provided
pensions, and suggests that few individuals
in developed economies will be able to rely
solely on government pension schemes to
fund their retirement.

These people will want to build up enough
capital to support them in retirement and will
increasingly require investment solutions that
are not only tailored to match their risk/return
profiles now, but can potentially adapt to their
profiles as they change over time.

At the same time as feeling the impact of the
prospective increase in the longevity of their
members, the weak equity markets in 20002003 and changes in accounting practices
have left many company defined benefit
pension schemes under-funded and exposed
to risks they find difficult to control. Many
company schemes have been closed to new
members and others have ceased altogether
to provide benefits.

Additionally, retail investors in the postretirement phase will control an increasing
proportion of total savings. If savings products
are required to provide individuals with
the ability to use their savings to fund a
comfortable retirement, then reliable capital
growth pre-retirement and income and capital
preservation post-retirement will be key
features.

Unable, therefore, to rely on the state or their
employers to provide adequate earningsrelated defined benefit pensions for them
in retirement, many of today’s workers are
increasingly obliged to take personal
responsibility for their savings through
defined contribution systems.
These changes have significant implications
for the nature of both institutional and retail
savings offerings going forwards.
Long-term trends in savings offer
a number of opportunities
In our view, the pre-retirement market for
retail investing will contain a growing number
of individuals who have been placed at the
centre of the decision-making process.

Our US Smaller Companies fund is
5 star rated by Morningstar and has
performed in the top 20 per cent. of
its peer group over three years.

Parallel developments are appearing already
in the residual defined benefit portion of the
institutional market, where trustees are
showing a greater desire for products which
match their liabilities and give them greater
certainty over required funding levels,
reducing risk and volatility for their corporate
sponsors, rather than focusing purely on
long-term capital growth.
The market for retirement products is already
the largest driver of growth in financial services.
In Europe this market is worth an estimated
€43 billion in pre-tax profits to providers every
year, and it is projected to grow 10 per cent.
annually over the next five years.

We are well placed to take advantage
of these opportunities
We have expanded our product range, in
both Retail and Institutional, to give us an
offering that we believe meets the needs
of our current and future client base.
As well as equity and bond products, our
Retail product suite includes yield-based and
inflation plus products across fixed income,
property and equity as well as a range of retail
structured products. These products allow
individual investors greater exposure to a
more diversified product range and new
investment strategies, allowing them to
maximise their savings consistent with their
personal risk profiles. We have also been
working with intermediaries to enhance
the packaging of combined investments to
provide a range of lifestyle savings products
designed to suit different stages of life and
financial circumstances.
Our Institutional range has been extended
beyond traditional equity and bond single
focus funds to include products such as
the Diversified Growth Fund which provides
investment exposure to a range of asset
classes, including alternatives, in such a way
as to diversify asset class risk while enhancing
total expected return. Products such as
these, combined with a significant upgrade
in our derivatives capabilities, help us to meet
the growing demand for liability driven and
specialist products for pension fund trustees
and plan sponsors facing a new and
challenging environment.

In Asia, excluding Japan,
we generated gross sales of

£7.1bn

Looking forwards to 2007 our continuing
investment across the business will focus
on a number of areas.
In the Retail channel we plan to extend and
deepen our distributor relationships in a
number of geographies and sub-channels.
These include US intermediaries, bank
intermediaries in Japan, private bank
distributors in Asia Pacific and the retail
branch networks of bank distributors in
Continental Europe, whilst in the UK we
will focus on developing further the subadvisory channel. These initiatives are
intended to grow business volumes as well
as ensuring that, through the intermediaries
in these channels, we secure enduring
business relationships with end investors that
are less vulnerable to large-scale redemptions
driven by changes in asset allocation policy by
wholesale distributors.
In the Institutional channel, clients are looking
for increased exposure to alternative asset
classes – a demand we are well placed to
meet with our property, hedge fund,
commodity and private equity capabilities.
Our strength in a wide range of asset classes
plays well to the increasing market
requirement to manage long-term pension
liabilities within structured investment plans
combining fixed income, derivative and
diversified alpha (excess return) products.
Alongside these newer products, we continue
to see growth in demand for our services in
global equities and fixed income as well as
key regional asset classes such as European
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Equities. We are also looking to offer more
quantitative equity products to our institutional
clients, where our investment approach has
a proven track record of excess return over
many years and complements our
fundamental, research-driven active
management services.
We have a number of specific business
risks which we manage actively
As with any successful business we are
exposed to a range of risks. Some of them,
like the risks inherent in taking active
investment decisions on behalf of clients,
are the risks we are in business to take.
Our focus here is on managing risk rather
than eliminating it. Others, like regulatory
and compliance risk, are risks that we seek
actively to avoid.
We monitor performance across more than
20 company-wide risk categories throughout
the year. Risks are managed in a variety of
different ways, depending on the nature of
the risk and the areas potentially affected, to
ensure that wherever appropriate, their
impact is mitigated.
Our key risks include:
Employee risk
The increasing requirement for scarce,
specialist skills in our employees as our
product offering deepens and our
investment strategies move forward into
more complex areas.
• The increase in profits in recent years
has enabled us to provide competitive
compensation plans, with appropriate
deferred benefits, targeted at key staff.

• Setting clear objectives and measuring

success in the annual review process allow
us to clearly identify employee development
initiatives required to deal with our changing
environment.
• Additionally, in 2006 we have been
broadening the skills base in the company
via a programme of high-level technical
education for staff in Investment. This
programme is continuing through 2007.
Investment risk
The risk that poor investment decisions lead
to under-performance in funds and a resultant
reduction in our income and reputation.
• Individual fund performances and risk
profiles are monitored on a regular basis
through the year, allowing issues in these
areas to be tracked and remediated as
they emerge.
• Recognising that not all products will
perform all of the time, we offer a
diversified product set which reduces the
concentration of risk on the performance
of any one fund or asset class.
Project risk
Ineffective project implementation which
could lead to sub-optimal solutions being
delivered on our key projects.
• We have a dedicated Change
Management Team overseeing all major
projects, ensuring that a consistent
Group-wide rigour is brought to the
initiation, approval and monitoring of
such projects.
• We are not prepared to put projects into
live production until we believe that they
will deliver.

Year on year, assets under
management in Brazil more
than doubled.

Product risk
The ongoing desire to anticipate changing
client requirements by developing and
delivering new products needs to be
balanced with the existence of an already
complex product range with over 150
products and over 300 investment models.
• We are clear that the challenge of
dovetailing product development with
an agreed view of client needs requires
ongoing dialogue between the
Investment and Distribution divisions,
ensuring that the Group has a focused
policy in this area.
• We have a dedicated product
development team with clear product
approval procedures which combines
representation from Investment,
Distribution and Infrastructure.
Business continuity risk
Underpinning our whole proposition is the
need to ensure that in a global marketplace
we are able to continue to operate in difficult
conditions.
• Continuity planning is in place across the
business with clear identification of key
staff and their involvement in business
resumption plans, as well as regular testing
of communication plans.
• While the increase in the concentration
of global systems presents further risks,
additional resilience and contingency
arrangements are in place including the
relocation of the key computer servers
away from London.
• Group-wide insurance is held against
business interruptions that cause a loss
of revenue.

As an organisation the management of risk
is embedded in our corporate culture, in the
way we operate and the way we manage
all aspects of our business.
The senior management team, supported by
a number of central advisory and independent
review functions, takes the lead role in ensuring
that proper controls are in place across the
business to maintain the quality standards
expected by our clients, by our various
regulators across the globe and by ourselves.
Key to our model is a philosophy that
management by itself can only lead and
inform in this area. It is the responsibility of all
employees across the Group to ensure that
the control culture of Schroders is embedded
within our working practices and is central to
everything that we do.
Summing up Schroders in 2006
2006 was a year of strong performance where
we achieved 26 per cent. growth in underlying
profits, the second most profitable year in our
202-year history and the most profitable since
the sale of our investment banking operations
in 2000. We saw improved performance in
our core business areas with increased gross
margins in Asset Management and the
resumption of sales growth in our Retail
business, coupled with strong growth in
revenues and profits from banking and
asset management in Private Banking.
Our programme of investing in the business,
both organically and via acquisitions, will
continue in 2007 and we believe that the
Group is well positioned to meet the challenges
that the future will bring.
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Chairman
1. Michael Miles, OBE (70)
Chairman
(Chairman of the Nominations Committee),
was appointed as a non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Board on 1 January
2003. From 1958 to 1999 he worked for the
Swire Group, serving as chairman of the Swire
Group in Hong Kong and of Cathay Pacific
Airways from 1984 until 1988. He was
chairman of Johnson Matthey plc (1998 –
2006) and a non-executive director of BP plc
(1994 – 2006). He is also an adviser to the
board of John Swire & Sons Ltd, chairman of
BP Pension Trustees Ltd and was a governor
of Wellington College (1989 – 2005).

Executive Directors
2. Michael Dobson (54)
Chief Executive
joined the Board of Schroders as a nonexecutive Director in April 2001, and became
Chief Executive in November of that year.
From 1973 to 2000 he worked for Morgan
Grenfell and Deutsche Bank. He was chief
executive of Morgan Grenfell Group from
1989 to 1996 and was a member of the
Board of Managing Directors of Deutsche
Bank AG from 1996 until 2000. He is a
member of the investment committee and
chairman of the audit committee of the King’s
Fund, a member of the advisory committee
of the Staff Retirement Plan of the
International Monetary Fund and chairman
of the investment board of the Cambridge
University Endowment Fund.

3. Jonathan Asquith (50)
Chief Financial Officer
joined Schroders and was appointed to the
Board in January 2002, taking up his current
position of Chief Financial Officer in March
of that year. From December 2003 until
September 2006 he held the position of
Chairman of the Group’s Private Banking
division. He took on responsibility for the
Property division in September 2006.
From 1979 he worked for Morgan Grenfell
and was appointed as chief financial officer
of Deutsche Morgan Grenfell in 1995 and
chief operating officer in 1997. In 2001 he
joined Barclays Private Bank, where he was
head of UK private banking until his move
to Schroders.
4. Alan Brown (53)
Head of Investment
joined Schroders in 2005 and was appointed
to the Board in July of that year.
Between 1974 and 1995 he worked for
Morgan Grenfell, Posthorn Global Asset
Management and PanAgora Asset
Management before joining State Street
Global Advisors (‘SSgA’). He served initially
as managing director of the London office of
SSgA, and later as group chief investment
officer and vice chairman and executive vice
president of State Street Corporation.
He is chairman and treasurer of the
CERGE-EI US Foundation (Centre for
Economic Research and Graduate Education
– Economics Institute), an advisory council
member of the CFA Centre for Financial
Market Integrity and a member of the MSCI
Barra Editorial Advisory Board.

5. Massimo Tosato (52)
Head of Distribution
joined Schroders in 1995, became Global
Head of Retail in February 2001 and was
appointed to the Board in August of that
year. He became the Head of Distribution
in September 2003.
Between 1981 and 1992 he was a founding
partner and chief executive officer of
Cominvest SpA. From 1992 to 1995 he
was a partner and managing director of
Euromercantile SpA. From 1995 to 1999
he was responsible for Schroders’ asset
management activities in Italy and from 1999
to 2001 for continental Europe. He is a
member of the International Advisory Board
of Columbia Business School. From 2002
to 2005 he was an independent director
of Banca Nazionale del Lavoro. In March
2005 he became a board director of the
Parasol Unit Foundation for Contemporary
Art, London.

Non-executive Directors
6. Andrew Beeson (62)
Independent non-executive Director
(member of the Audit, Nominations and
Remuneration Committees), was appointed
a Director on 1 October 2004.
He was the founder and CEO of the Beeson
Gregory Group and subsequently chairman
of Evolution Group plc following its merger
with Beeson Gregory, before leaving in 2003.
He founded the City Group for Smaller
Companies in 1992 now known as QCA
(Quoted Company Alliance) and became
its first chairman.
Between 2001 and 2004 he was a director of
IP Group Plc and is currently a non-executive
director of Woolworths Group plc and Nelson
Bakewell Holdings Limited, is on the advisory
board of Armstrong Bonham Carter and is an
adviser to DataWind Inc.

1. Michael Miles

2. Michael Dobson

3. Jonathan Asquith

4. Alan Brown

5. Massimo Tosato

6. Andrew Beeson

7. Luc Bertrand (56)
Independent non-executive Director
(member of the Audit and Nominations
Committees), was appointed a Director on
1 March 2006.

Bank in 2004. She is a trustee of Henry
Smith’s Charity and of the Winston Churchill
Memorial Trust and is a member of the
advisory group to the chief executive of
Frogmore Property Company Ltd.

He is chairman of the executive committee
of the Belgian company, Ackermans & van
Haaren N.V. which he joined in 1985. He was
appointed managing director in 1990 and
became chairman of the executive committee
in 1996.

10. George W. Mallinckrodt, KBE (76)
President and non-executive Director
(member of the Nominations Committee),
joined Schroders in 1954, was appointed as a
Director in 1977 and served as Chairman from
1984 to 1995. He became President in 1995.

He started his career as a corporate financier
with Bankers Trust in 1974. Between 1976
and 1980 he held various overseas posts,
including positions in London and Amsterdam.
He is an independent director of ING Belgium
and Agridec N.V. He is also on the advisory
council of INSEAD Belgium.

He was a non-executive director of Siemens
Holdings plc between 1989 and 2000 and
was an adviser to Bain & Company and
chairman of the Council of the World
Economic Forum. He is vice-president of
the German-British Chamber of Industry
& Commerce.

8. Sir Peter Job (65)
Senior Independent Director
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Nominations Committee),
was appointed a Director on 29 February
2000 and was appointed Senior Independent
Director in November 2003.

11. Kevin Parry, FCA (45)
Independent non-executive Director
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committees), was
appointed a Director on 1 January 2003.

From 1991 to 2001 he was chief executive
of Reuters Group plc. He is a non-executive
director of Royal Dutch Shell plc and Tibco
Software Inc. He is also a member of the
supervisory board of Deutsche Bank AG and
the advisory board of Mathon Systems Inc.
9. Merlyn Lowther (53)
Independent non-executive Director
(member of the Audit and Nominations
Committees), was appointed a Director
on 1 April 2004.
She joined the Bank of England Economics
Division in 1975 and held various senior
management positions within the Bank
including personnel director from 1996 to
1998 and deputy chief cashier from 1991
to 1996. She was appointed Chief Cashier
in 1999, a post she held until leaving the

7. Luc Bertrand

10. George W. Mallinckrodt

He qualified as a chartered accountant
with KPMG in 1986 and became a partner at
the firm’s London office in 1994 and a senior
partner in 1998. He moved to Management
Consulting Group PLC in January 2000 as its
chief executive. He is deputy chairman of the
Royal Wanstead Children’s Foundation and a
non-executive adviser of Knight Frank LLP.
12. Bruno Schroder (74)
Non-executive Director
(member of the Nominations Committee),
from 1954 to 1955 he worked for Schroder
Gebrüder (Bank) in Hamburg and he joined
the Schroder Group in London in 1960
where he worked in the Commercial Banking
and Corporate Finance divisions of J. Henry
Schroder Wagg & Co Ltd, London. In 1963
he was appointed a Director of Schroders plc.
He is a director of a number of private
limited companies.

8. Sir Peter Job

11. Kevin Parry

9. Merlyn Lowther

12. Bruno Schroder
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Directors’ report
The Directors are pleased to present their
report for the year ended 31 December
2006. The information contained in the
statement from the Chairman and the Chief
Executive, the business review, the Directors’
profiles, the corporate governance and the
Nominations and Audit Committees’ reports,
risk management and internal control,
corporate and social responsibility and the
Directors’ responsibility statement forms
part of this Directors’ report.
Principal activities and business review
Schroders plc is the parent company of an
international asset management and private
banking group.
A review of the Group’s business during 2006
and likely future developments is contained in
the statement from the Chairman and the
Chief Executive and in the business review.
Results and dividends
The profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the parent company was
£221.3 million, compared to £191.3 million
for 2005. Dividends payable in respect of the
year and their total value are set out below:
Ordinary shares and
non-voting ordinary shares

Interim dividend 7.5p per
share (2005: 7.0p)
Recommended final dividend
17.5p per share (2005: 14.5p)
Total dividend 25p per share
(2005: 21.5p)

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

21.4

20.3

49.7

42.0

71.1

62.3

The final dividend, if approved by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on
27 April 2007 to shareholders on the register
on 16 March 2007.
Investments and disposals
On 21 February 2006 we announced that
we had signed an agreement to acquire
NewFinance Capital, a London-based
manager of funds of hedge funds, for a
consideration of $101 million with up to
a further $41 million contingent on certain
revenue targets being met, to be paid over a
four-year period. The acquisition completed
on 3 May 2006.

On 14 December 2006, Schroders plc
announced that it had reached agreement to
acquire interests representing 99.7 per cent.
of the share capital of Aareal Asset
Management GmbH and its subsidiaries
(‘AAM’), a pan-European property asset
manager based in Germany. Under the terms
of the agreement, Schroders paid €27.9
million (£18.8 million) in cash on completion
to Aareal Bank AG (‘Aareal’), the sole owner
of AAM. Schroders also acquired certain
investments at a cost of €23.8 million
(£16.0 million) from Aareal in the underlying
funds managed by AAM and may acquire
further investments managed by AAM for
up to €29.8 million (£20.1 million) in the
event that they are not sold by Aareal prior
to 31 March 2007. The net tangible assets
acquired are approximately €6.0 million
(£4.0 million), although at the date of this
report completion accounts had not yet
been finalised.
Other than in connection with seed capital
investments made in the ordinary course of
business, there were no other major
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiary
undertakings during the year.
Directors
The names and biographical details of the
Directors of the Company are given on pages
18 to 19. Luc Bertrand was appointed a
Director of the Company on 1 March 2006
and his appointment was approved
by shareholders at the 2006 Annual
General Meeting.
The Articles of Association require each
Director to retire from office not later than the
third Annual General Meeting following his or
her last election or re-election to the Board.
Merlyn Lowther is retiring from office in
accordance with the Articles and will offer
herself for re-election on this basis at the
Annual General Meeting.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association Michael Miles, George
Mallinckrodt and Bruno Schroder, who are all
over the age of 70, will retire from office at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and will
offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the service contracts or terms of
appointment, together with interests in the
Company’s shares, for those Directors in office
during the year, are shown in the remuneration
report on pages 28, 29, 31 and 32.
None of the Directors had an interest in
any contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries either during or at the end
of the year.
Capital structure
The Company’s share capital is comprised
of ordinary shares and non-voting ordinary
shares of £1 each. As at 31 December 2006,
226,022,400 ordinary and 67,853,473
non-voting ordinary shares were in issue,
representing 76.9 per cent. and 23.1 per cent.
respectively of the total issued share capital.
The non-voting ordinary share class was
introduced in 1986 to permit the operation
of an employee share option plan without
diluting the voting rights of ordinary
shareholders. Since then, non-voting ordinary
shares have been used in connection with
subsequent employee share and share option
plans. The non-voting ordinary shares carry
the same rights as ordinary shares except that
they do not confer the right to attend and vote
at any general meeting of the Company, and
that on a capitalisation issue they carry the
right to receive non-voting ordinary shares
rather than ordinary shares. During the year,
the Company issued 4,154,782 non-voting
ordinary shares as a result of the exercise of
awards under share and share options plans.
Since the year end a further 275,081 nonvoting ordinary shares have been issued
under these plans
The Directors are requesting approval at the
Annual General Meeting, for the reasons
explained in the notice of that meeting, for the
Directors to have for the first time a general
authority to make limited issues of non-voting
ordinary shares or to grant rights to subscribe
for, or convert securities into, non-voting
ordinary shares, in addition to issues of nonvoting ordinary shares under the Company’s
share and share option plans.

The Company does not intend that the issued
share capital should increase over the
medium term as a result of awards under
the share and share option plans described
in the remuneration report or as a result of the
issue of non-voting ordinary shares or the
grant of rights in respect of such shares under
the authority mentioned in the previous
paragraph. The Company therefore plans to
purchase an equivalent number of non-voting
ordinary shares to neutralise any dilutive effect
of issues of non-voting ordinary shares made
as a result of the share and share option plans
described in the remuneration report or issues
of shares or the grant of rights in respect of
shares under the authority referred to in the
previous paragraph if that authority is
approved at the Annual General Meeting.
In addition to purchasing non-voting
ordinary shares as described in the previous
paragraph, the Board is also seeking authority
at the Annual General Meeting on 24 April
2007 to make purchases of non-voting
ordinary shares when the Directors consider
such purchases to be otherwise appropriate.
Further information is given in the notice of
Annual General Meeting.

At its Annual General Meeting held on 26 April
2006, shareholders gave approval for the
Company to purchase up to 14,750,000
non-voting ordinary shares. In 2006, pursuant
to the Company’s policy to purchase nonvoting ordinary shares to neutralise any
dilutive effect of issuing such shares under
share and share option plans, 8,750,460
non-voting ordinary shares were repurchased
for a total consideration of £83,981,907, at an
average price excluding costs of £9.60 per
share, representing 12.9 per cent. of the
issued non-voting ordinary share capital
as at 31 December 2006. Since the year
end, a further 746,676 shares have been
purchased. All shares purchased were
cancelled. As at the date of this report there
were 67,381,878 non-voting ordinary shares
in issue.
Pursuant to authority given by shareholders
at the 2006 Annual General Meeting, the
Company bought back the 200 subscriber
shares in issue at a nominal price of one
penny each, for a total consideration of £2,
from Stephen Brooks and Graham Staples
and subsequently cancelled these shares on
31 May 2006. As explained in the 2006
Notice of Annual General Meeting, the
subscriber shares were bought back because
the share class was no longer required.

Substantial shareholdings
As at the date of this report, the Company has received notifications in accordance with the
FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5.1.2 R of the following interests in three per cent. or
more of the voting rights attaching to the Company’s issued share capital.
Voting rights attached to shares
Notifier

Class of
shares

Number
of shares
Direct

Number of
voting rights
Direct
Indirect

Vincitas Limited*
Veritas Limited*
Flavida Limited
Fervida Limited
Harris Associates L.P.

Ordinary
–
–
Ordinary
–
–
Ordinary
–
–
Ordinary
–
–
Ordinary 16,204,595 16,204,595

62,861,892
37,308,464
62,861,892
38,278,700
–

Percentage of
voting rights
Direct
Indirect

–
–
–
–
7.17

27.81
16.51
27.81
16.94
–

*Vincitas Limited and Veritas Limited act as trustees of certain settlements made by members of the Schroder Family.
The interests of Flavida Limited and Fervida Limited include interests in voting rights in respect of all the shares in which
Vincitas Limited and Veritas Limited are interested as trustees.
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Directors’ share interests
The interests of the Directors in the securities
of the Company can be found in the
remuneration report on pages 32 and 33.
Employees
Details of the Company’s employment
practices (including the employment of
disabled persons) can be found in the
corporate and social responsibility section
of the Directors’ report on page 40.
Charitable donations
The amount paid by Group companies to
charitable organisations during 2006 was
£616,000 (2005: £464,000), of which
£393,000 (2005: £271,000) was donated to
UK charities. Further information can be found
in the corporate and social responsibility
section. No political donations or
contributions were made or expenditure
incurred by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year (2005: nil).
Creditor payment policy
The Group’s policy and practice in the UK is
to agree the terms of payment with suppliers
at the time of contract and to make payment
in accordance with those terms subject to
satisfactory performance. The Group does
not follow any code or standard on payment
practice. At 31 December 2006 the amount
owed to the Group’s trade creditors in the UK
represented approximately 13 days’ average
purchases from suppliers (2005: 17 days).

Provision of information to auditors
So far as each of the Directors is aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware. Each of the
Directors has taken all steps that ought to
have been taken by him or her as a Director
in order to make himself or herself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company’s auditors are aware of
such information.
2007 Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at
31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA on
24 April 2007 at 11.30 a.m. Resolutions will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as auditors and to authorise the Directors to
fix their remuneration.
The notice of meeting also contains three
items of special business: a general authority
for the Directors to allot non-voting ordinary
shares or to grant rights to subscribe for, or
convert securities into, non-voting ordinary
shares; a general authority for the Company
to purchase its own non-voting ordinary
shares; and proposed amendments to the
Company’s Articles of Association. The
Board believes that each of the items of
special business and all of the other items of
business are in the interests of shareholders
and recommends them to shareholders
for approval.

Details of the special business and all the
other items of business to be dealt with at
the Annual General Meeting can be found
in the notice of meeting on pages 96 to 98.
Indemnification of Directors
The Company’s Articles of Association
currently include an automatic indemnity in
favour of its Directors and other officers (other
than auditors) in certain limited circumstances.
The proposed amendment to Article 146
which is to be considered by shareholders at
the Company’s 2007 Annual General Meeting
(details of which are set out in the notice of
Annual General Meeting on page 98) would
have the effect of removing this automatic
indemnity. If this amendment to Article 146
takes place, it is proposed that the Company
immediately grants specific indemnities by
way of deed to each of its Directors and its
Company Secretary in place of the automatic
indemnity. These specific indemnities would
relate to certain losses and liabilities which the
Directors and the Company Secretary may
incur to third parties in the course of acting
as Directors, or the Company Secretary, as
the case may be, of the Company or as
employees of the Company or of one of its
UK subsidiaries. The indemnities would be
uncapped in amount.
By Order of the Board
Graham Staples
Company Secretary
31 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QA
8 March 2007

Corporate governance report
This section of our Annual Report sets out our
approach to corporate governance in 2006.
In it you will find information on the Board,
how it operated, how it delegated its
responsibilities to the Executive team and
to the Board Committees, how those
Committees discharged their responsibilities
and how we evaluated the effectiveness of
the Board, the Committees and the Directors.
This report also discusses how we engaged
with our shareholders and how we
approached our corporate and social
responsibilities.
Corporate governance review 2006
This review explains our overall approach to
corporate governance, how we have applied
the principles of the 2003 Combined Code on
Corporate Governance, the extent to which
we have complied with the Code’s provisions
and an explanation of those areas where we
have not complied.
As one of the UK’s largest asset managers,
corporate governance is very important to
us. We are committed to business integrity,
high ethical values and professionalism
across all our activities. The Board of
Schroders plc supports the highest
standards of corporate governance.
In 2004 the Board adopted the Schroders
Governance Guidelines. These guidelines
form the basis for how the Board and the
Committees operate, what is expected of
Directors and how they discharge their duties.
The Guidelines, and all the other documents
mentioned in this Annual Report, are available
on the website at www.schroders.com, or
from the Company Secretary.
The role of the Board
The Board is accountable to shareholders
for the creation and delivery of strong,
sustainable financial performance and longterm shareholder value. The Board achieves
this through a combination of deciding on
issues itself, delegating responsibility to Board
Committees and delegating authority to the
Chief Executive. Certain matters can only be
decided by the Board. These are contained
in the ‘Schedule of Matters Reserved to the
Board’ which can be found on the website
and include consideration and approval of
such matters as:
• The Group’s strategy;
• Major acquisitions and disposals;
• Significant new business activities;
• The Annual Report and Accounts
and other financial statements; and
• The annual budget.

The composition of the Board
There are currently 12 Directors. In addition
to the Chairman there are four executive
Directors and seven non-executive Directors,
five of whom are considered by the Board to
be independent. Profiles of the Directors are
on pages 18 and 19.
Luc Bertrand joined the Board as a nonexecutive Director on 1 March 2006. There
were no other changes to the Board during
the year.
The Nominations Committee reviewed
the composition of the Board in 2006 and
recommended that the appointment of
an additional independent non-executive
Director should be considered. This search
is progressing with a view to the Board
making an appointment in 2007.
Chairman
The Chairman is Michael Miles. He is
responsible for leading the Board. His other
responsibilities are to ensure the effectiveness
of the Board, monitor and evaluate the
performance of the Chief Executive and
ensure there is appropriate dialogue with
our shareholders.
Chief Executive
The Chief Executive is Michael Dobson. He is
responsible for the executive management of
the business. This includes recommending to
the Board the Group’s strategy for building
shareholder value over the long term through
growth in profits.
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
are totally separate and each has a written
job description setting out their respective
responsibilities.
Senior Independent Director
The Senior Independent Director is
Sir Peter Job. He is available to shareholders
if they have concerns which have not or
cannot be resolved through discussion with
the Chairman or the executive Directors.
Sir Peter also chairs meetings of the nonexecutive Directors at which the performance
of the Chairman is reviewed.
Non-executive Directors
The Board considers that Andrew Beeson,
Luc Bertrand, Sir Peter Job, Merlyn Lowther
and Kevin Parry are independent nonexecutive Directors. None of the factors
implying a lack of independence, as set out
in the Combined Code, applies. George
Mallinckrodt and Bruno Schroder are also
non-executive Directors, but do not meet the
test of independence in the Combined Code.
However, the Board considers that both of
them bring valuable experience to Board
deliberations and that at all times they act
in the best interests of all shareholders.
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Time commitment
The Board is satisfied that the Chairman and
each of the non-executive Directors committed
sufficient time during 2006 to the fulfilment
of their duties as Directors of the Company.
During the year the Chairman stood down
as chairman of Johnson Matthey and as a
non-executive director of BP, his two principal
external commitments. None of the nonexecutive Directors has any conflict of interest
which has not been disclosed to the Board
in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association.
External non-executive directorships
The Board believes, in principle, in the benefit
of executive Directors and other employees
accepting non-executive directorships of
other companies in order to widen their
skills and knowledge for the benefit of the
Company. The Board has adopted a policy
on external appointments which is designed
to ensure that employees remain able to
discharge their responsibilities to the Group.
Directors and employees are usually
permitted to retain any fees paid in respect
of such appointments. Under the policy
executive Directors may not take on more
than one non-executive directorship of a
FTSE 100 company or any chairmanship
of such a company. None of the executive
Directors currently holds a directorship of
a FTSE 100 company.
To avoid potential conflicts of interest, nonexecutive Directors are expected to inform
the Chairman before taking up any additional
external appointments.
Board meetings
The Board held five meetings during 2006,
including a two day off-site meeting which
focused on the Group’s strategy. The Board
has a two year rolling plan of items for
discussion, agreed between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive. This plan is reviewed
and adapted regularly to ensure that all of
the matters reserved to the Board, as well
as other key issues, are discussed at the
appropriate time. At each Board meeting
the Chief Executive provided a review of the
business and its performance and the Chief
Financial Officer provided a detailed review
of the Group’s financial position. In 2006 the
range of subjects discussed included:
• The strategic development of the Group,
including people strategy;
• The Group’s financial results;
• The budget for 2007;
• The dividend;
• The Group’s capital;
• Our regional businesses in Asia, Europe
and the Americas;
• Our key business areas including
Investment, Distribution, Private Equity
and Private Banking;
• Our information technology and operational
platforms;
• Approval of the acquisitions of NewFinance
Capital and Aareal Asset Management; and
• Regulatory and governance issues.

Attendance at the Board meetings is set out
in the table below:

Michael Miles
Michael Dobson
Jonathan Asquith
Luc Bertrand
Alan Brown
Andrew Beeson
Sir Peter Job
Merlyn Lowther
George Mallinckrodt
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder
Massimo Tosato

Maximum
possible
attendance
5
5
5
4
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

Meetings
attended
5
5
5
4
5
5
5
5
4
5
5
5

Information to the Board
Before each Board meeting Directors
received comprehensive papers and reports
on the issues to be discussed at the meeting.
Senior executives below Board level also
attended meetings to make presentations on
their areas of responsibility. This gave the
Board the opportunity to have direct access
to executives below Board level. In addition
to Board papers, Directors were provided
with relevant information between meetings.
This included information on management
changes and the announcement of our
quarterly trading updates. Directors were
also sent copies of the minutes of the Group
Management Committee meetings, the
principal executive committee.
Support to the Board
The Board Secretary is responsible for
advising and supporting the Chairman and
the Board on corporate governance matters.
Directors have access through the Board
Secretary to independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense.
Insurance and indemnification
The Company maintains appropriate
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance.
Following a recent change in legislation the
Company will be putting forward a proposal
at the Annual General Meeting to make certain
amendments to its Articles of Association,
including in relation to the indemnification of
Directors and funding of their defence costs.
Further details are set out in the notice of
meeting on pages 97 and 98. If such
amendments are approved, it is also proposed
that the Company enters into specific deeds
of indemnity with each Director and the
Company Secretary, as explained on page 22.
Chairman’s Committee
Meetings of the Chairman and non-executive
Directors, usually without the executive
Directors present, are held prior to most
scheduled Board meetings. Four such
meetings were held in 2006 and matters
discussed included the evaluation of the
Board, the performance of the Chief
Executive, shareholder relations and
management succession. The Chief

Executive attended meetings at the invitation
of the Chairman. A further meeting of the
Chairman’s Committee was held to review the
performance of the Chairman. The Chairman
did not attend this meeting.
Delegated authorities
The Board has a formal schedule of matters
reserved to it, subject to which authority to
manage the business is delegated to the
Chief Executive. He in turn delegates authority
to the senior executive team which sits on the
Group Management Committee. This is
chaired by the Chief Executive and generally
meets monthly to oversee the strategic
management of the Group’s business.
The current members and their areas
of responsibility are set out below:
Michael Dobson
Jonathan Asquith
Alan Brown
Jamie Dorrien-Smith
Lester Gray
Philip Mallinckrodt
Markus Ruetimann
Massimo Tosato
Howard Trust

Chief Executive
Chief Financial Officer
Investment
Americas
Asia Pacific
Corporate Development and
Private Banking
Operations, IT and
Human Resources
Distribution
General Counsel

The Board delegates certain of its
responsibilities to its Remuneration,
Nominations and Audit Committees.
Summaries of the terms of reference of these
Committees are set out on pages 26, 34 and
35 respectively, together with reports on the
Committees’ activities during the year. The
Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees reported to the Board on the
matters considered, and any significant issues
that had arisen, at the next Board meeting
after their Committees had met. Meetings of
the Nominations Committee were held after
the conclusion of scheduled Board meetings.
All Directors received copies of the minutes
of all Committee meetings.
Board effectiveness
Evaluation
The Board, led by the Chairman, reviewed
during the year the effectiveness of the Board,
the principal Board Committees and individual
Directors. The Board considered alternative
evaluation methods and agreed that internal
evaluation using a Schroders-specific
questionnaire was the most appropriate
method this year. The responses to the
questionnaire were analysed and reviewed
with the Chairman. The Chairman also
discussed the effectiveness of the Board with
Directors on an individual basis. A report was
prepared on the findings of the evaluation
process and this was considered by the
whole Board at its meeting in February 2007.
The performance of the Chief Executive was
considered by the Chairman’s Committee.
The outcome was discussed by the Chairman
with the Chief Executive.

The non-executive Directors, led by Sir Peter
Job in his role as Senior Independent Director,
also assessed the performance of the
Chairman with input from the whole Board.
Sir Peter discussed with the Chairman the
outcome of this review.
Induction and updating of knowledge
All new Directors undertake an induction
programme on joining the Board. The aim of
this programme is to introduce new Directors
to the Group’s business, its operations and
its governance arrangements. The induction
programme includes meetings with senior
management, visits to offices, presentations
on key business areas and relevant
documentation. The Board receives
presentations on business and functional areas
and new business and strategic developments.
In addition, briefing sessions are held which
are open to all Directors. Topics covered in
2006 included the management of investment
risk, the Group’s property business and the
implications for Directors of the new
Companies Act.
Shareholder relations
Ongoing communication across the
Company’s shareholder base, including
institutional investors and private and
employee shareholders, is achieved mainly
through the publication of the annual and
interim reports and quarterly trading
updates, the announcement of significant
developments affecting the Group and the
Annual General Meeting. Corporate and
investor information, including webcasts
of the presentations of the interim and final
results made by the Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer and other senior
management are published on our website.
The Board as a whole is responsible for
ensuring that dialogue with shareholders
takes place. During the year the Chief
Executive, the Chief Financial Officer and
other senior executives conducted a series
of meetings with, and presentations to,
institutional investors, analysts and
prospective shareholders to review the
Group’s strategy and prospects and to
discuss corporate governance matters.
Over 30 such meetings were held in 2006.
The Chairman is also available to meet
institutional shareholders, as is the Senior
Independent Director. Feedback from
shareholders is available to the Board from
the Chairman, the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer.

The Annual General Meeting provides
shareholders with an opportunity to question
the Chairman and other Directors, including
the Chairmen of the Remuneration and Audit
Committees. The Chief Executive provided
shareholders at the 2006 meeting with a
review of the Group’s business in 2005. The
Annual Report and Accounts and the notice
of meeting are sent to shareholders at least
20 working days prior to the date of the
Annual General Meeting.
Compliance with Code Provisions
The Company complied with all of the
provisions of section 1 of the Combined Code
2003 throughout the year. There were only
two provisions of the entire Code with which
we did not comply fully. These were:
• Neither Bruno Schroder nor George
Mallinckrodt are considered independent
under the provisions of the Code.
Consequently, fewer than half (five) of the
members of the Board (excluding the
Chairman) comprised independent nonexecutive Directors. Bruno Schroder is a
representative of the principal shareholder
group and the Board considers that it is
appropriate for this group to be represented
on the Board. George Mallinckrodt is not
considered independent as he is a former
executive Director of the Company. The
Board considers that his business and
international experience are of great
value to the Board. The Board is looking
to appoint an additional independent
non-executive Director in 2007.
• Until he stood down at the end of March
2006, Michael Miles was also chairman
of Johnson Matthey plc. During that time
both Schroders and Johnson Matthey
were constituents of the FTSE 100 Index.
Michael Miles was appointed Chairman
of both companies before the provisions
of the Combined Code were introduced.
Michael Miles
Chairman
8 March 2007
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Remuneration report
This report describes the Group’s overall
remuneration policy and gives details of the
compensation arrangements for Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2006. It also
sets out the membership of the Remuneration
Committee and its role and remit. The report
has been prepared on behalf of the Board in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985
(as amended) and the Combined Code 2003.
Role of the Committee
The Committee’s role is to review and approve
the remuneration strategy and policies of the
Group including the policy for the Group’s
annual compensation review. It is also
responsible for determining the remuneration
of the executive Directors, and monitoring the
level and structure of remuneration for senior
management generally.
The full terms of reference of the Committee
are available on www.schroders.com or from
the Company Secretary.
Composition of the Committee
The current members of the Committee,
unchanged throughout 2006, are:
Sir Peter Job (Chairman)
Andrew Beeson
Kevin Parry
The Committee, which meets as often as
necessary to discharge its duties, met on
three occasions during 2006 and there was
full attendance at all meetings.
Other non-executive Directors as well as the
Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and
senior Human Resources executives attend
by invitation but they play no part in the
determination of their own remuneration
arrangements.
The Committee has appointed Hewitt Bacon
& Woodrow Limited, McLagan Partners Inc.
and New Bridge Street Consultants LLP
as its external advisers. New Bridge Street
Consultants LLP provided advice to the
Committee on equity incentive plans and
also provided advice to the Group on the
implementation of these plans. McLagan
Partners Inc. provided the Committee with an
interpretation of external market compensation
levels and practices and also provided
information and advice to management on the
external market. Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow
Limited provided advice to the Committee
and the Group on domestic and international
pensions issues, as well as acting as the
actuarial advisers to, and administrators of,
the UK pension scheme. McLagan Partners
Inc. attended one meeting of the Committee
during 2006.
Remuneration policy
The Group’s remuneration policy is to attract,
motivate and retain the talent the Group
needs in order to achieve its strategic
objectives. We structure the remuneration of
executive Directors in a manner which reflects
performance and leads to them accumulating
rights to shares in the Company and
exposure to the performance of Schroders
investment funds.

The Committee believes that the total
compensation package offered must reflect
the global competition for talent in an industry
in which successful people are particularly
mobile. The Group compensates its executive
Directors and other employees by balancing
fixed and variable compensation. Fixed
compensation, in the form of base salary,
pensions and other benefits, continues to
be low for our executive Directors relative
to companies in the FTSE 100 Index and
to our broader base of asset management
competitors. In years of strong performance,
however, variable compensation, in the form
of cash bonuses and deferred bonuses, can
be high.
Our policy is not to guarantee compensation
levels but to recognise that there will be times
when this forms part of the initial package
necessary to recruit senior employees.
No current executive Director has such a
guarantee.
The total remuneration expense for the
Group is based upon a ratio of the cost of
total compensation to a measure of core
net operating revenues. The Committee
determines the target aggregate ratio ahead
of the performance year. One factor
considered in setting the ratio was an analysis
of competitor ratios. At the end of each
financial year the Committee is advised of the
level of fixed compensation expense and then
approves the amount distributable as variable
compensation across the Group. The ratio of
total compensation costs to operating
revenues achieved in 2006 was 47 per cent.
Further details of this ratio are covered in the
business review on page 10.
It remains the Committee’s practice and
intention to grant share options sparingly,
mainly to assist in recruitment where
necessary.
Key developments
The Committee reviewed the remuneration
policy in 2006 and has made only minor
changes. In conducting this review the
Committee considered the guidelines of
investor bodies on policies and practices
in executive remuneration.

into the UK pension scheme being subject
to the statutory or notional earnings cap (see
note 4 on page 57).
Benefits
Executive Directors can participate in the
flexible benefits plan on the same basis as
other UK employees. Benefits entitlements,
including pension, for the executive Directors
are shown in the tables on pages 29 and 30.
In response to the pensions legislation that
came into effect in April 2006 in the UK,
employees who choose not to accrue
benefits in our pension scheme apart from life
assurance cover, due to the impact of the new
lifetime allowance, receive a taxable cash
allowance. In accordance with the ABI best
practice guidance this allowance is set at a
level to ensure that the cost impact to the
Company (including employer National
Insurance) is neutral.
Variable compensation
Discretionary bonus awards are delivered in
two forms: a cash bonus and a deferred
bonus. The deferral is mandatory and
delivered via the Equity Compensation Plan.
There are two types of Equity Compensation
Plan award: a share award and a fund award,
which are described more fully on page 27.
The bonus awards are determined with regard
to the performance of the individual and the
area or function of the business in which the
individual works or for which the individual is
responsible, the profitability of the Group and
the external market. Given our relatively low
levels of fixed compensation and the intent to
provide an effective financial incentive within
our highly competitive market place, the
Committee does not consider it appropriate
to set a cap on discretionary bonus awards at
the individual level. The Committee intends to
deliver exceptional rewards for outstanding
corporate and individual performance, but
within the constraint of a total compensation
costs to operating revenues ratio. In practice,
when determining the individual bonus awards
for the executive Directors, the Committee
take into account the following important
factors – Group profitability, investment
performance, growth in funds under
management and individual performance.

Developments since the last report include:
• the launch of our Share Incentive Plan to all

UK employees at the beginning of the year.
43 per cent. of UK employees have taken
the opportunity to participate; and
• the launch of a flexible benefits plan for

our UK employees to enable them to
choose benefits that suit their personal
circumstances and to increase
understanding among employees of the
value of the whole of their compensation
package.
Elements of the compensation package
Base salary
The base salary of executive Directors is
reviewed annually by the Committee. The
maximum limit of £200,000 has remained
unchanged for over six years. Base salary
is the only element of remuneration that is
pensionable, with the level of contribution

The balance between the fixed and variable
elements of the total compensation package
for the executive Directors as a whole is
summarised in the diagram below. Less
than 12 per cent. of their individual total
compensation was fixed, and slightly more
than half of the 2006 variable compensation
for each of the executive Directors in 2006 has
been deferred for three years on a mandatory
basis via the Equity Compensation Plan.
Executive Directors – total compensation
Fixed 8.7%
Variable – cash 44.5%
Variable – deferred 46.8%

Equity Compensation Plan 2000
Key employees receive deferred bonus awards under the Equity Compensation Plan on
terms designed to identify their interests with our shareholders and to retain their services
in the Group. The level of mandatory deferral is determined by the Committee in
accordance with a matrix that is agreed in advance of the annual compensation review.
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Share awards
Share awards can be granted over either ordinary or non-voting ordinary shares in the
Company and are normally structured as rights to acquire shares at nil cost. Historically
awards under this Plan were made over non-voting ordinary shares. As a result of a
resolution approved at the 2006 Annual General Meeting share awards for 2005
and 2006 are in respect of ordinary shares.
If a participant resigns before the three years have elapsed then the following forfeiture
provisions apply:
Completed years of service from date of award
Percentage of share award forfeited

Less than 1
100%

≥1 and <2
72%

≥2 and <3
44%

3
0%

During the deferral period these awards do not attract dividends. To the extent that
the employee chooses to leave share awards within the Equity Compensation Plan
for a further two years after vesting, the employee is rewarded with additional shares
of 11.1 per cent. of the number of shares which vest at the third anniversary. This
compensates for dividends foregone during this period.
Fund awards
Fund awards are notional investments in a range of Schroder investment funds and can be
granted by the Committee as an alternative to share awards. They give holders a personal
interest in the performance of our funds. Fund awards have a three-year vesting period, with
no option to extend, and have the following forfeiture provisions in the event of resignation:
Completed years of service from date of award
Percentage of fund award forfeited

Less than 1
100%

≥1 and <2
66.6%

≥2 and <3
33.3%

3
0%

These deferred awards will be re-valued in line with the performance of the selected
products and will be paid out in cash at the end of the deferral period.
In 2006 the first £60,000 of the deferred bonus award was delivered in share awards
and any balance, above a minimum level, was delivered equally in share awards and
fund awards. In overseas locations where it was not possible to deliver fund awards the
deferred bonus award was delivered solely in the form of share awards.
Equity Compensation Plan awards are not subject to further performance conditions
as they are considered as already having been earned by reference to performance.
Share Option Plan 2000
Under the Share Option Plan 2000, the Company has granted market value share
options over non-voting ordinary shares. Options usually become exercisable if the option
holder remains with the Group for at least three years and, for executive Directors, if the
performance target has been met at the third anniversary. Share options granted to other
employees have no performance conditions.
In line with market practice, the performance target is that the Company’s earnings per
share growth (defined as the earnings per ordinary share before any items considered
exceptional, as derived from the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts) must be at
least four per cent. per annum above the increase in the Retail Price Index over a threeyear period. There is no re-test if the target is not met after three years. This performance
target is a general condition and standard for each executive Director. New Bridge Street
Consultants LLP confirms the performance criteria calculations annually for the
Committee based on audited results.
Outstanding awards held by executive Directors under these Plans are disclosed in the
Directors’ rights to shares table on page 32.

Of the total variable compensation awarded
to all employees in the Group in 2006, the
proportion that was deferred amounted to
31.2 per cent.
The Company implemented in 2006, for the
first time, a Share Incentive Plan. Each of the
executive Directors and 538 other employees
joined the Plan, which is helping to broaden
the number of employee shareholders.

This graph shows the annual percentage change in the value over each financial year of £100
invested in Schroders plc on 31 December 2001 to 31 December 2006 compared to the value
of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index.
Total shareholder return
since 31 December 2001
40
30
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Total employees’ rights to ordinary and nonvoting ordinary shares in all of Schroders’
employee share plans, as a percentage of
the total ordinary and non-voting ordinary
shares in issue, were 7.2 per cent. as at
31 December 2006.
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Personal shareholding policy
In order to further align the interests of
our most senior employees with those of
shareholders, each of the executive Directors
and the other members of the Group
Management Committee is required, over
time, to acquire and retain a target holding
of Schroders’ shares, equivalent to 300 per
cent. of annual base salary.
Performance graph
The following performance graph shows
the Company’s total shareholder return
performance, comprising share price
movements plus the value of dividends
reinvested, compared with that of the
FTSE 100 Index. This index was chosen by
the Committee because it represents the
principal index in which the Company’s shares
were quoted throughout the majority of the
performance period and is still perceived
as the most relevant index.

Source: Datastream

–40
–50
Dec 01

Dec 02

Dec 03

Dec 04

Dec 05

Dec 06

Service contracts
The Committee’s general policy is that each executive Director should have a rolling contract
of employment with notice periods of six months on either side. When recruiting executive
Directors, the Committee’s policy is that contracts should not contain any provision for
compensation upon early termination and that the parties should rely on employment rights
conferred by law. In the event that compensation for early termination is payable, the
Committee’s policy is to seek to keep such compensation at an appropriate level.
The following table provides details of the current executive Directors’ service contracts:

Date of contract(s)

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson1
Jonathan Asquith
Alan Brown2
Massimo Tosato3

19 October 2001
12 November 2001
17 May 2005
27 July 2001 and 1 August 2001

Compensation
Notice
Notice provisions
Nature of period from period from
for early
contract
Company
Director termination

Rolling
Rolling
Rolling
Rolling

12 months
6 months
6 months
6 months

6 months
6 months
6 months
6 months

Note 1
None
None
Note 3

Notes
1
If Michael Dobson’s employment is terminated by the Company without cause he would be entitled to receive the
equivalent of one year’s compensation, calculated as the annual average of the aggregate of base salary, discretionary
cash bonus and awards under the Equity Compensation Plan received in the preceding three years.
2

Alan Brown had a potential entitlement to be compensated up to US$3 million if he suffered loss as a result of any claim
by his previous employer that he was in violation of certain restrictions expiring before the end of 2006. No such claim
was made in 2006.

3

Massimo Tosato’s contract dated 27 July 2001 relates to his UK duties and his contract dated 1 August 2001 relates to his
international duties. Upon early termination of these contracts he would be entitled to 12 months’ compensation (calculated
as base salary, discretionary cash bonus and any award under the Equity Compensation Plan for the previous year).

Executive Directors’ non-executive directorships
It is the Company’s policy to allow executive Directors to retain any fees earned from any
non-executive directorships they hold in other external organisations. No such fees were
earned during the year.
Non-executive Directors
Each non-executive Director has a letter of appointment in which both the non-executive
Director and the Company are required to give reasonable notice to terminate the appointment.
Non-executive Directors’ appointments are subject to the re-election requirements of the
Company’s Articles of Association and are without a fixed term. There are no specific contractual
provisions for non-executive Directors to receive compensation upon early termination.
The dates of the non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are as follows:
Michael Miles
Andrew Beeson
Luc Bertrand
Sir Peter Job
Merlyn Lowther
George Mallinckrodt
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder

17 December 2002
1 October 2004
20 February 2006
23 December 2002
4 March 2004
24 December 2002
16 December 2002
24 December 2002

Fees for the Chairman and other non-executive Directors are determined by the Board based
on market information supplied by New Bridge Street Consultants LLP, and in accordance with
the restrictions contained in the Company’s Articles of Association. Non-executive Directors
do not participate in decisions concerning their fees. Fees are reviewed annually, although it
is anticipated that, in the absence of any significant market movement, fees would remain
unchanged for two years.
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The fees were reviewed during 2006 and as a result of general movement in the market
certain changes have been made. With the exception of the fee for the Audit Committee
chairman which was increased during 2005 fees had last been increased in 2004. The
current and former annual fees payable are as follows:
Non-executive Directors’ fees

Current
£

Former
£

Board chairman
Board member
Audit Committee member
Audit Committee chairman*
Nominations Committee member
Nominations Committee chairman
Remuneration Committee member
Remuneration Committee chairman*

200,000
45,000
12,500
15,000
Nil
Nil
10,000
12,000

165,000
40,000
12,500
15,000
Nil
Nil
10,000
8,000

* In addition to the Committee membership fee.

The Senior Independent Director receives no additional fee.
Awards from the Group’s incentive plans are not made to non-executive Directors.
Directors’ remuneration in 2006
The following tables on pages 29 to 33 provide details of each of the Directors’ and former
Directors’ emoluments, pension entitlements, rights to fund awards, rights to shares and
share interests. In accordance with the Companies Act 1985, the tables on pages 29 to 33,
excluding the summary of deferred compensation table on page 31, have been audited by
the independent auditors.
Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments (not including any pension contributions, deferred fund awards and deferred
share awards on pages 30 to 32) of the Directors of the Company in respect of the period for
which they were in office in the relevant year, including their remuneration in respect of subsidiary
undertakings, comprised:
Salary
and fees
£’000
Executive Directors
Michael Dobson
(Chief Executive)
Jonathan Asquith
Alan Brown
Massimo Tosato

Other cash
payments 1
£’000

BenefitsAnnual
in-kind 2 cash bonus
£’000
£’000

2006
Total
£’000

2005
Total
£’000

200
200
200
200

46
24
34
11

7
2
–
34

2,217
1,042
1,142
1,382

2,470
1,268
1,376
1,627

1,764
762
614
1,278

183

–

1

–

184

166

100
65
46
63
55
80
70

7
–
–
–
–
–
4

6
–
–
–
–
–
1

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

113
65
46
63
55
80
75

111
63
–
58
53
75
73

Former executive Director

–

–

–

–

–

1,111

Former non-executive Director

–

–

–

–

–

15

1,462

126

51

5,783

7,422

6,143

Non-executive Directors
Michael Miles (Chairman)
George Mallinckrodt
(President)3
Andrew Beeson
Luc Bertrand4
Sir Peter Job
Merlyn Lowther
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder5

Total

Notes
1
Other cash payments comprise one or more of: cash allowance in lieu of a company car
and cash allowance in lieu of pension.
2

The benefits-in-kind provided to Directors comprise one or more of: private use of company chauffeur,
private use of taxis, life insurance and private healthcare.

3

George Mallinckrodt received an annual fee of £42,500 as a Director, a fee of £57,000 in respect of
his services as President of the Company, £7,000 of cash allowance and £6,000 in benefits-in-kind.

4

Luc Bertrand was appointed to the Board on 1 March 2006.

5

Bruno Schroder received an annual fee of £42,500 as a Director, a fee of £27,750 for his additional
services to the Company plus £1,000 in benefits-in-kind.
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Directors’ pension entitlements
Defined Benefit
The following table gives details of the accrued pension benefit at 31 December 2006 for
Directors who have participated in the defined benefits section of the UK Scheme during the
year to 31 December 2006. Further information concerning the Company’s pension schemes
is set out in note 4 in the Notes to the Accounts on pages 57 to 60.
Accrued
pension at
31 Dec
2005
£’000

Change in
accrued
pension
due to
inflation
£’000

Change in
accrued pension
excluding inflation
Transfer
Increase
value
£’000
£’000

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson1
Massimo Tosato

10
17

0
1

1
3

Non-executive Director
Bruno Schroder2

29

1

1

Accrued
pension at
31 Dec
2006
£’000

Transfer
value at
31 Dec
2005
£’000

Increase in
transfer
value
£’000

Transfer
value at
31 Dec
2006
£’000

9
54

11
21

147
224

35
100

182
324

17

31

360

18

378

The accrued pension represents the annual pension which each Director would be entitled to receive from normal retirement
age after leaving service. The accrued pension would be increased each year until it became payable in accordance with
statutory requirements.
The change in accrued pension represents the difference between the accrued pension at 31 December 2005 and
31 December 2006. This is broken down into inflationary increases and increases arising as a result of service for the year
concerned, postponement of retirement or any change in salary, where appropriate.
The transfer value represents the current capital sum which would be required, using demographic and financial
assumptions, to provide the accrued pension and ancillary benefits at the relevant date.The transfer values have been
calculated in a manner consistent with ‘Retirement Benefit Schemes – Transfer Values (GN11)’ published by the Institute
of Actuaries and the Faculty of Actuaries.
The accrued pension or transfer value shown above does not include any allowance for additional voluntary contributions
made by a Director.
1

Michael Dobson ceased further accrual in the Scheme on 31 March 2006 and in lieu of this he receives a taxable cash
payment of £34,467 per annum.

2

No contributions were paid by the Company during the year.

Defined Contribution
The following table gives details of the pension contributions paid or payable by the Company
into defined contribution arrangements for the year to 31 December 2006.

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson1
Jonathan Asquith2
Massimo Tosato
Former executive Director
Total
The contributions disclosed exclude any personal contributions made by a Director.
1

Michael Dobson ceased to have 13 per cent. of his base salary in excess of the notional earnings cap paid into a funded
approved retirement benefits scheme on 31 March 2006, and in lieu of this he receives a taxable cash payment of £11,882 per annum.

2

Jonathan Asquith ceased further accrual in the Scheme on 31 March 2006, and in lieu of this he receives a taxable cash payment
of £16,367 per annum.

2006
Employer
contributions
£’000

2005
Employer
contributions
£’000

12
105
60
–
177

13
18
60
7
98

Summary of the deferred compensation earned in respect of 2006
In respect of 2006 the executive Directors earned rights to deferred awards under the Equity
Compensation Plan. These awards, split between fund awards and share awards, are subject
to forfeiture and are not accessible for three years. They will vest in full on the third anniversary
of the grant date provided the Director continues to be employed within the Group, in line with
the rules of the Plan. Should the Director choose to leave the share awards within the Equity
Compensation Plan for a further two years, the Director would be rewarded with additional
shares of 11.1 per cent. of the number of shares which vested at the third anniversary of the
grant date, in lieu of dividends foregone.
Equity Compensation Plan
Share 2006 Total
2005 Total
awards
award
award
£’000
£’000
£’000
1

Fund
awards
£’000

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson
Jonathan Asquith
Alan Brown
Massimo Tosato
1

967
429
429
609

1,220
575
575
791

2,187
1,004
1,004
1,400

2,700
1,660
555
1,660

For further details in respect of the Equity Compensation Plan 2000 see box on page 27.

Further details in respect of the executive Directors’ awards and previous years’ awards are
shown in the following two tables:
Directors’ rights to fund awards
Fund awards are notional investments in a range of Schroders’ investment funds. These are
rights to deferred cash and do not give rise to any immediate entitlement on grant. The ‘rights
granted during year’ refer to awards made in respect of the 2005 performance year. ‘Rights
granted 8 March 2007’ were made in respect of the 2006 performance year. These rights are
subject to forfeiture and the deferred cash awards are not accessible for three years. They
become fully vested on the third anniversary of the grant date provided the Director continues
to be employed within the Group, in line with the rules of the Plan.
The executive Directors had the following rights to deferred cash awards, under the Equity
Compensation Plan.

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson

Jonathan Asquith

Alan Brown

Massimo Tosato

1

Rights
held as at
1 Jan
2006
£’000

Rights
granted
during
the year
£’000

Rights
held as at
31 Dec
2006
£’000

Rights
granted
8 Mar
2007
£’000

Vesting
date

100
–
–

–
1,200
–

100
1,200
–

–
–
967

6 March 2008
5 March 2009
7 March 2010

526
–
–

–
727
–

526
727
–

–
–
429

6 March 2008
5 March 2009
7 March 2010

–
–

225
–

225
–

–
429

5 March 2009
7 March 2010

500
–
–

–
727
–

500
727
–

–
–
609

6 March 2008
5 March 2009
7 March 2010

For further details in respect of the Equity Compensation Plan 2000 see box on page 27.
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Directors’ rights to shares
These rights to shares do not give rise to any immediate entitlement on grant. They are subject
to forfeiture and are not accessible for three years. They become fully vested on the third anniversary
of the grant date provided the Director continues to be employed within the Group, in line with
the rules of the respective plans.
The executive Directors had the following rights to ordinary and non-voting ordinary shares:

Held at
1 Jan
2006

Executive Directors
Michael Dobson

Jonathan Asquith

Alan Brown

Massimo Tosato

(2)
(2)
(2)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(4)
(4a)

250,000
150,000
500,000
352,186
502,386
305,499

(2)
(2)
(2)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(4)
(4a)

150,000
150,000
100,000
133,969
81,466
98,931

Held at
31 Dec
2006

Rights
granted
8 Mar
2007

Exercise
price of
outstanding
rights

250,000
150,000
500,000
352,186
502,386
305,499
146,162

146,162

150,000
150,000
100,000
133,969
81,466
98,931
90,877

90,877

32,154

£8.00
£5.41
£3.98
–
–
–
–

22 Apr 2005
6 Nov 2005
10 Mar 2006
10 Mar 2006
8 Mar 2007
7 Mar 2008
6 Mar 2009
8 Mar 2010

–
56,405

18,963
62,499
165,350
100,000
65,000
91,185
64,826
16,294
80,381
80,447
103,856

65,000
91,185
64,826

90,877

18,963
62,499
165,350
100,000
–
–
–
16,294
80,381
80,447
103,856
90,877

£8.22
£8.00
£8.00
£5.41
£3.98
£9.87
–
–
–
–
–
–
77,601

The market price of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2006 was £11.16 and the range during 2006 was £8.72 to £12.73.
The closing market price of the ordinary shares on 7 March 2007 was £11.32.
The market price of the non-voting ordinary shares at 31 December 2006 was £10.46 and the range during 2006 was £8.21 to £11.95.
(1)

Share Option Plan 1999. Exercise of these options is conditional upon achieving a performance target of earnings per share growth
of at least the Retail Price Index plus two per cent. per annum over a minimum five-year period. The performance target has been achieved.

(2)

Share Option Plan 2000. Exercise of these options is conditional upon achieving a performance target of earnings per share
growth of at least the Retail Price Index plus four per cent. per annum over a minimum three-year period. In respect of the
awards exercisable from 22 April 2005, 6 November 2005 and 9 December 2005 the performance target has been achieved.
More detail is available on page 27.

(2a) There were no performance conditions associated with these awards as Massimo Tosato was not an executive Director
at the time the awards were granted.
(3)

Equity Compensation Plan 2000. The figures shown above comprise the number of shares available on the third anniversary
plus additional shares of up to 11.1 per cent. assuming shares remain within the Plan until the fifth anniversary. Awards are
structured as nil-cost share awards over non-voting ordinary shares. Further detail is included in the box on page 27.

(4)

The number of rights granted in 2006 has been adjusted to reflect the approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting in April 2006, of the amendment to the Equity Compensation Plan 2000. This allowed for the conversion of the
rights over non-voting ordinary shares at £10.85 into rights over ordinary shares at £11.40.

(4a) Equity Compensation Plan 2000. The figures shown above comprise the number of shares available on the third anniversary
plus additional shares of up to 11.1 per cent. assuming shares remain within the Plan until the fifth anniversary. Awards are
structured as nil-cost share awards over ordinary shares.
(5)

9 Dec 2005 8 Dec 2012
10 Mar 2006 9 Mar 2013
12 Nov 2006 11 Nov 2011
10 Mar 2006 9 Mar 2013
8 Mar 2007 7 Mar 2014
7 Mar 2008 6 Mar 2015
6 Mar 2009 5 Mar 2016
8 Mar 2010 7 Mar 2017

56,405
32,154

The market prices on the dates the rights were exercised during 2006 were: £11.16 for the Equity Compensation Plan award
and £9.30 and £11.13 for the share option awards. The aggregate gain on rights exercised amounted to £1,184,000 of which
£723,000 relates to gains on the Equity Compensation Plan award and £461,000 relates to the share option awards.

Exercise dates
Earliest
Latest

£4.83
£3.98
£7.06
–
–
–
–
119,719

(4)
(4a)
(1)
(1)
(2)
(2)
(2)
(2a)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(3)
(4)
(4a)

Number of shares
Rights
Rights
granted
exercised
during
during
year
year5

21 Apr 2012
5 Nov 2012
9 Mar 2013
9 Mar 2013
7 Mar 2014
6 Mar 2015
5 Mar 2016
7 Mar 2017

6 Mar 2009 5 Mar 2016
8 Mar 2010 7 Mar 2017
7 May 2004
13 Mar 2005
22 Apr 2005
6 Nov 2005
10 Mar 2006
13 Mar 2006
13 Mar 2004
10 Mar 2005
10 Mar 2006
8 Mar 2007
7 Mar 2008
6 Mar 2009
8 Mar 2010

6 May 2009
12 Mar 2010
21 Apr 2012
5 Nov 2012
9 Mar 2013
12 Mar 2011
12 Mar 2011
9 Mar 2012
9 Mar 2013
7 Mar 2014
6 Mar 2015
5 Mar 2016
7 Mar 2017

Directors’ share interests
At 1 January 2006 (or date of appointment, if later) and at 31 December 2006, the Directors
listed had the following interests in shares in the Company:
31 Dec 2006
Non-voting
Ordinary
ordinary
shares
shares

Beneficial
Executive Directors
Michael Dobson
Jonathan Asquith
Alan Brown
Massimo Tosato
Non-executive Directors
Michael Miles
George Mallinckrodt
Andrew Beeson
Luc Bertrand
Sir Peter Job
Merlyn Lowther
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder
Non-beneficial
George Mallinckrodt
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder

1 Jan 2006
Non-voting
Ordinary
ordinary
shares
shares

2,243
278
278
1,243

561,105
–
–
–

2,000
–
–
1,000

561,105
–
–
–

5,000
30,000
–
–
–
1,000
5,000
6,353,655

–
507,226
15,000
–
–
–
–
59,310

5,000
30,000
–
–
–
1,000
5,000
6,353,655

–
507,226
15,000
–
–
–
–
59,310

213,631
333
64,800

–
–
16,200

213,631
333
64,800

–
–
16,200

Additionally, at 31 December 2006, the executive Directors were potential beneficiaries of the Schroders Employee Benefit
Trust, which held 6,610,454 non-voting ordinary shares (1 January 2006: 8,711,635) and 1,038,369 ordinary shares
(1 January 2006: Nil) on behalf of all non-US based employees. Their own rights to shares held within this Trust are set out
on page 32.
At 1 January 2006 Michael Dobson had a beneficial interest in £3,721,250 Schroders plc Floating Rate Unsecured Loan
Notes 2007 which were redeemed at par on 30 June 2006. During the year no Director held an interest in the shares or loan
stock of any subsidiary of the Company.
Since 31 December 2006 each of the executive Directors, Michael Dobson (32 shares), Jonathan Asquith (31 shares),
Alan Brown (31 shares) and Massimo Tosato (32 shares) acquired ordinary shares under the terms of the Schroders Share
Incentive Plan. There have been no other changes in the interests set out above between 31 December 2006 and the date
of this report.

A resolution to approve this report will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 24 April 2007.
Approved and signed on behalf of the Board
Sir Peter Job
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
8 March 2007
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Nominations committee report
In this section we set out the role of the
Nominations Committee, its membership
and what it considered during the year.
Role of the Committee
The Board has delegated to the Committee
responsibility for reviewing and proposing
appointments to the Board and for
recommending any other changes to the
composition of the Board or of the Board
Committees. The principal responsibilities
of the Committee include:
• reviewing the size and composition of
the Board;
• selecting candidates for appointment to
the Board to meet the desired composition;
• the procedure for the appointment
of new Directors to the Board; and
• ensuring succession plans are in place
for key Board members.
The full terms of reference of the Committee are
available on www.schroders.com or from the
Company Secretary at the registered office.
The composition of the Committee
The members of the Committee at the end
of 2006 were:
Michael Miles (Chairman)
Andrew Beeson
Luc Bertrand
Sir Peter Job
Merlyn Lowther
George Mallinckrodt
Kevin Parry
Bruno Schroder
Luc Bertrand joined the Committee on
1 March 2006 on his appointment to
the Board.

Report on the Committee’s activities
in 2006
Meetings and attendance
The Committee, which meets as often as
necessary to discharge its duties, met in
February and November. There was full
attendance by all members at both meetings.
Principal issues
The principal issues addressed during
2006 were:
• the appointment of Luc Bertrand as an
additional independent non-executive
Director; and
• the composition of the Board.
Following the Committee’s review of
the composition of the Board it was
recommended that a search for an additional
independent non-executive Director should
be instigated. This process has now
commenced and the Committee hopes that
a further appointment will be recommended
to the Board during 2007.
Support
The Committee receives information and
support from management and external
sources as necessary to enable it to carry
out its duties and responsibilities effectively.

Audit committee report
In this section we set out the role of the
Audit Committee, its membership and
what it considered during the year.
Role of the Committee
The Board has delegated to the Committee
responsibility for overseeing the financial
reporting and internal control of the Group and
for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s auditors. The main role
of the Committee is to encourage and
safeguard the highest standards of integrity,
financial reporting, risk management and
internal control. In doing this the principal
responsibilities of the Committee include:
• reviewing the form and content and
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
and the Group’s financial statements;
• monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness
of the external and internal audit functions;
• recommending to the Board the
appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the external auditors;
• reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls and risk
management systems; and
• reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
ethical standards, procedures for ensuring
compliance with regulatory and financial
reporting requirements and its relationship
with the relevant regulatory authorities.
The terms of reference of the Committee (as
updated from time to time) are available on
www.schroders.com or from the Company
Secretary at the registered office.
The composition of the Committee
The members of the Committee at the end
of 2006 were:
Kevin Parry (Chairman)
Luc Bertrand
Andrew Beeson
Merlyn Lowther

All of the members are independent nonexecutive Directors. Luc Bertrand joined
the Committee on 1 March 2006 on his
appointment to the Board. The other
members of the Committee served
throughout the year. For the purposes of
the Combined Code, Kevin Parry, a former
partner in the accountancy firm KPMG LLP,
is considered by the Board to have recent
and relevant financial experience.

Schroders
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Report on the Committee’s activities
in 2006
Meetings and attendance
The Committee met four times in 2006.
Attendance by Committee members at each
of those meetings is set out in the table below:

Kevin Parry
Andrew Beeson
Luc Bertrand
Merlyn Lowther

Maximum
possible
attendance

Meetings
attended

4
4
3
4

4
4
2
4

To assist the Committee in fulfilling its role,
a number of senior executives are invited to
attend Committee meetings. These include
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group
Compliance Director, the Group Risk
Director, the Head of Group Internal Audit
and the Group General Counsel. Each of
these provided reports on their areas of
responsibility to each Committee
meeting. The Group’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, are also
represented at each meeting and presented
a report on their activities.
During the year the Committee met separately
on two occasions with the Group’s external
auditors and with the Head of Group Internal
Audit without executive management present.
This provides an opportunity for the external
and internal auditors to raise matters of
concern in confidence. No issues of
significance were raised during 2006.
The Committee has a formal programme of
issues which it covers during the year. This
programme is formulated by the Committee
Chairman and the Company Secretary and
is designed to ensure that all matters that fall
within the Committee’s remit are reviewed at
the appropriate time.

The principal issues considered during 2006
were:
• the annual financial statements for 2005
and interim financial statements for 2006;
• the external audit plan for 2006;
• Group Internal Audit’s plans for 2006
and 2007;
• the Group’s risk management process,
including key risks facing the Group;
• the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used in drawing up the Group’s
accounts;
• Group Internal Audit’s quarterly and annual
reports on internal audit activities and the
control environment;
• the external auditors’ year-end report and
management letter;
• the performance, independence and
objectivity of the external auditors, including
a review of non-audit fees; and
• the arrangements for staff to raise concerns
about possible improprieties relating to the
Company’s operations (the ‘whistleblowing
arrangements’).
Other issues
As well as the agreed schedule of issues
the Committee also received reports and
presentations on various subjects connected
principally to the control environment within
the Group. These included presentations
on the management of investment risk, the
implications for the Group of the Capital
Requirements Directive, the regulatory
framework for the establishment of a life
assurance company within the Group,
and the new regulations on provision of
information to the Auditors. The Committee
also reviewed the scope and level of cover
provided by the Group’s Directors’ and
Officers’ liability insurance, the governance
of the Group’s pension arrangements, the
governance of outsourced activities and the
risk management framework. Each of these
reports was discussed fully by the Committee.

Non-audit services and auditor
independence
The Group has adopted a policy covering the
provision of non-audit services to the Group
by the external auditors. This policy was
adopted by the Committee in 2004 and was
introduced to enhance further the governance
around the provision of such services and
provide a clear and transparent framework
to ensure the objectivity and independence
of the external auditors. Under the policy the
provision of any service which might lead to
a conflict of interests is not permitted unless
other possible providers are themselves
conflicted. In such exceptional cases the
Audit Committee must approve each service
and approval will only be given where the
Committee is satisfied that appropriate
measures are in place to manage or mitigate
any potential conflict of interest. There were
no such occurrences in 2006.
The policy also has strict rules in relation to
the approval of contracts for non-audit
services which do not present a possible
conflict of interest. All contracts for non-audit
services must be notified to the Group Head
of Finance and contracts valued in excess of
£5,000 require prior approval. The Group’s
external auditors are also required to provide
a report to the Audit Committee every six
months detailing all non-audit services,
including the level of fees charged. The
external auditors are also required to confirm
annually that their firm, partners and staff
are independent of the Group.
The policy was reviewed by the Committee
in 2006 and the Committee was satisfied
that the policy remained appropriate and
was being adhered to. In 2006 the value
of non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to Group
companies was £0.8 million.
To support the principles of independence,
the auditors have a policy governing the
length of time a partner can work on the
Schroders’ audit. During the year a new
senior audit partner was appointed.
The Committee also considered the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP as auditors, taking into account the results
of the auditor assessment process, the quality
of work undertaken, the level of audit fees and
the succession of the senior audit partner. The
Committee concluded that it was appropriate
to recommend the reappointment of the
Auditors and that this recommendation be put
to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
The Committee is satisfied that the external
auditors remain independent.
Committee evaluation
The annual evaluation of the Committee’s
effectiveness was undertaken as part of the
overall Board evaluation process for 2006.
The specific findings relating to the Audit
Committee were discussed with the
Committee Chairman. As a result, the
Committee will be reviewing its role,
responsibilities and terms of reference in the
light of current best practice and making
recommendations to the Board for changes
as appropriate.
Support to the Committee
The Committee received information and
support from management during the year
to enable it to carry out its duties and
responsibilities effectively. The Committee’s
programme of business related presentations
was integrated into the briefing sessions
organised for the whole Board during the year.
Details of these briefings are included in the
Governance Report on page 25.
The Committee has access to external
independent advice at the Company’s
expense, normally through the Board
Secretary.

Risk management and
internal control
In this section we detail the work undertaken
in connection with the Group’s risk
management process and system
of internal controls.
Risk management
The Board is accountable for risk and
is responsible for oversight of the risk
management process. The Board has
considered the principal risks facing the
Group and the exposure in relation to
each of those risks.
The Group Management Committee has
approved a risk management framework
and structure established by the Group Risk
function. The framework defines the principal
risk categories and sets out the methodology
for the identification, assessment, mitigation
and reporting of risks. A risk management
structure is in place which embeds risk
management into the business.
The Group Management Committee reviews
the key corporate risks facing the Group and
receives regular reports as to the current
status of each risk.
Group Risk Committee
The Group Risk Committee oversees the key
risks and the risk management process. The
Committee is chaired by the Chief Financial
Officer, and includes representatives from
across the business and the control functions.
Local management is responsible for
operational risk controls where appropriate
and, depending on the size and complexity of
the business unit, risk and control maps have
been prepared which have been captured on
an on-line worldwide risk management
system. The Group Risk Committee receives
reports from line management regarding
any matters giving cause for concern and
ensures appropriate remedial action is taken.
This includes reports on errors and omissions
and ‘near misses’. The Committee also
receives regular presentations on key
projects, products and business activities
from senior management.

Credit risk
In respect of credit risk, limits are reviewed
and set centrally by the Group Agency and
Principal Risk Committees, supported by a
dedicated team of credit professionals. Local
management is responsible for monitoring
exposure against these limits and reporting
to Group management by exception. In
respect of principal risk, the Group sets the
overall Group limit and delegates authority
to set credit limits within the overall limit to
the Group’s banking businesses in London,
Guernsey and Switzerland.
Interest rate and market risk
The Group does not run a trading book.
The Private Banking subsidiaries hold certain
financial instruments (debt securities, forward
foreign exchange contracts and interest rate
swaps) for customer facilitation purposes.
Group interest rate risk is largely mitigated
by the short-term nature of our holdings of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is
Group policy to hedge any residual interest
rate risk. The Group has a number of overseas
subsidiaries whose shareholders’ funds,
revenues and expenses are denominated
principally in local currencies. Forward foreign
exchange contracts with third parties are
used to mitigate exposure to currency
movements where it is considered that the
sterling values of such amounts are at risk.
The use of such instruments is limited and
is subject to approval by the Group
Capital Committee.
In addition, the Group’s seed capital
investments may also be hedged in respect
of market risk where it is possible to construct
an effective hedge and there is a perceived
risk of volatility in the value of the investment
due to market movements. The decisions
to hedge market risk on seed capital
investments, typically using futures, are
taken by the Group Capital Committee in
consultation with the business.
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Monitoring risk
The liquidity of the banking entities within
the Group is monitored by the Principal Risk
Committee and that of the Group by the
Group Capital Committee. The Group Capital
Committee monitors and controls the use of
the Group’s non-operating capital resources.

• reports from the Heads of Group
Compliance and Group Risk on the results
of the twice-yearly business risks and
controls evaluation survey, summarising
the work undertaken by the Group Risk
Committee and highlighting any significant
control issues arising;

Dedicated personnel are responsible for
producing and maintaining market and
liquidity risk reports based upon the Financial
Services Authority’s methodologies under the
Capital Adequacy Directive. The underlying
methodologies and limits are reviewed and
set centrally by the Principal Risk Committee.
Local risk committees and the Principal Risk
Committee review exposures against limits
on a regular basis.

• quarterly reports from the Heads of Group
Compliance and Group Risk on the control
environment and relevant issues arising
within the Group, highlighting any major
instances of non-compliance and the
actions being taken to remedy such
non-compliance;

Group Compliance undertakes detailed
monitoring activities to review compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. Group
Internal Audit carries out a programme of
audits approved by the Audit Committee,
including reviews of the risk management
process and advice and recommendations
on improving the control environment.

• a twice-yearly report with interim updates
from the Group General Counsel outlining
the Group’s legal risks;
• a report from the Head of Group
Compliance on the fraud prevention
measures in place within the Group;
• quarterly reports from the Head of Group
Internal Audit on the key issues arising from
Internal Audit’s inspection programme;

Internal control
The Board is responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. Such a system can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material financial misstatement or loss
and is designed to mitigate, not eliminate, risk.

• Group Internal Audit’s review of the
effectiveness and application of the
risk management process; and

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee
has carried out its annual assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control during 2006
using the following to support its conclusions:

The Board is of the view that there is an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the Group’s significant risks
and that:

• the six-monthly assessments by the Group
Management Committee of key corporate
risks and responsibilities for those risks;

• it has been in place for the year ended
31 December 2006 and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts;

• annual and regular reports from the
Head of Group Internal Audit on the
control environment.

• it is regularly reviewed by the Board and
complies with the internal control guidance
for directors in the Combined Code; and
• necessary actions have been or are being
taken to remedy any significant failings
identified as part of the ongoing risk
management process.
The Board advocates, encourages and
supports continuous improvements in all
Group activities, systems and procedures.

Corporate and social responsibility
Schroders’ Board and senior management
recognise the importance of corporate and
social responsibility to our employees,
investors, the community and those in whom
we invest. We have put in place policies to
ensure that we act in a responsible way.
Schroders’ corporate and social responsibility
policies and activities are covered in more
detail at www.schroders.com. Some of the
activities undertaken in 2006 are highlighted
in this report.
Socially responsible investment
As a fund manager our investment decisions
have a far greater impact on society and the
environment than our direct operational
activities. We recognise that the cumulative
economic impact of the companies and
buildings in which we invest will be far
greater than our own.
Our investment process incorporates
research into the corporate responsibility
performance of companies. Schroders
engages with and lobbies companies where
the scope of environmental, social and ethical
codes falls short of acceptable standards to
encourage the adoption of best practice and
decrease long-term risks to performance.
Our socially responsible investment policy
follows the requirements of the ABI Disclosure
Guidelines on Socially Responsible
Investment and endorses the Voluntary
Code on Shareholder Activism issued by
the Institutional Shareholders Committee.
In addition to our engagement activities
we also utilise the research of the Ethical
Investment Research Service. This enables
us to screen investable universes in order
to reflect clients’ values in their investment
portfolios. At its most basic this could, for
example, exclude tobacco producers from
the investable universe for a cancer charity.
Environment
We are committed to continuous
improvement in minimising the negative
environmental impact of our operations
and to the promotion of positive
environmental practices.
We try to balance business needs with the
aim of reducing our consumption of materials.
In 2006, paper consumption reduced by
12.7 per cent. from the previous year through

increased office automation. We also saw an
11 per cent. reduction in waste generation
during the year. Recycling targets were met
in 2006, with 92 per cent. of waste being
recycled or reused (compared with 88 per
cent. in 2005).
The City of London Corporation once again
recognised our efforts in effective waste
management by giving Schroders a platinum
rating in its Clean City Awards scheme for
the second consecutive year in 2006. The
platinum award places Schroders in the top
20 out of 1,040 buildings which were entered
into the scheme, the objective of which
is to raise the profile of effective waste
management by recognising and rewarding
good practice and encouraging the wider
adoption of the principles of Reduce, Reuse
and Recycle.
In support of domestic and internationally
agreed targets to cut greenhouse gas
emissions, we monitor energy use and
promote efficient use of energy in our
buildings. In 2006 energy consumption
increased slightly to 457.15 KWh/m2 (2005:
449.13 KWh/m2) due to extended air
conditioning and ventilation plant running
times in support of building works throughout
the year. We do however continue to identify
any opportunities we can to reduce our
energy usage.
Community involvement and
charitable giving
We actively encourage all employees to
participate in the community and in civic
and charitable causes. Involvement is seen
not only to be valuable to the community,
but also as a means of increasing employee
awareness and skills and assisting in personal
development which can then be applied in
the business context.
Schroders’ charitable giving is focused
on employee choice. UK employees are
encouraged to make charitable donations
through the payroll system and, at the end
of 2006, 19 per cent. of UK employees were
participating, making charitable donations
totalling £257,000 through this scheme. In
2006 Schroders donated £616,000 globally to
a wide variety of charitable causes, as a result
of matched giving and the support of selected
charities in the communities in which
employees work.
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As well as making financial donations,
employees are encouraged to spend time
working in the community. Since June 2005
employees in the UK have been able to take
up to 15 hours paid leave per year to provide
volunteer services to the community.
A number of employees regularly volunteer
their own time to work in the local community,
helping primary and secondary school
children with reading and other core skills
and providing business experience to support
public sector organisations.
Local community involvement
In October 2006, Schroders employees
began participating in the Hackney Schools
Mentoring Programme (HSMP), mentoring
14- and 15-year old students in the London
Borough of Hackney. Already this scheme
has the support of 50 employees, making
Schroders its largest corporate supporter.
HSMP was established in 1996 by the East
London Business Alliance and Hackney
Learning Partnerships with the aim of
increasing students’ self confidence,
improving their academic performance,
allowing them to gain experience of the
working world and raising their aspirations.
Overseas volunteering
Following a volunteering trip to Sri Lanka in
2005, 20 employees travelled to South Africa
in September 2006 to help build houses for
children orphaned by AIDS, in conjunction
with Habitat for Humanity, a global charity
dedicated to eliminating sub-standard
housing and homelessness. In support of this
initiative Schroders contributed 50 per cent.
of the cost of participating, with employees
meeting the remainder as well as raising
money for the charity. In 2006 over £30,000
was raised towards Habitat for Humanity’s
work in South Africa. Employees will be
participating in a similar project in India in
October 2007.
Investing time to help build homes with
their colleagues enables employees to build
strong team relationships and develop their
communication skills, while making a positive
and lasting contribution to the communities in
which they are assisting.

Our employees
We want Schroders to be an employer of
choice. For us, this means ensuring that our
employees understand the strategic aims and
objectives of the Group and are clear about
their role in achieving them. It also means
having policies and practices that make
Schroders an attractive place to work and
which encourage our employees to act
ethically and to be aware of and participate
in the wider community.
Communication
We communicate with all Schroders
employees worldwide via email and the
Group intranet as well as through a quarterly
magazine and monthly newsletter. We also
use employee meetings to facilitate the
exchange of views with senior management
and discussion of the progress being made
by the Group.
An Employee Consultation Forum was
established in the UK in 2005, consisting of
employees elected by their peers. Members
of the Forum meet regularly with management
as part of a Joint Consultative Group which
discusses employee-related matters and
provides feedback and recommendations
to the senior management team.
High ethical standards
We actively promote high ethical standards.
Concerns about behaviour or decisions that
are perceived to be unethical can be raised
by employees through our internal
‘whistleblowing’ process.
Personal securities trading by employees is
regulated and monitored to ensure this does
not lead to conflicts of interest. Employees
are not permitted to solicit or accept any
inducements which are likely to conflict with
their duties to clients. Training is provided in
relation to these issues and in relation to
money laundering, terrorist finance and
data protection.
Developing our employees
The performance management process at
Schroders comprises an annual performance
appraisal against agreed objectives and our

core values: integrity; passion; innovation;
teamwork and excellence. Output from this
performance process is used to inform
decisions on career development,
progression and reward. Employees
worldwide also have access to a wide range
of training and development opportunities,
strengthening our commitment to being an
employer of choice.
Equal opportunities
We are committed to providing equal
opportunities and seek to ensure that our
workforce reflects, as far as is practicable,
the diversity of the many communities in
which we operate. For example, our global
workforce currently comprises 45 per cent.
female and 55 per cent. male employees.
It is the Group’s policy to give appropriate
consideration to applications for employment
from disabled persons, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities. For the
purposes of training, career development
and progression, disabled employees
(including those who become disabled during
the course of their employment) are treated
on equal terms with other employees. We
operate a zero tolerance policy to harassment
and bullying.
Health and safety
We promote high standards of health and
safety at work for all employees and have a
globally implemented health and safety policy,
which we expect all employees to follow and
which highlights our commitment to ensuring
employees are provided with a safe and
healthy working environment. Training on
these issues is also given to employees.
Responsibility
Board responsibility for corporate and social
responsibility issues is divided between
Jonathan Asquith, Chief Financial Officer and
Alan Brown, Head of Investment. Jonathan
Asquith has responsibility for all employee,
environmental and community involvement
issues and Alan Brown has responsibility for
the investment process, socially responsible
investment and corporate governance
issues relating to the companies in which
Schroders invests.

20 Schroders volunteers helped
build homes for AIDS orphans in
South Africa.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The following statement, which should be
read in conjunction with the report of the
independent auditors, is made with a view to
distinguishing for shareholders the respective
responsibilities of the Directors and the
auditors in relation to the financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts. The
Directors have responsibility for ensuring that
the Group keeps proper accounting records.
They are required by company law to prepare
financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the end of the financial
year and of the results for the year. They are
also responsible for taking reasonable steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.
The Directors remain satisfied that the
Group has adequate resources to continue
in business and accordingly that the financial
statements should be drawn up on a going
concern basis. Further, appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied
and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements
and applicable accounting standards have
been followed. These policies and standards,
for which the Directors accept responsibility,
have been discussed with the auditors.
The Directors, having prepared the financial
statements, have requested the auditors
to take whatever steps and to undertake

whatever inspections they consider
appropriate for the purpose of giving
their report.
Pages 2 to 25 and pages 34 to 41 inclusive
contain the Directors’ report and pages
26 to 33 inclusive contain the remuneration
report, both of which have been drawn up
and presented in accordance with and in
reliance upon applicable English company law
and the liabilities of the Directors in connection
with those reports shall be subject to the
limitations and restrictions provided by
such law.
The statement from the Chairman and the
Chief Executive on pages 2 and 3 and the
business review on pages 4 to 17, which form
part of the Directors’ report, contain certain
forward-looking statements with respect
to the financial condition, and results of,
operations and businesses of the Group.
These statements and forecasts involve risk
and uncertainty because they relate to events
and depend on circumstances that may
occur in the future. There are a number of
factors that could cause actual results or
developments to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by these forwardlooking statements and forecasts. Forwardlooking statements and forecasts are
based on the Directors’ current view and
information known to them at the date of
this report. The Directors do not make any
undertaking to update or revise any forwardlooking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.
Nothing in this document should be
construed as a profit forecast.
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Schroders plc
We have audited the Group and parent
company financial statements (the ‘financial
statements’) of Schroders plc for the year
ended 31 December 2006, which comprise
the Group income statement, the Group and
parent balance sheets, the Group and parent
cash flow statements, the Group and parent
statements of recognised income and
expense and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein.
We have also audited the information in the
remuneration report that is described as
having been audited.
Respective responsibilities of
Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the Annual Report, the remuneration report
and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted
by the European Union are set out in the
Directors’ responsibility statement.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial
statements and the part of the remuneration
report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has
been prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and
for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.
We report to you our opinion as to whether
the financial statements give a true and fair
view and whether the financial statements
and the part of the remuneration report to be
audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also
report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors’ report
is consistent with the financial statements.
The information given in the Directors’ report
includes that specific information presented in
the Annual Report that is cross referred from
the Directors’ report. We also report to you if,
in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding Directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.
We review whether the corporate governance
statement reflects the Company’s compliance
with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and we report if it does not. We are
not required to consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.

We read other information contained in the
Annual Report and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited financial
statements. The other information comprises
the statement from the Chairman and the
Chief Executive, the business review, the
unaudited part of the remuneration report and
the other information listed in the contents.
We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies
with the Group financial statements.
Our responsibilities do not extend to any
other information.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on
a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made
by the Directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group’s and Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements and the part of the remuneration
report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information
in the financial statements and the part of the
remuneration report to be audited.
Opinion
In our opinion:
• the Group financial statements give a true
and fair view, in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the European Union, of
the state of the Group’s affairs as at
31 December 2006 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended;
• the parent company financial statements
give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European Union,
as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of
the state of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2006 and of its loss and
cash flows for the year then ended;
• the financial statements and the part of the
remuneration report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation; and
• the information given in the Directors’ report
is consistent with the Group financial
statements.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors
London
8 March 2007
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Notes

2006
£mn
967.2
(169.0)
798.2

2005
£mn
808.0
(131.0)
677.0

–
(542.3)
255.9

20.4
(484.3)
213.1

15.6
(0.2)
15.4
20.1
(1.4)
290.0

13.7
(0.2)
13.5
25.3
(1.2)
250.7

(23.5)
(44.6)
(68.1)
221.9

(16.2)
(41.2)
(57.4)
193.3

32

0.6
221.3
221.9

2.0
191.3
193.3

Memo – dividends

7

(63.4)

(59.5)

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

8
8

76.9p
75.7p

65.7p
65.1p

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Gain on discontinued outsourcing contract
Administrative expenses
Operating profit
Share of profit of associates
Share of loss of joint ventures
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit before tax
UK tax
Foreign tax
Tax
Profit after tax
Attributable to:
Minority interests
Equity holders of the parent

3
3

3

12
13
3
3

6

Consolidated balance sheet
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Non-current assets
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Associates
Joint ventures
Financial assets
Deferred tax
Trade and other receivables

Notes

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

9
10
11
12
13
15
23
16

65.3
15.0
12.7
21.7
3.6
198.6
44.4
420.8
782.1

24.6
5.6
9.4
31.6
4.1
123.9
54.9
303.0
557.1

17

1,664.0
16.5
617.0
439.2
2,736.7

1,795.9
17.7
544.9
402.4
2,760.9

Current assets
Financial assets
Current tax
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

16
20

Non-current assets held for sale

21

60.1

23.4

Assets backing insurance unit-linked liabilities
Investments in authorised unit trusts
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

14
14
14

1,307.4
211.7
12.9
1,532.0
5,110.9

–
–
–
–
3,341.4

29
29
31
31
30
31
31

293.9
36.4
15.1
156.3
(90.9)
(53.7)
1,086.3
1,443.4

298.5
32.1
–
185.5
(45.7)
12.2
860.2
1,342.8

32

0.2
1,443.6

0.3
1,343.1

22
23
24
25

–
2.4
10.8
325.2
338.4

12.0
2.8
10.1
185.3
210.2

22
24

0.3
13.9
31.9
1,750.8
1,796.9

4.2
14.7
32.9
1,736.3
1,788.1

1,532.0
5,110.9

–
3,341.4

Total assets
Equity
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Other reserves
Capital reserves
Own shares held
Net exchange differences
Retained profits
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Minority interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax
Provisions
Trade and other payables
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Provisions
Current tax
Trade and other payables

25

Insurance unit-linked liabilities
Liability linked to life company investments
Total equity and liabilities
Approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2007
Jonathan Asquith
Bruno Schroder

}

Directors
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Notes
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Net gains/(losses) on hedges recognised directly in equity
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes
Net gains on available-for-sale investments
Tax on items taken directly to equity
Net income and expense recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

31
31
31
31
6(b), 31

31

Total recognised income and expense for the year
Attributable to:
Minority interests
Equity holders of the parent

32

2006
£mn
(65.9)
32.2
5.5
65.2
6.6
43.6

2005
£mn
38.6
(26.9)
5.1
44.3
6.8
67.9

221.9

193.3

265.5

261.2

0.6
264.9
265.5

2.0
259.2
261.2

Consolidated cash flow statement

Schroders
Financial accounts

for the year ended 31 December 2006

46/47

Notes
Net cash from operating activities

33

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of business
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Cash acquired with acquisitions
Purchase of joint ventures
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of non-current financial assets
Purchase of non-current assets held for sale
Disposal of non-current assets held for sale
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of non-current financial assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from repayment of loans by associates
Net proceeds from sale/(purchase) of current financial assets
Interest received
Dividends/capital distributions received from associates and joint ventures
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Acquisition of own shares
Disposal of own shares
Redemption of ordinary share capital
Distributions made to minority interests
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes
Closing cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents backing insurance unit-linked liabilities
Other cash and cash equivalents held by the Group

14
20

2006
£mn
209.2

2005
£mn
92.2

–
(19.8)
6.8
–
(4.6)
(7.1)
(62.9)
(90.1)
50.8
–
64.1
0.4
–
58.6
9.0
23.6
28.8

0.2
(0.8)
0.8
(4.2)
(1.8)
(5.7)
(62.4)
(23.4)
–
0.1
73.9
0.5
30.3
(68.9)
15.7
9.0
(36.7)

27.8
(90.8)
37.3
(84.3)
–
(63.4)
(173.4)

21.8
(23.7)
–
(15.3)
(11.9)
(59.5)
(88.6)

64.6

(33.1)

402.4
64.6
(14.9)
452.1

432.1
(33.1)
3.4
402.4

12.9
439.2
452.1

–
402.4
402.4

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Presentation of the financial
statements
Financial information for the year ended
31 December 2006 is presented in
accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. IAS 1 allows an entity to
present some of its assets and liabilities using
a current/non-current classification and others
in order of liquidity when this provides
information that is reliable and more relevant.
The Group has adopted this mixed basis of
presentation within its consolidated balance
sheet as the non-current/current allocation is
the more relevant presentation for the Group
generally, whilst the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s life company business, Schroder
Pension Management Limited, are more
relevantly presented based on liquidity.

1. Summary of accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial information
contained within these financial statements
has been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRS’), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board
or the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee or their
predecessors, as adopted by the European
Union, and with those parts of the Companies
Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS.
At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the following Standards and
Interpretations were in issue but not yet
effective:
IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 8
Operating Segments
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29
IFRIC 8
Scope of IFRS 2
IFRIC 9
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 12
Service Concession Arrangements

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of
these Standards and Interpretations in future
periods will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Group.
The consolidated financial information
presented within these financial statements
has been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the measurement at fair value of
derivative financial instruments and financial
assets and liabilities that are available-for-sale
or held at fair value through profit or loss. The
carrying value of recognised assets and

liabilities that are hedged is adjusted to record
changes in the fair values attributable to the
risks that are being hedged. This valuation is
in accordance with IAS 32 and 39.
Estimates and judgements used in preparing
the financial statements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
are discussed below.
Valuation of financial assets where
there is no quoted price
Such assets principally consist of investments
in private equity, venture and buy-out funds
and are valued in accordance with
International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines and, where
appropriate, by independent professional
valuers. This determination requires significant
judgement particularly in determining changes
in fair value since the last formal valuation by
the fund manager. In making this judgement
the Group evaluates among other factors the
effect of cash distributions and changes in the
business outlook for each fund due to the
financial health and performance of individual
investments within each fund.
Impairment of assets
The Group tests annually whether goodwill
and other assets that have indefinite useful
lives suffered any impairment. Other intangible
assets which have a finite useful economic
life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is determined based
on value-in-use calculations prepared on
the basis of management’s assumptions
and estimates.
Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in
numerous jurisdictions. Judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Pension obligations
The present value of the pension obligations
depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a
number of assumptions. The assumptions
used in determining the net cost/(income) for
pensions include the expected long-term
rate of return on the plans’ assets and the
discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of pension obligations. The expected return
on plan assets assumption is determined on
a uniform basis, taking into consideration
long-term historical returns, asset allocation
and future estimates of long-term investment
returns. The Group determines the
appropriate discount rate at the end of each
year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to
be required to settle the pension obligations.
In determining the appropriate discount rate,
the Group considers the interest rates of highquality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related
pension liability. Other key assumptions for
pension obligations are based in part on
current market conditions. Further information
is given in note 4.
Surplus space
The Group periodically reviews its space
requirements and makes provisions where the
Group has no current need for space to which
the Group is already contractually committed
under the terms of an operating lease
agreement. The calculation of the required
provision requires significant judgement, as
the Group needs to estimate the provision
based upon discounted future cash outflows
due to be paid under the lease less any
potential cash inflows from sub-letting
arrangements that the Group is able to
negotiate. These cash flows are then
discounted for the remaining lease period.
In estimating these cash flows, the Group
consults with external advisers in the relevant
location to understand the potential to sub-let
the space, the rental rates which could be
achieved and the potential amount and time
period of any leasehold inducements which
may need to be offered to successfully secure
a sub-tenant.
(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial information
contained within these financial statements
incorporates financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) prepared to
31 December each year. Control is achieved

Schroders
Financial accounts

48/49

where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an
investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. Where the Group controls an entity,
but does not own all the share capital of that
entity, the interest of minority shareholders is
stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities recognised.
The accounts of subsidiary undertakings
and associates are coterminous with those
of the Company apart from those of certain
undertakings which have accounting
reference dates other than 31 December for
commercial reasons. Management accounts
made up to 31 December are used for such
undertakings.
The results of subsidiary undertakings and
associates acquired or sold are included from
or to the date control changes.
Employee share ownership trusts have been
established for the purposes of satisfying
certain share-based awards. These trusts are
fully consolidated within the accounts.
The Group has seed capital investments in a
number of funds where it is in a position to be
able to control those funds. These funds are
consolidated unless they meet the criteria set
out in policy (l) below to be designated as
being held for sale, in which case they are
classified and accounted for in accordance
with that policy.
All intra-Group transactions, balances, income
and expense are eliminated on consolidation.
(c) Business combinations
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted
for using the purchase method. The cost of
the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under
IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date, except for non-current
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are
recognised and measured at fair value less
costs to sell.
(d) Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a

subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries is recognised as an asset and
reviewed for impairment at least annually.
Any impairment is recognised immediately
in the income statement and is not
subsequently reversed.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates or jointly controlled entities is
included in the amount of the investments.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of the goodwill
relating to the entity sold. Goodwill arising on
acquisitions before the date of transition to
IFRS has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts subject to being tested for
impairment at that date and annually
thereafter. Goodwill written off to equity prior
to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not
included in determining any subsequent profit
or loss on disposal.
(e) Intangible assets – fund management
contracts
The costs of acquiring intangible assets such
as fund management contracts as part of a
business combination are capitalised where it
is probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the assets will flow to the
Group and the cost of the assets can be
measured reliably.
The fund management contracts are
recorded initially at fair value and then
amortised over their useful lives on a straight
line basis. The fair value at the date of
acquisition is calculated using discounted
cash flow methodology and represents the
valuation of the net residual income stream
arising from the fund management contracts
in place at the date of acquisition. The
contracts are included in the balance
sheet as an intangible asset.
At each reporting date, an assessment is
made as to whether there is any indication
that an asset in use may be impaired. If any
such indication exists and the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.
(f) Intangible assets – software
The costs of purchasing and implementing
software, together with associated relevant
expenditure, are capitalised where it is
probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the assets will flow to the
Group and the cost of the assets can be
measured reliably.

Software is recorded initially at cost and then
amortised over its useful life on a straight line
basis. It is included in the balance sheet as an
intangible asset.
At each reporting date, an assessment is
made as to whether there is any indication
that an asset in use may be impaired. If any
such indication exists and the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Where intangible software assets
are not yet available for use, an assessment
of whether the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount is made
irrespective of whether there is any indication
of impairment.
(g) Property, plant and equipment
The Group’s assets include leasehold
improvements, office equipment, computers
and cars. Depreciation is provided on the
depreciable amount over their useful lives on
a straight line basis at rates varying between
20 per cent. and 33 per cent. per annum.
The depreciable amount is the gross carrying
amount, less the estimated residual value at
the end of its economic life. Depreciation rates
and methods as well as the residual values
underlying the calculation of depreciation of
items of property, plant and equipment are
kept under review to take account of any
change in circumstances.
The carrying values of these assets are
reviewed for impairment at each reporting
date. An assessment is made as to whether
there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired; if any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets
are written down to their recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.
Impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement.
(h) Associates and joint ventures
Associates comprise those undertakings, not
being subsidiary undertakings, which carry
out related activities, and where the Group is
in a position to exercise significant influence,
but not control or joint control, through
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee.
Joint ventures comprise those undertakings,
not being subsidiary undertakings, which
carry on related activities, and where there is
contractually agreed sharing of control over
the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.
The investments are carried in the balance
sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associate or joint venture.

For carried interests, fair value is the carry
accruing to the carried interest holder at the
close of business on the balance sheet
date, based upon the fair value of the
underlying assets within the relevant limited
partnership fund.

The income statement includes the Group’s
post-tax share of associates’ and joint
ventures’ profits less losses for the year.
Where a Group company transacts with
an associate or joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Where the Group has investments in funds
over which it is able to exert significant
influence but not control, the Group has
applied the scope exclusion within IAS 28
Investments in Associates for mutual funds,
unit trusts and similar entities and has
accounted for such holdings at fair value
through the income statement.

Where the Group has the positive intention
to hold investments to maturity, such
investments are designated as held to
maturity. Such assets are measured at
amortised cost, being the amount at which
they are measured at initial recognition less
principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount,
and minus any reduction (directly or through
the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or irrecoverability.

(i) Financial assets
All investments are initially recognised at
fair value, being the consideration given,
including, where appropriate, acquisition
charges associated with the investment.
After initial recognition, investments which are
classified as held at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale are measured at
fair value. Gains or losses, together with
transaction costs, on investments held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
the income statement. Such investments
include the Group’s liquid funds, third party
hedge fund investments, certain private
banking investments and seed capital
investments which are not classified as being
held for sale. Gains or losses, together with
transaction costs, on available-for-sale
investments are recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or
until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in
the income statement. Such investments
principally comprise investments in limited
partnership funds and the Group’s investment
in SVG Capital plc.
For investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to official quoted
market bid prices at the close of business
on the balance sheet date. For investments
where there is no quoted market price, fair
value is determined with reference to
International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines or by
independent professional valuers.

(j) Derivative financial instruments and
hedge accounting
Derivative contracts are included at fair value
at the balance sheet date. Fair value
represents the amount at which a derivative
could be exchanged in a transaction at the
balance sheet date between willing parties.
Where derivatives are held for risk
management purposes, the Group formally
documents the relationship between the
derivative and any hedged item, its risk
management objectives, its strategy for
undertaking the various hedging transactions
and its assessment, both at hedge inception
and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair value of hedged items.
In relation to fair value hedges such as forward
foreign currency contracts which meet the
conditions for hedge accounting, any gain
or loss from re-measuring the hedging
instrument at fair value is recognised
immediately in the income statement. Any
gain or loss on the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk is adjusted against the
carrying amount of the hedged item and
recognised in the income statement. Hedge
accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting.

In relation to hedges of a net investment in
a foreign operation, the portion of the gain
or loss on the hedging instrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge is
recognised directly in equity and the
ineffective portion is recognised in the income
statement. On disposal of the foreign
operation, the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised directly in equity is
transferred to the income statement.
(k) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on all taxable and deductible
temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
However, if the deferred tax arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
(l) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
acquired exclusively with a view to
subsequent disposal through sale or dilution
are classified as held for sale and measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date
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of classification. At date of sale, post-tax gains
or losses on such assets are taken to the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised.

(m) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recorded initially at fair
value and subsequently at amortised cost.
Loans and advances to banks and customers
are accounted for at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(q) Trade and other payables
Trade payables are recorded initially at fair
value and subsequently at amortised cost.
Deposits by banks and customer accounts
are accounted for at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Impairments for specific bad and doubtful
debts are made against loans and advances
made by Private Banking subsidiaries and
leasing receivables to reflect an assessment
of irrecoverability and are deducted from
the relevant assets. Such impairments are
recorded within administrative expenses
in the income statement.

(r) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. Where the Group
considers that such items are not to be
used for settling its liabilities, for example,
securities with short maturity dates that will
be rolled over as part of an investment
portfolio, they are classified as financial
assets rather than cash and cash equivalents.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts where
such facilities form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Where the Group expects to recover amounts
provided, for example under an insurance
contract, the recovery is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the recovery
is virtually certain.

(o) Insurance unit-linked liabilities and
assets backing insurance unit-linked
liabilities
Investments in authorised unit trusts and
other financial assets held by the life company
are recognised and measured under IAS 39
which applies to investment contracts that do
not meet the insurance contract definition
under IFRS 4. Accordingly the life fund assets
are carried at fair value, with gains and losses
recorded in the income statement in the year
in which they arise. The liabilities are also
recorded at fair value.
(p) Financial liabilities: debt securities
in issue
All loans and borrowings are initially
recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration received net of issue costs
associated with the borrowing. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any issue costs, and
any discount or premium on settlement.

For provisions for surplus space, where the
effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as an interest expense.
(s) Own shares
Employee trusts have been established for
the purposes of satisfying certain equitybased awards. The holdings of these trusts
include shares that have not vested
unconditionally in employees of the Group
(own shares).
Own shares are held for the short term to
meet future award requirements and are
recorded, at cost, as a deduction from equity.
(t) Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised:
Interest – non-banking
Interest on non-banking activities comprises
amounts due on the Group’s surplus capital
and temporary surpluses or deficits in the
Group’s cash accounts held with banks.
Interest receivable and payable is recognised
using the effective interest method.

Interest – banking
Interest receivable on banking activities
comprises interest receivable on debt
securities and other fixed income securities,
loans, advances and deposits placed,
guarantee and commitment commissions,
and is recognised using the effective interest
method. Interest payable on banking activities
comprises interest payable on deposits taken
and debt securities in issue, and is recognised
using the effective interest method.
Fees and commissions
Asset management fees, investment advisory
fees, ad hoc advisory fees, custody fees,
stock lending commission, commitment fees,
arrangement fees, guarantor fees, and
Directors’ fees are accrued over the period
for which the service is provided.
Private Banking transaction and loan related
fees, together with fees from structured client
facilitation transactions are accrued over the
period for which the service is provided.
Asset management fees received in advance
are taken to the balance sheet and amortised
over the period of the provision of the asset
management service. The period of provision
of asset management service is estimated
based on experience of average holding
periods for investments in the separate
geographical locations where such fees are
earned. Redemptions are reviewed on an
annual basis and the amortisation rate
adjusted where there has been a significant
and lasting change in redemption levels.
Asset management fees received in advance
in respect of structured product funds and
the reimbursement of any marketing and
distribution fees paid to the distributor as
agent of the fund are deferred and spread
over the life of the fund. Such deferred fees
are released to the income statement on
redemption.
Performance fees are recognised on an
accruals basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant contractual
agreement.
Dividends receivable
Revenue is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive the payment
is established.
Returns from Private Equity investments
After initial recognition, investments which are
classified as held at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale are measured at
fair value.
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Gains or losses, together with transaction
costs, on investments held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
income statement. Gains or losses, together
with transaction costs, on available-for-sale
investments are recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or
until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in
the income statement.
Carried interests are recognised in the income
statement on an accruals basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant contractual
agreement. Where there is a contractual
agreement to receive such amounts subject
to the fulfilment of specified conditions, capital
gains receivable are recognised in the income
statement on an accruals basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant contractual
agreement. Where there is no such
agreement, capital gains receivable are
recognised when the right to receive the
payment is established.
(u) Cost of sales
Commissions and distribution fees payable to
third parties are recognised over the period for
which the service is provided.
Asset management fees paid in advance in
respect of structured product funds and the
reimbursement of any marketing and
distribution fees paid to the distributor as
agent of the fund are deferred and spread
over the life of the fund. Fees paid to the
distributor but not yet charged that relate to
deferred fees received are released to the
income statement on redemption.
(v) Leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially
all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases.
Assets leased to customers under
agreements which transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership, with or
without ultimate legal title, are classified as
finance leases.
As lessor, income from finance leases is
recognised as income in the income
statement over the lease term under the
pre-tax net investment method.
Income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease. Incentives given to enter into leases are
amortised over the period of the lease.

As lessee, costs under operating leases are
charged to the income statement in equal
amounts over the periods of the leases.
Incentives received to enter into leases are
amortised over the period of the lease.
(w) Pensions and other
post-employment benefits
The Group operates a number of pension
schemes around the world. For defined
contribution schemes, pension contributions
payable in respect of the accounting period
are charged to the income statement. For
funded defined benefit schemes, the cost of
providing benefits is determined separately
for each plan using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method. The difference
between the fair value of the plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date, together
with adjustments for unvested past service
cost, is recognised as a liability in the balance
sheet. An asset arising, for example, as a
result of past over-funding or the performance
of the plan investments is recognised to the
extent that it does not exceed the present
value of future contribution holidays or refunds
of contributions.
All actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in full in the statement of recognised income
and expense.
(x) Share-based payments
The Group makes equity-settled share-based
payments to key employees through awards
over ordinary and non-voting ordinary shares
and by the grant of market value share options
over non-voting ordinary shares.
Awards over ordinary and non-voting ordinary
shares made under the Group’s Equity
Compensation Plan are charged at fair value
in the income statement. The fair value of an
award is calculated using the market value of
the shares on the date of grant, discounted
for the dividends foregone over the average
holding period of the award. The fair value
charges, adjusted to reflect actual and
expected levels of vesting, are spread over
the performance period and the vesting
period of the awards. Awards that lapse are
credited to the income statement in the year
in which they lapse.
Options granted over non-voting ordinary
shares under the Group’s Share Option Plan
are measured at fair value at the date of grant.
The fair value determined is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that

will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by
use of a stochastic option valuation model.
The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.
(y) Deferred cash awards
The Group makes deferred cash awards to
key employees under the Equity
Compensation Plan in the form of a notional
investment in funds operated by the Group.
Such awards do not constitute share-based
payments, but are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 19. The Group hedges
such awards by investing in the underlying
funds. These awards are measured at cost
and are charged to the income statement in
the performance year. Awards that lapse are
credited to the income statement in the year
in which they lapse.
(z) Foreign currency translation
The results of subsidiary undertakings,
branches and associates drawn up in
currencies other than sterling are translated
at average rates of exchange ruling during the
year. The assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising on the
translation of the results of these entities
from the average rate used in the income
statement to the closing rate used in the
balance sheet are taken through equity. In
addition, exchange differences arising on the
translation of the equity of these undertakings
at the beginning of the year are also taken
directly to equity.
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date and any exchange
differences arising are taken to the income
statement within revenue. Exchange
differences are taken through equity where
they arise on the translation of assets and
liabilities whose changes in value are taken
directly through equity.
(aa) Dividends payable
Dividends payable are recognised when the
dividend is paid or approved by shareholders.
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2. Segmental reporting
(i) Primary reporting format – business segments
The Group has four continuing classes of business: Asset Management, Private Banking, Private Equity and Group (formerly referred to as
‘Group Net Income/(Costs)’). Asset Management principally comprises investment management including advisory services, property and
alternative assets; Private Banking principally comprises investment management and banking services provided to high net worth individuals
and certain smaller institutions; Private Equity principally comprises the Group’s investments in private equity, venture and buyout funds
and related vehicles; Group consists of income on the Group’s liquid and seed capital less Group costs and provisions, and the results of
the leasing business.
The allocation of costs to individual business segments is undertaken in order to provide management information on the cost of providing
services and to provide managers with a tool to manage and control expenditure. Costs are allocated on a basis that aligns the charge with the
resources employed by the Group in a particular area of its business. Typical dynamic allocation bases are square footage occupied and number
of staff employed by particular business segments.
Non-current assets held for sale are included within the Group segment.

Year ended 31 December 2006

Asset
Management1
£mn

Private
Banking
£mn

Private
Equity
£mn

Group
£mn

Inter-segment
elimination
£mn

Total
£mn

External revenue
External net interest
Inter-segment interest payable
Total revenue

811.1
–
–
811.1

80.1
22.8
(4.4)
98.5

22.2
–
–
22.2

31.0
–
–
31.0

–
–
4.4
4.4

944.4
22.8
–
967.2

Cost of sales
Gross profit

(166.2)
644.9

(2.8)
95.7

–
22.2

–
31.0

–
4.4

(169.0)
798.2

Administrative expenses
Operating profit

(436.6)
208.3

(68.8)
26.9

(3.2)
19.0

(33.7)
(2.7)

–
4.4

(542.3)
255.9

–
(0.2)
(0.2)

–
–
–

15.6
–
15.6

–
–
–

–
–
–

15.6
(0.2)
15.4

6.3
5.2
11.5
(0.6)
219.0

–
–
–
–
26.9

–
–
–
–
34.6

13.8
(0.8)
13.0
(0.8)
9.5

–
(4.4)
(4.4)
–
–

20.1
–
20.1
(1.4)
290.0

(23.3)
(5.0)
0.1
(28.2)

(1.5)
(2.5)
–
(4.0)

–
–
–
–

(2.7)
–
(5.9)
(8.6)

–
–
–
–

(27.5)
(7.5)
(5.8)
(40.8)

2,427.32
(2,013.3)
414.0

1,942.8
(1,749.5)
193.3

856.1
(187.9)
668.2

(285.6)
285.6
–

5,110.9
(3,667.3)
1,443.6

–

–

12.0

Share of profit of associates
Share of loss of joint ventures

External interest receivable and similar income
Inter-segment interest receivable
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit before tax
Administrative expenses include the
following non-cash expenses:
Share-based payments
Depreciation and amortisation of software
Provisions

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Capital expenditure on segment assets
1

10.8

1.2

Includes the Group’s life company business – see note 14 for further details.
Includes £3.6 million investment in joint ventures, £0.1 million investment in associates.
3 Includes £21.6 million investment in associates.
2

170.33
(2.2)
168.1
–
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2. Segmental reporting (continued)
Impairment losses have been recognised in the year as follows:
2006
Asset
Management
£mn

Private
Banking
£mn

Private
Equity
£mn

Group
£mn

Total
£mn

–

(0.2)

(1.4)

–

(1.6)

Impairment losses recognised:
In profit or loss

Inter-segment amounts represent interest payable and receivable on cash balances held by Private Banking on behalf of Group companies.
Asset
Management
£mn

Private
Banking
£mn

Private
Equity
£mn

Group
£mn

Inter-segment
elimination
£mn

Total
£mn

External revenue
External net interest
Inter-segment interest payable
Total revenue

667.8
–
–
667.8

58.5
22.0
(6.4)
74.1

28.7
–
–
28.7

31.0
–
–
31.0

–
–
6.4
6.4

786.0
22.0
–
808.0

Cost of sales
Gross profit

(128.8)
539.0

(2.0)
72.1

–
28.7

(0.2)
30.8

–
6.4

(131.0)
677.0

Gain on discontinued outsourcing contract
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

20.1
(374.0)
185.1

0.3
(66.1)
6.3

–
(3.0)
25.7

–
(41.2)
(10.4)

–
–
6.4

20.4
(484.3)
213.1

–
(0.2)
(0.2)

–
–
–

13.7
–
13.7

–
–
–

–
–
–

13.7
(0.2)
13.5

4.9
4.3
9.2
(0.2)
193.9

–
–
–
–
6.3

0.9
–
0.9
–
40.3

19.5
2.1
21.6
(1.0)
10.2

–
(6.4)
(6.4)
–
–

25.3
–
25.3
(1.2)
250.7

(18.4)
(6.7)
(0.2)
(25.3)

(2.1)
(4.2)
–
(6.3)

–
–
–
–

(2.8)
–
(9.2)
(12.0)

–
–
–
–

(23.3)
(10.9)
(9.4)
(43.6)

647.81
(369.2)
278.6

1,971.1
(1,800.0)
171.1

777.5
(45.2)
732.3

(216.5)
216.5
–

3,341.4
(1,998.3)
1,343.1

–

–

7.5

Year ended 31 December 2005

Share of profit of associates
Share of loss of joint ventures

External interest receivable and similar income
Inter-segment interest receivable
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit before tax
Administrative expenses include the
following non-cash expenses:
Share-based payments
Depreciation and amortisation of software
Provisions

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

Capital expenditure on segment assets
1
2

Includes £4.1 million investment in joint ventures.
Includes £31.6 million investment in associates.

6.8

0.7

161.52
(0.4)
161.1
–
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2. Segmental reporting (continued)
Impairment losses have been recognised in the year as follows:
Asset
Management
£mn

Private
Banking
£mn

2005
Private
Equity
£mn

Group
£mn

Total
£mn

(0.3)
–

–
–

(1.6)
(1.3)

–
–

(1.9)
(1.3)

Impairment losses recognised:
In profit or loss
Directly in equity

Inter-segment amounts represent interest payable and receivable on cash balances held by Private Banking on behalf of Group companies.
(ii) Secondary segment information – geographical segments
The geographic analysis is based on the geographical location of the Group’s clients.
The allocation of costs to individual geographic areas is undertaken in order to provide management information on the cost of providing services
and to provide managers with a tool to manage and control expenditure. Costs are allocated on a basis that aligns the charge with the resources
employed by the Group in a particular location. Typical dynamic allocation bases are square footage occupied and number of staff employed by
different geographic areas.
Non-current assets held for sale are included within the Americas segment (£50.1 million) and the United Kingdom segment (£10.0 million).
Comparative amounts are held wholly within the Americas segment.
United
Kingdom
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

Continental
Europe
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

Americas
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

Asia Pacific
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

External revenue
External net interest income1
Inter-segment interest receivable/(payable)
Revenue

316.8
31.8
(22.9)
325.7

247.3
23.5
(15.7)
255.1

354.1
(8.9)
18.3
363.5

285.4
(1.3)
9.1
293.2

74.9
(0.1)
0.2
75.0

73.6
(0.2)
0.2
73.6

198.6
–
–
198.6

179.7
–
–
179.7

–
–
4.4
4.4

–
–
6.4
6.4

944.4
22.8
–
967.2

786.0
22.0
–
808.0

Cost of sales
Gross profit

(34.3)
291.4

(24.5)
230.6

(92.4)
271.1

(65.9)
227.3

(0.2)
74.8

(0.4)
73.2

(42.1)
156.5

(40.2)
139.5

–
4.4

–
6.4

(169.0)
798.2

(131.0)
677.0

Gain on discontinued outsourcing contract
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

–
(230.8)
60.6

13.0
(216.9)
26.7

–
(152.9)
118.2

3.4
(129.6)
101.1

–
(58.7)
16.1

4.0
(53.0)
24.2

–
(99.9)
56.6

–
(84.8)
54.7

–
–
4.4

–
–
6.4

–
(542.3)
255.9

20.4
(484.3)
213.1

–
0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1
0.2

12.1
–
12.1

12.2
–
12.2

3.5
–
3.5

1.4
–
1.4

–
(0.3)
(0.3)

–
(0.3)
(0.3)

–
–
–

–
–
–

15.6
(0.2)
15.4

13.7
(0.2)
13.5

11.5
(4.2)
7.3

18.1
(1.9)
16.2

2.1
6.2
8.3

2.8
4.2
7.0

3.7
1.5
5.2

2.3
3.3
5.6

2.8
0.9
3.7

2.1
0.8
2.9

–
(4.4)
(4.4)

–
(6.4)
(6.4)

20.1
–
20.1

25.3
–
25.3

(0.9)

(0.5)

(0.1)

–

(0.3)

(0.7)

(0.1)

–

–

–

(1.4)

(1.2)

67.1

42.6

138.5

120.3

24.5

30.5

59.9

57.3

–

–

290.0

250.7

3,920.4

2,258.3

1,559.9

1,350.0

510.2

426.9

206.2

169.0

(1,085.8)

(862.8)

5,110.9

3,341.4

8.2

2.2

2.8

1.2

0.7

3.0

0.3

1.1

–

–

12.0

7.5

Share of profit of associates
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures

External interest receivable and similar income
Inter-segment interest receivable/(payable)
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges
Profit before tax
Total carrying amount of segment assets
Capital expenditure on segment assets
1

See note 3.

Inter-segment
elimination
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

Total
2006
2005
£mn
£mn

Notes to the Accounts
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3. Revenues and expenses
2006
£mn

2005
£mn

3.7
(1.2)
1.2

3.4
2.6
2.6

Carried interests and distributions from available-for-sale Private Equity investments
Other net gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Impairment of available-for-sale investments
Amounts recycled through revenues in respect of available-for-sale investments

11.0
13.7
(1.4)
23.3

16.4
15.9
(1.3)
31.0

Net gains on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

30.3

24.2

113.6
(90.8)
22.8

85.4
(63.4)
22.0

(1.0)

–

299.6
30.1
15.5
345.2

268.8
26.9
14.1
309.8

3.4
4.1
7.5

3.4
7.5
10.9

19.8

23.7

2006
Number
2,338
295
2,633

2005
Number
2,141
329
2,470

2,292
314
18
9
2,633

2,121
322
13
14
2,470

Included in revenues:
Property rental income
Net (losses)/gains on foreign exchange
Aggregate amounts receivable under finance leases

Total interest income receivable by Private Banking subsidiaries
Total interest expense payable by Private Banking subsidiaries
Net interest income in Private Banking subsidiaries
Included in cost of sales:
Amortisation of fund management contracts (see note 10)
Included in administrative expenses:
Salaries and other remuneration
Social security costs
Other pension costs (see note 4)
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (see note 11)
Amortisation of software (see note 10)
Depreciation and amortisation of software
Operating lease payments

The average number of employees employed by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings during the year was:

Full-time employees
Contract and temporary staff

They were employed as follows (all continuing operations):
Asset Management
Private Banking
Private Equity
Group

Audit and non-audit fees:

Audit fee for the
Annual Accounts
Year-end audit services to the
subsidiaries of the Company
Other audit services provided
pursuant to legislation
Tax services
Other services

UK
£mn

2006
Overseas
£mn

Total
£mn

UK
£mn

2005
Overseas
£mn

Total
£mn

0.3

–

0.3

0.3

–

0.3

0.8

0.9

1.7

0.6

0.8

1.4

0.2
0.1
0.2
1.6

0.1
0.2
–
1.2

0.3
0.3
0.2
2.8

0.2
–
0.1
1.2

0.1
0.4
–
1.3

0.3
0.4
0.1
2.5

In accordance with Tech 6/06 Disclosure of auditor remuneration issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, comparative audit fee analysis has
been recategorised.

Schroders
Financial accounts

56/57

3. Revenues and expenses (continued)

Included in interest:
Bank interest receivable
Other interest receivable
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Other interest payable
Interest payable and similar charges

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

7.0
13.1
20.1

3.7
21.6
25.3

(0.2)
(1.2)
(1.4)

(0.3)
(0.9)
(1.2)

2006
£mn
8.7
6.6
0.2
15.5

2005
£mn
7.3
6.8
–
14.1

12.9
(29.2)
22.3
6.0

13.1
(28.6)
21.9
6.4

0.6
6.6

0.4
6.8

4. Retirement benefit obligations
The charge for retirement benefit costs is as follows:
Pension costs – defined contribution plans
Pension costs – defined benefit plans
Other post-employment benefits

The defined benefit scheme charge in respect of the UK scheme consists of:
Current service cost
Expected return on scheme assets
Interest on scheme liabilities
Total charge in respect of the UK scheme
Charges in respect of other defined benefit schemes
Total defined benefit scheme charges

The expected return on scheme assets is stated net of administration expenses and the levy payable to the Pensions Protection Fund. The actual
return on Scheme assets was £43.6 million (2005: £63.4 million).
The principal scheme in the UK is the Schroders Retirement Benefits Scheme (the ‘UK Scheme’) which is non-contributory and administered
by the Trustee. It is a funded scheme comprising a defined benefits section and a defined contribution section. It is open to new entrants and has
357 active members in the defined benefits section and 776 members in the defined contribution section at 31 December 2006 (2005: 419 and
668 respectively). The most recent triennial valuation of the UK Scheme was carried out as at 1 January 2003 and disclosed that the market value
of the assets of the UK Scheme represented 88 per cent. of the liability for the benefits that had accrued to members at that date allowing for
future increases in earnings and pensions. The valuation of the UK Scheme as at 1 January 2006 is being considered and will be formalised by
the Trustee and the Company by 31 March 2007.
The Company paid contributions in 2006 of 30.8 per cent. of the pensionable salaries. For joiners on or after 1 June 1989, pensionable salaries
for this purpose were subject to the statutory earnings cap which was in force until April 2006, after which this cap was replaced by a notional
earnings cap. The Company’s contributions will be reviewed following the formal valuation of the UK Scheme as at 1 January 2006.
The pension cost under IAS 19 for the defined benefits section of the UK Scheme has been determined by independent qualified actuaries,
Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow Limited, and is based on valuations of the UK Scheme as at 1 January 2006. This valuation was carried out using the
projected unit method and the principal financial assumptions set out on page 59. Assets were taken at bid value and are held separately from
the Company’s assets.
Over the year, the contributions to the defined benefits section of the UK Scheme totalled £8.4 million (2005: £40.6 million). In April 2005,
the Company made a one-off cash contribution into the Scheme of £30.3 million to extinguish the deficit at 31 December 2004 as calculated
under FRS 17. The balance sheet asset at 31 December 2006 was £16.8 million (2005: £8.8 million).
The Group operates a number of smaller pension schemes around the world, some of which are funded defined benefit schemes with valuations
performed regularly by qualified actuaries and with actuarial assumptions which vary according to the economic conditions of the countries in
which the funds are situated. In addition, there are several defined contribution schemes.
The additional disclosures required by IAS 19 are set out below. Figures shown are for the defined benefits section of the UK Scheme only.
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4. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
2006
£mn
16.8

2005
£mn
8.8

2006
£mn
6.0

2005
£mn
6.4

2006
£mn
(500.8)
517.6
16.8

2005
£mn
(471.7)
480.5
8.8

(a) Balance sheet assets:
Pension benefits

(b) Income statement charges:
Pension benefits

Pension benefits
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net asset recognised in the balance sheet

UK Scheme assets do not include any of the Company’s shares (2005: nil) or buildings occupied by the Group (2005: nil).
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense is a £2.7 million gain
(2005: £2.9 million loss).
The expected rates of return on individual categories of Scheme assets (net of investment expenses only) are determined by reference to
the following:
Bonds – based on an outperformance of 0.5 per cent. (2005: 0.1 per cent.) per annum above the yield on long-dated government bonds at the
balance sheet date.
Equities – based on an outperformance of 3.5 per cent. (2005: 3.5 per cent.) per annum above the yield on long-dated government bonds at the
balance sheet date.
Other – based on the UK three month deposit rate.
The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year is as follows:
As at 1 January
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid
As at 31 December

2006
£mn
471.7
12.9
22.3
8.8
(14.9)
500.8

2005
£mn
419.5
13.1
21.9
29.3
(12.1)
471.7

2006
£mn
480.5
29.2
14.4
8.4
(14.9)
517.6

2005
£mn
388.6
28.6
34.8
40.6
(12.1)
480.5

The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets during the year is as follows:
As at 1 January
Expected return
Actuarial gains
Contributions by employer
Benefits paid
As at 31 December
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4. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The fair value of UK Scheme assets at the balance sheet date is analysed as follows:
2006
£mn
291.1
67.4
159.1
517.6

Equity instruments
Debt instruments
Other assets1

1

2005
£mn
277.7
187.4
15.4
480.5

Principally cash

During 2005, the Scheme’s investment policy was reviewed with the aim of ensuring that the Group’s ability to meet its benefit payments was
better matched to its assets, both currently and in the future. The review resulted in a new investment strategy which reduced risk whilst still
generating an expected return in excess of the expected cost of meeting the Scheme’s benefit payments.
This was achieved by March 2006 by putting 35 per cent. of the Scheme’s assets into liability driven investments (including bonds and
derivatives, such as interest rate and inflation swaps, and cash) so as to match the profile of the Scheme’s liabilities. The remaining 65 per cent.
was invested in a diversified portfolio of growth assets with an allocation of approximately 30 per cent. to equities and 35 per cent. to a range
of other asset classes, including property, private equity, hedge funds, commodities, currency, high yield and emerging market bonds.
The combination and the spread across the different asset classes has been designed to reduce risk while still generating an expected
return in excess of the cost of meeting the Scheme’s liabilities.
The principal financial assumptions used were as follows:
2006
%
5.2
2.9
4.4
2.9

2005
%
4.8
2.7
4.2
2.7

Expected return on Scheme assets analysed as:
Equities
Bonds
Other

8.0
5.0
5.3

7.6
4.2
4.2

Number of years a current pensioner is expected to live beyond age 60:
Men
Women

26
29

24
27

Number of years future pensioners currently aged 45 are expected to live beyond age 65:
Men
Women

27
30

25
28

2006
£mn
(500.8)
517.6
16.8

2005
£mn
(471.7)
480.5
8.8

2004
£mn
(419.5)
388.6
(30.9)

(1.0)
14.4

10.1
34.8

(1.4)
8.1

Discount rate
Inflation rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases

The history of the Scheme is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of Scheme assets
Surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme
Experience adjustments on Scheme liabilities
Experience adjustments on Scheme assets
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4. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
The amounts under IAS 19 that have been recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense (‘SORIE’) are set out below:
Actual return less expected return on Scheme assets
% of year end market value of assets
Experience gains and losses arising on Scheme liabilities
% of year end present value of Scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the Scheme liabilities
% of year end present value of Scheme liabilities
Actuarial gains recognised in SORIE
% of year end present value of Scheme liabilities

2006
£mn
14.4

2005
£mn
34.8

%
2.8

%
7.2

(1.0)

10.1
(0.2)

2.1

(7.8)

(39.4)
(1.6)

(8.4)

5.6

5.5
(1.1)

(1.2)

The sensitivity of the 2006 pension liabilities to changes in assumptions are as follows:

Assumption
Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases
Expected rate of pension increases
Life expectancy

Assumption change
Increase by 0.5% per annum
Reduce by 0.5% per annum
Reduce by 0.5% per annum
Reduce by one year

Estimated
reduction in
pension
liabilities
£mn
47.0
3.6
29.4
16.3

Estimated
reduction in
pension
liabilities
%
9.4
0.7
5.9
3.3

Membership details as at 31 December 2006 are as follows:
Active workers
Total pensionable salary roll
Average age
Average service in plan
Number of deferred members
Total deferred pensions (at date of leaving scheme)
Average age
Number of pensioners
Total pensions in payment

357
£24.6 million per annum
42
10.0 years
1,463
£9.2 million per annum
45
575
£12.4 million per annum

The Group expects to make contributions totalling approximately £19.2 million to the Scheme in 2007. Contributions to the Scheme are made on
a monthly basis.

5. Directors
(a) Total emoluments
The aggregate emoluments of the Directors amounted to £7.4 million (2005: £6.1 million). The aggregate of employer contributions to defined
contribution arrangements in respect of the Directors during the year was £0.2 million (2005: £0.1 million). Retirement benefits accrued to three
(2005: four) Directors under defined contribution arrangements and to three (2005: three) Directors under the defined benefit section of the UK
Scheme. The emoluments of the highest paid Director during the year amounted to £2.5 million (2005: £1.8 million). There were 156,185 (2005:
nil) market value share options exercised during 2006 resulting in a gain of £0.5 million (2005: £nil). There were 64,826 (2005: nil) nil cost options
exercised during 2006, resulting in a gain of £0.7 million (2005: £nil). There are no severance payments included in the emoluments for 2006
(2005: £nil). Further details relating to emoluments paid to Directors are given in the remuneration report on pages 26 to 33.
(b) Rights to deferred cash and shares
Details of Directors’ rights to deferred cash and shares are provided in the remuneration report on pages 31 and 32.
(c) Directors’ loans
Under the Companies Act 1985, Schroder & Co. Limited is permitted as a banking company to make loans to Directors of the Company. There
were no loans outstanding at 31 December 2006 (2005: nil) to Directors which need to be disclosed pursuant to the Act.
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6. Tax expense
2006
£mn

2005
£mn

38.7
(20.8)
17.9

29.6
(17.4)
12.2

Adjustments in respect of prior years

(6.2)
11.7

(0.1)
12.1

Foreign tax – current
Foreign tax – adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax

47.1
(0.8)
58.0

39.4
0.7
52.2

Deferred tax – origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total tax charge for the year

6.5
3.6
68.1

3.9
1.3
57.4

2006
£mn
6.1
2.5
(0.3)
(1.7)
6.6

2005
£mn
–
8.4
–
(1.6)
6.8

(a) Analysis of charge in the year
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits of the year
Double taxation relief

(b) Analysis of credit to equity
Current income tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards
Deferred tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards – current year
Deferred tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards – prior year
Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit pension schemes
Tax credit reported in equity

(c) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax charge for the year is lower (2005: lower) than the UK standard rate of corporation tax (30 per cent.). The differences are explained below:

Profit before tax
Profit before tax multiplied by corporation tax at the UK standard rate of 30% (2005: 30%)
Effects of:
Impact of profits/losses arising in jurisdictions with higher tax rates
Impact of profits/losses arising in jurisdictions with lower tax rates
Non taxable income net of disallowable expenses
Movement in unrecognised deferred tax – current year
UK tax on profits of overseas entities after double taxation relief
Prior year adjustments:
UK prior year – current
Foreign tax prior year – current
Deferred tax prior year
Total tax charge for the year

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

290.0

250.7

87.0

75.2

7.0
(24.6)
(4.7)
2.9
4.0

3.1
(22.9)
(5.5)
2.9
2.7

(6.3)
(0.8)
3.6
68.1

(0.1)
0.7
1.3
57.4

7. Dividends
2006

Declared and paid in year:
Final dividend paid
Interim dividend paid
Proposed for approval at AGM:
Final dividend for 2006

2005

£mn

Pence
per share

£mn

Pence
per share

42.0
21.4
63.4

14.5
7.5
22.0

39.2
20.3
59.5

13.5
7.0
20.5

49.7

17.5

Dividends of £2.2 million (2005: £1.5 million) on shares held by the employee trusts have been waived.
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8. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent of £221.3 million
(2005: £191.3 million) by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year, less the weighted average number of own shares.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as for basic earnings per share with a further adjustment to the weighted average number of shares to
reflect the effects of all dilutive potential shares.
There is no difference between the profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent used in the basic and diluted earnings
per share calculations.
Reconciliation of the figures used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:

Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive potential shares – share options
Effect of dilutive potential shares – contingently issuable shares
Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share

2006
Number
287,844,376
3,251,161
944,844
292,040,381

2005
Number
291,207,587
2,715,583
–
293,923,170

There have been no material transactions involving shares or potential shares since the reporting date and before the completion of these
financial statements.

9. Goodwill

At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Additions
At 31 December

2006
£mn
24.6
(2.9)
43.6
65.3

2005
£mn
24.5
0.1
–
24.6

The increase in goodwill during the year is attributable to the acquisition of NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries on
3 May 2006 (see note 38).
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash generating units (‘CGUs’) that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The highest acceptable level of CGU that can be used to determine impairment is segment level.
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows:

Asset Management
Private Banking

2006
£mn
60.3
5.0
65.3

2005
£mn
19.6
5.0
24.6

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions on which management have based
their five-year cash flow projections to arrive at the value-in-use are those regarding the market growth rates (based on the Group’s view of
anticipated future market movements), a pre-tax discount rate of 11.0 per cent., expected fund flows (based on the aggregation of local
expectations of country heads worldwide) and expected changes to margins (based on an analysis of the current fee structure flexed to take
into account expected changes in product mix and the proportion of rebates payable to external distributors).
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10. Intangible assets
2006

2005

Fund
management
contracts
£mn

Total
£mn

Fund
management
contracts
£mn

Software
£mn

Software
£mn

Total
£mn

Cost
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December

–
(0.6)
10.5
–
9.9

27.5
(0.3)
4.6
(8.0)
23.8

27.5
(0.9)
15.1
(8.0)
33.7

–
–
–
–
–

25.6
0.2
1.8
(0.1)
27.5

25.6
0.2
1.8
(0.1)
27.5

Amortisation
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Amortisation for the year
Disposals
At 31 December

–
–
(1.0)
–
(1.0)

(21.9)
0.3
(4.1)
8.0
(17.7)

(21.9)
0.3
(5.1)
8.0
(18.7)

–
–
–
–
–

(14.3)
(0.1)
(7.5)
–
(21.9)

(14.3)
(0.1)
(7.5)
–
(21.9)

Carrying amount
At 31 December

8.9

6.1

15.0

–

5.6

5.6

The increase in intangible assets during the year in respect of fund management contracts comprises the customer contracts and relationships
acquired by the Group on the purchase of NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited (see note 38). These contracts are amortised over their useful
lives of five to seven and a half years. The software assets included above are amortised over their useful lives of three years. The Group has
future commitments to purchase software with a value of £2.2 million. None of the Group’s intangible assets are internally generated (2005: £nil).

11. Property, plant and equipment
Office
equipment,
computers
and cars
£mn

2006
Long leasehold
premises and
leasehold
improvements*
£mn

Total
£mn

Office
equipment,
computers
and cars
£mn

2005
Long leasehold
premises and
leasehold
improvements*
£mn

Total
£mn

Cost
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December

17.9
(0.6)
2.3
(2.1)
17.5

28.3
(0.6)
5.1
(1.1)
31.7

46.2
(1.2)
7.4
(3.2)
49.2

21.8
0.1
2.3
(6.3)
17.9

28.8
0.1
3.4
(4.0)
28.3

50.6
0.2
5.7
(10.3)
46.2

Depreciation
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December

(14.2)
0.5
(2.0)
2.1
(13.6)

(22.6)
0.4
(1.4)
0.7
(22.9)

(36.8)
0.9
(3.4)
2.8
(36.5)

(18.4)
–
(2.0)
6.2
(14.2)

(24.7)
(0.1)
(1.4)
3.6
(22.6)

(43.1)
(0.1)
(3.4)
9.8
(36.8)

3.9

8.8

12.7

3.7

5.7

9.4

Net book value
At 31 December
* Includes lease deposits of £1.0 million (2005: £1.6 million).

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, none of the above assets were held under finance leases. The Group has future commitments to purchase
property, plant and equipment with a value of £9.7 million.
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12. Associates
The interest in associates comprised:

Equity
£mn
7.6
0.1
(1.1)
–
–
–
–
6.6

At 1 January 2006
Acquisitions
Capital redemptions
Dividends paid
Net gains on available-for-sale investments
Amounts recycled through the income statement
Profit for the year after tax
At 31 December 2006

Group’s share
of postacquisition
reserves
£mn
24.0
–
(18.4)
(4.1)
1.5
(3.5)
15.6
15.1

Total
£mn
31.6
0.1
(19.5)
(4.1)
1.5
(3.5)
15.6
21.7

The principal associate, Schroder Ventures Investments Limited (‘SVIL’), is unlisted and engaged in private equity investment. Its results included
in these accounts are shown below, together with the Group’s percentage interest therein at 31 December 2006. It is incorporated and operates
in Guernsey.
Particulars of issued share and loan capital of the principal associate at 31 December 2006 are:

Guernsey
Schroder Ventures Investments Limited

Class

Number

Issued capital

Percentage
owned by the
Group

Ordinary shares
Deferred shares
Redeemable preference shares
‘B’ redeemable preference shares
‘C’ redeemable preference shares
Senior debt, 2007

446,200
107,200
4,462,000
610,179
2,187,138

£4,462
£1,072
£4,462
£610,179
£1,474
£18,431,273

50
50
50
–
–
–

The financial statements of SVIL are prepared to 30 June each year. Accounts are prepared to this date so that the company’s year end is
coterminous with those of its major investments. For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, the interim financial statements
of SVIL have been used.
When equity accounting for the investment in SVIL, the Group does not recognise its share of the unrealised gains or losses arising on SVIL’s own
investments, except to the extent that such unrealised reserves fall below zero. The Group’s share of SVIL’s profit for 2006 therefore does not
equate to SVIL’s profit for the year multiplied by the Group’s percentage ownership.
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:
2006

2005

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets
Group’s share of associates’ net assets

SVIL
£mn
71.4
(18.9)
52.5
20.7

Other
associates
£mn
2.8
–
2.8
1.0

Total
£mn
74.2
(18.9)
55.3
21.7

SVIL
£mn
92.6
(30.8)
61.8
27.8

Other
associates
£mn
11.4
(0.2)
11.2
3.8

Total
£mn
104.0
(31.0)
73.0
31.6

Revenue

20.1

10.1

30.2

21.7

4.2

25.9

Profit for the year

18.1

10.2

28.3

19.6

4.2

23.8

Group’s share of associates’ profit
for the year

12.0

3.6

15.6

12.2

1.5

13.7

The Group has a contractual commitment to the further purchase of share capital in SVIL of £6.6 million, subject to call.
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13. Joint ventures
The Group’s principal joint venture is a 30 per cent. interest in the ordinary share capital of the Bank of Communications Schroder Fund
Management Co. Ltd., which is involved in the management of funds in China.
The Group accounts for its holdings in joint ventures using the equity method. The Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
of the joint ventures are as follows:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Total equity

China joint
venture
£mn
4.6
–
(1.1)
3.5

2006
Other joint
venture
£mn
0.2
–
(0.1)
0.1

3.3
(3.6)
(0.3)

Revenue
Expenses
Group’s share of joint ventures’
(loss)/profit for the year

Total
£mn
4.8
–
(1.2)
3.6

China joint
venture
£mn
3.9
0.3
(0.3)
3.9

2005
Other joint
venture
£mn
0.3
–
(0.1)
0.2

Total
£mn
4.2
0.3
(0.4)
4.1

0.4
(0.3)

3.7
(3.9)

0.6
(0.9)

0.4
(0.3)

1.0
(1.2)

0.1

(0.2)

(0.3)

0.1

(0.2)

14. Assets backing insurance unit-linked liabilities and insurance unit-linked liabilities
During the year, the Group established a wholly-owned life company to invest in open-ended authorised unit trusts on behalf of clients seeking to
invest in unit trusts with a life assurance wrapper.
The Group has negligible exposure to credit risk in relation to the investments of the life company as the risks and rewards associated with its
investments are borne by the investors in the life company’s funds and not by the life company itself.
Reconciliation of investments in authorised unit trusts to liability linked to life company investments:

Investments in authorised unit trusts
Other financial assets1
Cash and cash equivalents1
Liability linked to life company investments

2006
£mn
1,307.4
211.7
12.9
1,532.0

2005
£mn
–
–
–
–

1Represents the assets of the Schroders Diversified Growth Fund in which the life company is the sole investor. At the balance sheet date, the weighted average effective interest rate

earned on cash and cash equivalents was 5.2 per cent.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s life company investments are unhedged and are denominated in sterling.
It is estimated that £1,455.4 million of the assets backing insurance unit-linked liabilities, together with an equivalent amount of linked liabilities,
will be settled after 12 months, with the balance settling within one year.
As is common practice in the industry, the life company has granted floating charges over its long-term insurance assets to its reinsured policy
holders. The floating charges convert into fixed charges in the event of the insolvency of the life company. The charge ensures that such policy
holders rank equally with direct policy holders in the event of the insolvency or winding-up of the life company.

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2006

15. Non-current financial assets

Equities – listed
Equities – unlisted
Debt securities – listed
Other – unlisted

Equities – listed
Equities – unlisted
Debt securities – listed
Other – unlisted

Held to
maturity
£mn
–
–
57.3
–
57.3

2006
Fair value
through profit
or loss
£mn
5.2
18.7
–
1.3
25.2

Available-forsale
£mn
13.3
102.8
–
–
116.1

Total
£mn
18.5
121.5
57.3
1.3
198.6

Held to
maturity
£mn
–
–
–
–
–

2005
Fair value
through profit
or loss
£mn
0.9
1.7
26.6
1.2
30.4

Available-forsale
£mn
5.5
88.0
–
–
93.5

Total
£mn
6.4
89.7
26.6
1.2
123.9

The Group’s held to maturity investments are held within the Group’s Private Banking operations as part of their banking book.
The weighted average maturity or repricing date (whichever is earlier) of the debt securities is 1.6 years (2005: 0.9 years); the weighted average
effective interest rate is 3.7 per cent. (2005: 4.2 per cent.). The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current financial assets are unhedged and are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Other

2006
£mn
94.6
36.6
66.1
1.3
198.6

2005
£mn
48.6
34.5
39.5
1.3
123.9

16. Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income
Fee debtors
Settlement accounts
Other debtors
Loans and advances to customers
of Private Banking subsidiaries
(see note 18)
Leasing receivables (see note 19)
Retirement benefit assets (see note 4)
Derivative contracts (see note 28)

Current
£mn
148.3
46.1
54.3
32.7
281.4

2006
Non-current
£mn
6.6
–
–
3.1
9.7

Total
£mn
154.9
46.1
54.3
35.8
291.1

Current
£mn
122.1
41.3
59.7
41.1
264.2

2005
Non-current
£mn
11.3
–
–
2.1
13.4

Total
£mn
133.4
41.3
59.7
43.2
277.6

316.2
1.7
–
17.7
617.0

372.1
5.2
16.8
17.0
420.8

688.3
6.9
16.8
34.7
1,037.8

266.2
0.3
–
14.2
544.9

271.0
6.8
8.8
3.0
303.0

537.2
7.1
8.8
17.2
847.9

Detailed risk information on loans and advances to customers of Private Banking subsidiaries, leasing receivables and derivative contracts
can be found in notes 18, 19 and 28 respectively. All other financial assets listed above are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of the
non-interest bearing trade and other receivables approximates their fair value. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the assets.
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16. Trade and other receivables (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables, other than those detailed in notes 4, 18, 19 and 28, are unhedged and
denominated in the following currencies:
Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

2006
£mn
171.4
20.9
53.6
6.7
12.9
25.6
291.1

2005
£mn
145.3
33.2
46.6
6.2
16.8
29.5
277.6

Availablefor-sale
£mn
59.9
6.0
–
–
65.9

Total
£mn
250.7
186.4
279.6
947.3
1,664.0

Availablefor-sale
£mn
51.2
6.3
–
–
57.5

Total
£mn
119.6
174.4
466.1
1,035.8
1,795.9

17. Current financial assets
2006

Equities – listed
Equities – unlisted
Debt securities – listed
Debt securities – unlisted

Held to
maturity
£mn
–
–
16.7
940.6
957.3

Fair value through
profit or loss
£mn
190.8
180.4
262.9
6.7
640.8

Held to
maturity
£mn
–
–
101.7
997.2
1,098.9

Fair value through
profit or loss
£mn
68.4
168.1
364.4
38.6
639.5

2005

Equities – listed
Equities – unlisted
Debt securities – listed
Debt securities – unlisted

The Group’s held to maturity investments are held within the Group’s Private Banking operations as part of the banking book.
The weighted average maturity or repricing date (whichever is earlier) of the debt securities is 5.5 years (2005: 3.8 years); the weighted average
effective interest rate is 5.0 per cent. (2005: 4.5 per cent.).The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

Before hedging
£mn
833.0
619.2
161.8
21.1
23.7
5.2
1,664.0

2006
Effect of hedging
£mn
308.1
(273.3)
(18.5)
–
(11.1)
(5.2)
–

Net exposure
£mn
1,141.1
345.9
143.3
21.1
12.6
–
1,664.0

Before hedging
£mn
1,042.0
618.9
93.5
23.4
8.1
10.0
1,795.9

2005
Effect of hedging
£mn
374.0
(339.2)
(24.5)
–
(4.4)
(5.9)
–

Net exposure
£mn
1,416.0
279.7
69.0
23.4
3.7
4.1
1,795.9
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18. Loans and advances to customers of Private Banking subsidiaries

Loans and advances to customers of Private Banking subsidiaries

Maturing/repricing* in one year or less
Maturing/repricing* in more than one year
but not more than two years
Maturing/repricing* in more than two years
but not more than three years
Maturing/repricing* in more than three years
but not more than four years
Maturing/repricing* in more than four years
but not more than five years
Maturing/repricing* in more than five years

2006
£mn
688.3

2005
£mn
537.2

Gross
£mn
316.6

2006
Provisions
£mn
(0.4)

Net
£mn
316.2

Gross
£mn
266.4

2005
Provisions
£mn
(0.2)

Net
£mn
266.2

19.5

–

19.5

13.4

–

13.4

39.0

–

39.0

16.9

–

16.9

134.6

–

134.6

30.9

–

30.9

76.0
103.0
372.1
688.7

–
–
–
(0.4)

76.0
103.0
372.1
688.3

118.2
91.6
271.0
537.4

–
–
–
(0.2)

118.2
91.6
271.0
537.2

* Whichever is earlier.

The weighted average effective rate of interest receivable on loans and advances to customers of Private Banking subsidiaries is 6.1 per cent.
(2005: 5.9 per cent.). The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The loans and advances attract the following types of interest rate:
2006
£mn
99.2
589.3
(0.2)
688.3

Floating rate
Fixed rate
Non–interest bearing

2005
£mn
59.7
477.3
0.2
537.2

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances to customers of Private Banking subsidiaries are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

2006
£mn
485.7
64.9
73.9
41.8
18.0
4.0
688.3

2005
£mn
353.4
62.4
72.5
33.6
9.9
5.4
537.2

19. Leasing receivables
2006

By maturity:
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

2005

Minimum
lease payments
£mn

Unearned
finance income
£mn

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
£mn

Minimum
lease payments
£mn

Unearned
finance income
£mn

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
£mn

1.9

(0.2)

1.7

0.6

(0.3)

0.3

2.8
3.5
6.3
8.2

(0.9)
(0.2)
(1.1)
(1.3)

1.9
3.3
5.2
6.9

3.9
4.2
8.1
8.7

(0.8)
(0.5)
(1.3)
(1.6)

3.1
3.7
6.8
7.1
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19. Leasing receivables (continued)
The Group provides leasing facilities through the use of finance leases. The majority of leases held during the year related to refrigeration
equipment, commercial vehicles and films.
The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for all of the lease term. The average effective interest rate contracted is
5.6 per cent. (2005: 5.6 per cent.) per annum. The average term of finance leases entered into is 9.7 years (2005: 9.0 years). The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance leases at the balance sheet date are £nil (2005: £nil). The fair value of the Group’s
finance leasing receivables at 31 December 2006 was £5.2 million (2005: £6.8 million), based on discounting the estimated cash flows at the
market rate. The Group’s leasing receivables are denominated in sterling.

20. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand
Cash equivalents

2006
£mn
376.7
62.5
439.2

2005
£mn
334.1
68.3
402.4

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate
on cash at bank and in hand is 3.2 per cent. (2005: 3.0 per cent.). Cash equivalents earn fixed interest rates at an effective weighted average of
3.4 per cent. (2005: 2.5 per cent.) with an average maturity/repricing date (whichever is earlier) of 12 days (2005: 7 days). The book value of cash
and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The cash and cash equivalents attract the following types of interest rate:

Floating rate
Fixed rate
Non-interest bearing

2006
£mn
237.0
176.5
25.7
439.2

2005
£mn
129.4
218.9
54.1
402.4

2006
£mn
106.6
108.2
67.0
57.0
54.8
45.6
439.2

2005
£mn
76.5
77.3
91.5
51.0
41.4
64.7
402.4

At 31 December 2006, the Group had no material undrawn committed borrowing facilities (2005: none).
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

21. Non-current assets held for sale
From time to time, Group companies inject capital into funds operated by the Group (seed capital). Where the Group holds more than 50 per cent.
of the fund in which it is investing and where voting rights are attached to the holding, the Group technically controls the fund and it becomes a
subsidiary of the Group. Where the Group is actively seeking to reduce its holding, the fund is classified as being held for sale as it is considered
highly probable that the fund will not remain under the control of the Group one year after the original investment is made.
If the Group still retains control of the fund after this time, the fund ceases to be classified as held for sale and is consolidated.
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21. Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
2006
£mn
60.1

Seed capital classified as being held for sale

2005
£mn
23.4

In the year to 31 December 2006, 13 new investments in funds were classified as non-current assets held for sale. Nine funds in which the Group
held seed capital investments during the year ceased to be classified as non-current assets held for sale as they no longer met the conditions
within IFRS 5 regarding such classifications. Investments cease to be classified as held for sale when they are no longer controlled by the Group.
This may happen either through sale of the investment and/or dilution of the Group’s holding.
The effect of reclassifying these funds on the results of operations is to decrease revenue by £0.9 million in 2006 (2005: £3.1 million).
Non-current assets held for sale are non-interest bearing and have no maturity date. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the assets.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current assets held for sale are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Japanese yen
Other

2006
£mn
10.0
45.1
–
2.4
2.6
60.1

2005
£mn
3.1
2.9
17.4
–
–
23.4

22. Financial liabilities: debt securities in issue

Zero coupon debt securities (issued by
Private Banking subsidiary undertaking)
Floating rate unsecured loan notes 2007
By maturing/repricing (whichever is earlier):
In one year or less
In more than two years but not more than
three years

Current
£mn

2006
Non-current
£mn

Total
£mn

Current
£mn

2005
Non-current
£mn

Total
£mn

–
0.3
0.3

–
–
–

–
0.3
0.3

–
4.2
4.2

12.0
–
12.0

12.0
4.2
16.2

0.3

4.2

–
0.3

12.0
16.2

Of the zero coupon debt securities held in 2005, £10.6 million were denominated in sterling and £1.4 million in US dollars.
The floating rate loan notes are denominated in sterling and have a coupon rate of 0.5 per cent. below LIBOR (2005: 0.5 per cent. below LIBOR).
At the balance sheet date, this was 4.3 per cent. (2005: 4.1 per cent.). The carrying amount of the loan notes approximates their fair value.
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23. Deferred tax

(a) Deferred tax liabilities
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Income statement credit/(expense)
Transfers
At 31 December

(b) Deferred tax assets
At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Income statement expense
Credit taken to equity
Transfers
At 31 December

At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Income statement credit/(expense)
Credit taken to equity
Transfers
At 31 December

Accelerated
capital
allowances
£mn
–
–
–
–
–

2006
Temporary
differences
including
bonuses
£mn
(2.8)
0.1
–
0.3
(2.4)

2005
Temporary
differences
including
bonuses
£mn
(2.1)
0.1
(7.5)
6.7
(2.8)

Total
£mn
(4.2)
0.1
(5.4)
6.7
(2.8)

Accelerated
capital
allowances
£mn
8.5
–
(2.4)
–
–
6.1

2006
Temporary
differences
including
bonuses
£mn
43.8
(0.6)
(6.3)
0.5
(0.3)
37.1

Tax
losses
carried
forward
£mn
2.6
–
(1.4)
–
–
1.2

Total
£mn
54.9
(0.6)
(10.1)
0.5
(0.3)
44.4

Accelerated
capital
allowances
£mn
12.3
0.2
(4.0)
–
–
8.5

2005
Temporary
differences
including
bonuses
£mn
36.5
–
7.2
6.8
(6.7)
43.8

Tax
losses
carried
forward
£mn
5.3
0.3
(3.0)
–
–
2.6

Total
£mn
54.1
0.5
0.2
6.8
(6.7)
54.9

Total
£mn
(2.8)
0.1
–
0.3
(2.4)

Accelerated
capital
allowances
£mn
(2.1)
–
2.1
–
–

Deferred tax assets recognised include an asset of £3.9 million (2005: £7.9 million) in respect of one UK entity which suffered losses in the
preceding period. Surplus capital assets could be distributed in the UK to provide an interest return sufficient to absorb the UK losses in question.
Controlled Foreign Company profits are also likely to arise in future periods.
A deferred tax asset of £10.4 million (2005: £11.3 million) relating to realised and unrealised capital losses has not been recognised as there is
insufficient evidence that there will be sufficient taxable gains in the future against which the deferred tax asset could be utilised.
A deferred tax asset of £20.5 million (2005: £22.6 million) relating to losses and other temporary differences has not been recognised as there is
insufficient evidence that there will be sufficient taxable profit against which these losses and temporary differences can be utilised. This
unrecognised deferred tax includes an amount of £13.9 million (2005: £15.4 million) relating to US losses of £30.3 million (2005: £43.9 million),
which are subject to a minimum expiry period of 14 years.
The aggregate amount of gross temporary differences regarding investments in subsidiaries is £230.6 million (2005: £262.9 million). Deferred tax
has not been provided as the relevant parent company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
A deferred tax asset of £5.0 million (2005: £6.6 million) relating to Excess Unrelieved Foreign Tax has not been recognised as there is insufficient
evidence that there will be sufficient taxable profit in the future against which the deferred tax asset could be utilised.
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24. Provisions
Legal
£mn
7.8
(0.6)
(1.3)
–
5.9

Surplus space
and other
£mn
17.0
(0.5)
(3.5)
5.8
18.8

Total
£mn
24.8
(1.1)
(4.8)
5.8
24.7

Current – 2006
Non-current – 2006

5.9
–
5.9

8.0
10.8
18.8

13.9
10.8
24.7

Current – 2005
Non-current – 2005

7.8
–
7.8

6.9
10.1
17.0

14.7
10.1
24.8

At 1 January 2006
Exchange translation adjustments
Provisions utilised
Additional provisions charged in the year
At 31 December 2006

Legal
The amounts represent a provision for certain legal claims predominantly relating to indemnification provisions under the terms of the sale of the
investment banking business in April 2000. Details of such provisions are not given as the Directors feel that to do so may prejudice any ongoing
actions. The Group aims where possible to seek resolution of these claims by 31 December 2007.
Surplus space
Provisions of £16.9 million (2005: £16.0 million) have been made against certain leaseholds in connection with surplus space. The provisions
have been made taking into account residual lease commitments, other outgoings and sub-letting arrangements. In arriving at the provisions,
the cash flows have been discounted at rates representing an estimation of the interest rates relevant to the period of provision. The weighted
average of these rates is 4.7 per cent. (2005: 4.7 per cent.). It is envisaged that the provisions will be utilised on an even basis until 2015.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s provisions are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Swiss franc
Other

Before
hedging
£mn
16.4
7.1
1.1
0.1
24.7

2006
Effect of
hedging
£mn
3.7
(3.7)
–
–
–

Net
exposure
£mn
20.1
3.4
1.1
0.1
24.7

Before
hedging
£mn
13.1
10.2
1.1
0.4
24.8

2005
Effect of
hedging
£mn
5.1
(4.9)
–
(0.2)
–

Net
exposure
£mn
18.2
5.3
1.1
0.2
24.8

Current
£mn
–
93.1
14.8
17.7
173.9
1.2
29.0
329.7
169.1
1,241.3
10.7
1,750.8

2006
Non-current
£mn
3.1
–
–
9.8
37.5
–
39.5
89.9
0.1
218.2
17.0
325.2

Total
£mn
3.1
93.1
14.8
27.5
211.4
1.2
68.5
419.6
169.2
1,459.5
27.7
2,076.0

Current
£mn
–
48.2
16.0
26.2
148.3
13.3
22.2
274.2
115.0
1,327.3
19.8
1,736.3

2005
Non-current
£mn
3.3
–
–
4.1
31.7
–
20.3
59.4
1.0
121.9
3.0
185.3

Total
£mn
3.3
48.2
16.0
30.3
180.0
13.3
42.5
333.6
116.0
1,449.2
22.8
1,921.6

25. Trade and other payables

Retirement benefit obligations
Settlement accounts
Trade creditors
Social security
Accruals and deferred income
Non-equity minority interests (see note 32)
Other liabilities
Deposits by banks (see note 26)
Customer accounts (see note 27)
Derivative contracts (see note 28)
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25. Trade and other payables (continued)
Detailed risk information on deposits by banks, customer accounts and derivative contracts can be found in notes 26, 27 and 28 below
respectively. All other financial liabilities listed above are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of the non-interest bearing trade and other
payables approximates their fair value.
Non-equity minority interests arise where non-current assets previously classified as being held for sale (see note 21) are consolidated. When this
occurs, the Group acquires a liability in respect of minority interests in the funds of which the Group has control. Such minority interests are
distinguished from equity minority interests in that the Group does not hold an equity stake in such funds.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables, other than those detailed in notes 26, 27 and 28, are denominated in the
following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

2006
£mn
248.6
40.7
50.5
14.1
15.4
50.3
419.6

2005
£mn
213.6
41.3
14.5
7.5
14.2
42.5
333.6

2006
£mn
169.2

2005
£mn
116.0

2006
£mn
169.1
0.1
169.2

2005
£mn
116.0
–
116.0

26. Deposits by banks

Deposits by banks

Maturing/repricing* in one year or less
Maturing/repricing* in more than one year but not more than two years

* Whichever is earlier.

The weighted average maturity or repricing date (whichever is earlier) of the deposits is 0.1 years (2005: 0.2 years); the weighted average effective
interest rate on the deposits is 3.9 per cent. (2005: 3.0 per cent.).
The deposits attract the following types of interest rate:

Floating rate
Fixed rate
Non-interest bearing

2006
£mn
5.3
161.8
2.1
169.2

2005
£mn
9.2
105.1
1.7
116.0
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26. Deposits by banks (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits by banks are denominated in the following currencies:
2006
£mn
22.9
52.3
74.1
17.3
1.1
1.5
169.2

2005
£mn
23.5
35.9
40.0
12.3
1.5
2.8
116.0

Customer accounts

2006
£mn
1,459.5

2005
£mn
1,449.2

Maturing/repricing* in one year or less

2006
£mn
1,241.3

2005
£mn
1,327.3

31.0
47.3
87.1
51.7
1.1
218.2
1,459.5

12.2
12.9
17.4
77.6
1.8
121.9
1,449.2

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

27. Customer accounts

Maturing/repricing* in more than one year but not more than two years
Maturing/repricing* in more than two years but not more than three years
Maturing/repricing* in more than three years but not more than four years
Maturing/repricing* in more than four years but not more than five years
Maturing/repricing* in more than five years

* Whichever is earlier.

The weighted average maturity or repricing date (whichever is earlier) of the accounts is 0.5 years (2005: 0.4 years); the weighted average
effective interest rate on the accounts is 4.0 per cent. (2005: 4.6 per cent.).
The accounts attract the following types of interest rate:

Floating rate
Fixed rate
Non-interest bearing

2006
£mn
653.4
682.1
124.0
1,459.5

2005
£mn
633.6
701.2
114.4
1,449.2

2006
£mn
1,072.4
190.9
171.9
14.3
5.4
4.6
1,459.5

2005
£mn
1,089.1
205.8
106.6
28.9
8.6
10.2
1,449.2

The carrying amounts of the Group’s customer accounts are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other
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28. Derivative contracts
Details of the Group’s risk management processes are outlined in risk management and internal control on pages 37 and 38.
Gains and losses on fair value hedges that qualify for special hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement. For hedges
of a net investment, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in
equity through the SORIE. Any ineffective portion is reported immediately in the income statement.
2006

Interest rate contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Equity contracts
Commodity contracts
Less non-current portion:
Interest rate contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Equity contracts
Commodity contracts
Non-current portion
Current portion

Notional
amount
£mn
1,475.0
960.2
228.3
47.5
2,711.0

Assets
£mn
3.3
13.9
15.4
2.1
34.7

(43.7)
(16.0)
(184.0)
(41.6)
(285.3)
2,425.7

–
–
(14.9)
(2.1)
(17.0)
17.7

2005
Liabilities
£mn
3.2
6.6
15.8
2.1
27.7

Notional
amount
£mn
2,389.9
1,063.2
2,423.6
–
5,876.7

Assets
£mn
0.7
5.4
11.1
–
17.2

Liabilities
£mn
1.0
11.3
10.5
–
22.8

–
–
(14.9)
(2.1)
(17.0)
10.7

(41.2)
(12.4)
(108.6)
–
(162.2)
5,714.5

–
–
(3.0)
–
(3.0)
14.2

–
–
(3.0)
–
(3.0)
19.8

2006
£mn
49.6
6.7
0.1
4.4
1.1
0.5
62.4

2005
£mn
17.3
17.6
1.4
3.1
0.1
0.5
40.0

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s derivative contracts are denominated in the following currencies:

Sterling
US dollar
Euro
Swiss franc
Japanese yen
Other

Interest rate contracts
The Group’s interest rate swap contracts are held for customer facilitation by Private Banking subsidiaries. The notional principal amounts held
at 31 December 2006 in respect of Private Banking subsidiaries are £1,460.1 million (2005: £2,367.1 million) with a weighted average period to
maturity of 0.3 years (2005: 0.1 years).
The remainder of the Group’s interest rate contracts are either held for the purpose of hedging the interest rate risk inherent in contracts entered
into by the Group’s leasing companies or for hedging seed capital investments against interest rate movements.
The notional principal amounts held at 31 December 2006 in respect of leasing arrangements were £3.7 million (2005: £15.5 million), and those
in respect of seed capital were £11.2 million (2005: £7.3 million). The weighted average periods to maturity of these amounts were 8.8 years
(2005: 4.7 years) and 0.2 years (2005: 0.2 years) respectively.
Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group has a number of overseas subsidiaries whose equity, revenues and expenses are denominated principally in local currencies.
Financial instruments are used within the Group where it is considered that the sterling values of such amounts are at risk. In such cases, forward
currency contracts were being used at 31 December 2006 to hedge £170.2 million (2005: £204.3 million) of underlying foreign currency assets.
The weighted average period to maturity of such instruments was 0.3 years (2005: 0.4 years). In relation to the Group’s hedging of its seed and
liquid capital investments, at 31 December 2006, the Group has forward currency contracts with a total value of £491.1 million (2005: £396.9
million) hedging against currency movements. The weighted average period to maturity of such instruments was 0.1 years (2005: 0.1 years).
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28. Derivative contracts (continued)
Private Banking subsidiaries hold fully matched foreign exchange contracts for the purposes of customer facilitation. Such contracts amounted
to £295.2 million at 31 December 2006 (2005: £452.4 million) and had a weighted average period to maturity of 0.4 years (2005: 0.3 years).
Forward foreign exchange contracts are also used to hedge individual instances of exposure to currency risk that may arise in the course of
business. At 31 December 2006, the notional amounts held in respect of such exposures was £3.7 million (2005: £9.6 million). The weighted
average period to maturity of such contracts was 0.4 years (2005: 0.2 years).
Equity contracts
The Group’s equity contracts held by Private Banking subsidiaries are held for customer facilitation. The notional principal amounts held at
31 December 2006 in respect of Private Banking subsidiaries were £215.7 million (2005: £2,423.6 million). The weighted average period
to maturity of this amount was 2.0 years (2005: 0.2 years). In relation to the Group’s hedging of its seed and liquid capital investments, at
31 December 2006, the Group has equity contracts with a total value of £12.6 million (2005: £nil) hedging against market movements.
The weighted average period to maturity of such investments was 0.2 years (2005: nil).
Commodity contracts
The Group’s commodity contracts are held for customer facilitation by Private Banking subsidiaries. The notional principal amounts held at
31 December 2006 in respect of Private Banking subsidiaries were £47.5 million (2005: £nil). The weighted average period to maturity of this
amount was 2.1 years (2005: nil).
The following gains/(losses) have been reported directly through equity during the year:
Forward foreign exchange contracts

2006
£mn
32.2

2005
£mn
(26.9)

2006
£mn
(3.5)
35.2
31.7

2005
£mn
(1.3)
(26.1)
(27.4)

The following gains/(losses) have been reported through the income statement during the year:
Equity contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts

29. Share capital

At 1 January 2006
Shares issued
Shares cancelled
At 31 December 2006

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Non-voting ordinary shares of £1 each
Subscriber shares of 1p each
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Non-voting ordinary shares of £1 each
Subscriber shares of 1p each

Number
of shares
Units
298,471,751
4,154,782
(8,750,660)
293,875,873

Ordinary
shares
£mn
226.0
–
–
226.0

Non-voting
ordinary
shares
£mn
72.5
4.2
(8.8)
67.9

Total
shares
£mn
298.5
4.2
(8.8)
293.9

Share
premium
£mn
32.1
23.6
(19.3)
36.4

2006
Number

2005
Number

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

226,022,400
113,977,598
–
339,999,998

226,022,400
113,977,598
200
340,000,198

226.0
114.0
–
340.0

226.0
114.0
–
340.0

226,022,400
67,853,473
–
293,875,873

226,022,400
72,449,151
200
298,471,751

226.0
67.9
–
293.9

226.0
72.5
–
298.5

Rights of each class of share
The two classes of ordinary share capital are equal in all but two respects: the non-voting ordinary shares do not have voting rights and hence
their holders are not entitled to attend or to vote at general meetings of the Company, and, on a capitalisation issue, non-voting ordinary shares
carry the right to receive non-voting ordinary shares rather than ordinary shares.
Holders of the subscriber shares had no right to participate in the profits or assets of the Company and were not entitled to vote at general
meetings of the Company, although they were entitled to receive notice of and attend such meetings. The subscriber shares were cancelled
during the year.
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30. Own shares
Employee trusts have been established for the purposes of satisfying certain share-based awards. At 31 December 2006, the employee trusts
held 8,444,416 (2005: 9,127,227) non-voting ordinary shares costing £73.9 million (2005: £67.7 million), with a market value of £88.3 million
(2005: £81.7 million). In addition, the employee trusts held 3,494,308 (2005: nil) ordinary shares costing £35.1 million (2005: £nil), with a market
value of £39.0 million (2005: £nil). Dividends on shares held by the employee trusts are waived.
Movements during the year were as follows:
Own shares held
£mn
(45.7)
(90.8)
45.6
(90.9)

At 1 January 2006
Own shares purchased
Own shares disposed
At 31 December 2006
2006

Group
Shares funded by employing companies
Own shares

Company
Own shares

Number of
shares
Units

2005

Cost
£mn

Market
value
£mn

Number of
shares
Units

Cost
£mn

Market
value
£mn

1,989,639
9,949,085
11,938,724

18.1
90.9
109.0

20.8
106.5
127.3

2,023,203
7,104,024
9,127,227

22.0
45.7
67.7

18.1
63.6
81.7

7,938,934

71.9

85.3

6,815,161

44.0

61.0

Net exchange
differences
£mn
12.2

Retained profits
£mn
860.2

Capital reserves
£mn
185.5

Total
£mn
1,057.9

31. Other reserves

At 1 January 2006

Other reserves3
£mn
–

Profit after tax
Minority interests
Dividends
Retained profit for the year after minority
interests and dividends

–
–
–

–
–
–

221.9
(0.6)
(63.4)

–
–
–

221.9
(0.6)
(63.4)

–

–

157.9

–

157.9

Currency translation differences
Currency translation differences transferred to net
exchange differences
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes
Net gains on available-for-sale investments1
Tax on actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes
Tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards
Net income and expense recognised directly in equity

–

–

(45.5)

(20.4)

(65.9)

–
–
–
–
–
–

(65.9)
–
–
–
–
(65.9)

45.5
5.5
65.2
(1.7)
8.3
77.3

20.4
–
–
–
–
–

–
5.5
65.2
(1.7)
8.3
11.4

Gains on hedges recognised directly in equity

–

–

32.2

–

32.2

15.1
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
27.5
(15.0)
(61.4)
(28.2)

–
–
–
5.2
–

15.1
27.5
(15.0)
(56.2)
(28.2)

–
–
15.1

–
–
(53.7)

1.4
34.4
1,086.3

–
(34.4)
156.3

1.4
–
1,204.0

Consideration payable in the form of ordinary shares
Share-based payments
Share-based payments vested
Cancellation of non-voting ordinary shares
Amounts recycled through the income statement2
Impairments of available-for-sale investments recycled through
the income statement
Transfers
At 31 December 2006
1

Includes £1.5 million in respect of associates (see note 12).
Includes £3.5 million in respect of associates (see note 12).
3 Other reserves represent shares to be issued in respect of the acquisition of NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited (see note 38).
2
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32. Minority interests

At 1 January
Exchange translation adjustments
Additions (see note 39)
Disposals (see note 39)
Profit/(loss) retained for the year
Distributions made
At 31 December

Non-equity
minority
interests
£mn
13.3
(1.4)
28.7
(40.1)
0.7
–
1.2

2006
Equity
minority
interests
£mn
0.3
–
–
–
(0.1)
–
0.2

2005

Total
£mn
13.6
(1.4)
28.7
(40.1)
0.6
–
1.4

Non-equity
minority
interests
£mn
–
–
19.1
(7.6)
1.8
–
13.3

Equity
minority
interests
£mn
11.4
0.6
–
–
0.2
(11.9)
0.3

Total
£mn
11.4
0.6
19.1
(7.6)
2.0
(11.9)
13.6

Non-equity minority interests arise when funds previously classified as non-current assets held for sale are consolidated (see notes 21, 25 and
39) and where the Group holds less than 100 per cent. of the investment in those funds.

33. Reconciliation of net cash from operating activities

Operating profit
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of software
Amortisation of fund management contracts
Impairment of available-for-sale assets recycled through the income statement
Other amounts recycled through the income statement in respect of investments
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables and provisions
Increase in insurance unit-linked liabilities
Net decrease in financial liabilities
Profit on disposal of business
Charge for provisions
Net gains on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Share-based payments expensed
Other non-cash movements
Special payment made to UK pension scheme
United Kingdom corporation tax recovered/(paid)
Overseas tax paid
Interest received
Interest paid
Net purchase of assets backing insurance unit-linked liabilities
Net purchase of current financial assets
Net cash from operating activities

2006
£mn
255.9

2005
£mn
213.1

7.5
1.0
1.4
(24.7)
(241.2)
195.1
1,532.0
(15.9)
–
5.8
(30.3)
27.5
42.7
–
5.1
(36.2)
10.6
(1.4)
(1,519.1)
(6.6)
209.2

10.9
–
1.3
(32.3)
(154.2)
402.1
–
(18.0)
(0.2)
9.4
(24.2)
23.3
(26.1)
(30.3)
(16.1)
(34.7)
11.8
(1.2)
–
(242.4)
92.2
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34. Commitments and contingent liabilities
(a) Commitments
Documentary credits
Undrawn loan facilities
Investment call commitments
Other commitments

(b) Contingent liabilities
Assets pledged as collateral security
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit
Other contingent liabilities

2006
£mn
3.6
100.6
55.6
6.6
166.4

2005
£mn
10.2
99.9
12.2
6.6
128.9

2006
£mn
21.1
38.0
–
59.1

2005
£mn
22.9
15.9
0.4
39.2

(c) Future capital expenditure
At 31 December 2006, there was £11.9 million (2005: £0.1 million) capital expenditure contracted but not provided in the accounts.
(d) Litigation
Certain Group undertakings are the subject of current or pending legal actions; the Directors believe that none of these actions, either individually
or in aggregate, is likely to have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position.
(e) (i) Operating leases – as lessee
At 31 December, the Group’s commitments under non-cancellable operating leases were:

Commitment expiring:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Offices
£mn

2006
Office equipment
£mn

22.1
89.0
57.1
168.2

0.5
0.9
–
1.4

2005
Offices
Office equipment
£mn
£mn
23.0
91.9
76.2
191.1

1.6
0.3
2.1
4.0

Leases in respect of office properties are negotiated for an average term of 3.6 years (2005: 3.6 years) and rentals are fixed for an average of
2.7 years (2005: 1.9 years). Leases in respect of office equipment are negotiated for an average term of 2.8 years (2005: 2.5 years) and rentals
are fixed for an average of 2.5 years (2005: 1.9 years).
(ii) Operating leases – as lessor
The Group sublets certain of its properties around the world. At 31 December, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were:

Commitment expiring:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

2006
Offices
£mn

2005
Offices
£mn

2.8
6.6
2.2
11.6

3.3
9.1
3.2
15.6

Subleases in respect of office properties are negotiated for an average term of 4.9 years (2005: 5.1 years) and rentals are fixed for an average
of 4.9 years (2005: 4.1 years).
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34. Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)
(f) Other
The Group has a contractual obligation to reinstate certain leasehold premises before expiry of the lease in 2018. The Directors believe that this
obligation cannot be provided for because it cannot be measured reliably.
Obligations of certain Group companies under the Euroclear settlement system are secured by charges on assets held on their behalf from time
to time within that system and by cash deposits placed.
In the ordinary course of business, subsidiary undertakings have custody of customers’ securities, act as trustees and issue indemnities on
behalf of customers who have lost certificates of title.
The Company and subsidiary undertakings have also provided letters of comfort to regulatory authorities and others that subsidiary undertakings
will be capitalised adequately and will meet their contractual obligations.

35. Awards to employees of rights to share-based payments
The Group has the following share-based payment arrangements:
Share Option Plan 2000*: Under this Plan, the Group grants market value share options over non-voting ordinary shares to executive Directors
and other key employees. Options usually become exercisable if the option holder remains with the Group for at least three years and, for
executive Directors, the performance target has been met. The performance target, in line with market practice, is that the Group’s earnings per
share growth (defined as the earnings per ordinary share before any exceptional items, as derived from the Company’s Annual Report and
Accounts) must be at least four per cent. per annum above the increase in the Retail Price Index over the initial three-year period.
Senior Executive Share Option Scheme 1986 and the Share Option Plan 1999*: Options over non-voting ordinary shares were granted to
executive Directors and other key employees. In line with market practice at the time the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme 1986 was
introduced, the vesting of these awards was not subject to performance conditions. Under the Share Option Plan 1999 the performance target of
all option holders, including executive Directors, was that the Group’s earnings per share growth must be at least two per cent. per annum above
the increase in the Retail Price Index over a minimum five-year period. This performance condition was in line with market practice at the time of
the award. The Group no longer grants awards under these former plans.
Equity Compensation Plan 2000*: Under this Plan, executive Directors and other key employees receive deferred bonus awards over ordinary
and non-voting ordinary shares, normally structured as rights to acquire shares at nil cost. These awards are subject to forfeiture and will vest on
the third anniversary provided the participant continues to be employed within the Group. Further details are given in the remuneration report on
page 27.
All of the above share-based payment arrangements involve a maximum term of ten years for each option granted and are settled through the
transfer of assets of Schroders plc to employees of the Group.
Share Incentive Plan: Under this plan approved by HM Revenue & Customs, eligible employees can purchase ordinary shares in the Group each
month up to £1,500 per taxation year from their gross salary. In April 2006, the Group began to match employee share purchases up to £50
per month. These matching shares are effectively free shares awarded to the employee subject to their remaining in employment for one year.
* Certain employees have been awarded cash-settled equivalents to these share-based awards. The fair value of these awards is determined using the same methods and models used to
value the equivalent equity-settled awards. The fair value of the liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and at settlement date.
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35. Awards to employees of rights to share-based payments (continued)
(a) Share option plans
Movements in the number of options over non-voting ordinary shares outstanding and their relative weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:
2006

At 1 January
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Lapsed
At 31 December

Weighted
average
exercise price
per share
715p
1085p
492p
668p
805p
726p

Options
16,318,802
36,866
(38,079)
(4,154,782)
(1,106,414)
11,056,393

714p

8,833,078

Outstanding options immediately exercisable

2005
Weighted
average
exercise price
per share
713p
711p
624p
677p
874p
715p
687p

Options
21,614,092
350,133
(1,332,086)
(3,243,818)
(1,069,519)
16,318,802
7,225,455

The weighted average share price, at exercise date, of options exercised during the year was £10.78 (2005: £8.49).
At 31 December 2006 the following options to subscribe for non-voting ordinary shares, with the weighted average contractual life remaining of
4.9 years (2005: 5.9 years), were outstanding:
(i) Under the terms of the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme 1986:
Exercise period
18 March 2001 to 17 March 2006

Exercise price per share
441p

2006 number
–

2005 number
42,605

Exercise price per share
822p
800p

2006 number
133,426
1,684,286
1,817,712

2005 number
743,767
1,949,899
2,693,666

Exercise price per share
987p
706p
800p
756p
453p
541p
483p
398p
472p
537p
600p
660p
665p
655p
547p
530p
709p
736p
802p
1085p

2006 number
2,075,862
500,000
2,798,350
50,000
300,000
1,427,500
250,000
1,364,500
–
–
–
15,000
15,000
165,000
15,000
75,470
137,833
7,000
5,300
36,866
9,238,681

2005 number
2,923,880
500,000
4,224,350
50,000
400,000
2,237,500
250,000
2,446,198
20,000
75,000
20,000
15,000
15,000
165,000
15,000
75,470
137,833
7,000
5,300
–
13,582,531

(ii) Under the terms of the Share Option Plan 1999:
Exercise periods
7 May 2004 to 6 May 2009
13 March 2005 to 12 March 2010

(iii) Under the terms of the Share Option Plan 2000:
Exercise periods
13 March 2006 to 12 March 2011
12 November 2006 to 11 November 2011
22 April 2005 to 21 April 2012
3 May 2005 to 2 May 2012
6 November 2005 to 30 April 2009
6 November 2005 to 5 November 2012
9 December 2005 to 8 December 2012
10 March 2006 to 9 March 2013
2 April 2006 to 1 April 2013
1 May 2006 to 30 April 2013
4 June 2006 to 3 June 2013
6 October 2006 to 5 October 2013
27 October 2006 to 26 October 2013
8 March 2007 to 7 March 2014
7 June 2007 to 6 June 2014
17 August 2007 to 16 August 2014
7 March 2008 to 6 March 2015
15 July 2008 to 14 July 2015
18 August 2008 to 17 August 2015
6 March 2009 to 5 March 2016
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35. Awards to employees of rights to share-based payments (continued)
The fair value of options granted during the year, determined using the stochastic valuation model was £0.1 million (2005: £0.6 million) and the
weighted average fair value was £2.51 (2005: £1.81) per option. The significant inputs into the model were: a weighted average share price of
£10.85 (2005: £7.11) at the grant date; the exercise price as shown above; volatility of 21.4 per cent. (2005: 27.1 per cent.) calculated on the
Exponentially Weighted Moving Average basis; option life based on the expected exercise behaviour linked to share price and period since grant
assuming options exercisable between years three and ten; dividend yield of 2.0 per cent. (2005: 2.7 per cent.); and annual risk-free interest rate
of 4.4 per cent. (2005: 4.8 per cent.).
(b) Equity Compensation Plan
Under the Equity Compensation Plan, rights over 3,555,225 ordinary (2005: nil) and 40,853 non-voting ordinary (2005: 3,272,442) shares were
granted during the year ended 31 December 2006. The weighted average fair value of £9.99 per ordinary (2005: £nil) and £9.47 per non-voting
ordinary (2005: £6.46) share was calculated using the market value of the shares at the grant date, discounted for dividends foregone over the
average holding period of the award.
During 2006, the Group changed the vesting conditions for a small number of employees, not including any executive Director, for certain of its
outstanding vested Equity Compensation Plan share awards. The vesting dates were changed by extending to 6 March 2009. The fair value of
the awards were unchanged.
(c) Cash-settled share-based awards
The Group issues to certain employees cash-settled share-based awards that require the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the award to the
employee on the date of exercise. At 31 December 2006, the total carrying amount of liabilities arising from cash-settled share-based awards
at the balance sheet date was £3.4 million (2005: £3.0 million). The total intrinsic value at 31 December 2006 of liabilities for which the
counterparty’s right to cash or other assets had vested by that date was £1.2 million (2005: £1.0 million).
(d) Share Incentive Plan
The employee monthly share purchase plan is open to most UK-based employees and provides free shares from the Group to match the
employee purchase up to a maximum of £50 per month. Pursuant to these plans the Group issued 20,371 ordinary shares in 2006 (2005: nil),
at a weighted average share price of £9.91 (2005: £nil). A charge of £0.2 million (2005: £nil) will be expensed over a vesting period of one year.
The Group recognised total expenses of £28.6 million (2005: £25.3 million) arising from share-based payment transactions during the year of
which £27.5 million (2005: £23.3 million) were equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

36. Events after the balance sheet date
On 14 December 2006, Schroders plc announced that it had reached agreement to acquire interests representing 99.7 per cent. of the share
capital of Aareal Asset Management GmbH and its subsidiaries (‘AAM’), a pan-European property asset manager based in Germany. Regulatory
approval for the acquisition was received on 28 February 2007.
Under the terms of the agreement, Schroders paid €27.9 million (£18.8 million) in cash on completion to Aareal Bank AG (‘Aareal’), the sole
owner of AAM. Schroders also acquired certain investments at a cost of €23.8 million (£16.0 million) from Aareal in the underlying funds
managed by AAM and may acquire further investments managed by AAM for up to €29.8 million (£20.1 million) in the event that they are not
sold by Aareal prior to 31 March 2007.
The net tangible assets acquired are approximately €6.0 million (£4.0 million), although, at the date these financial statements were authorised
for issue, completion accounts had not yet been finalised. Consequently, it is impracticable to disclose further information regarding assets and
liabilities acquired or differences between carrying amounts of such items immediately before and after acquisition.

37. Related party transactions
(a) Transactions between related parties
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties, excluding compensation, are disclosed below:
2006

Associates
Key management personnel

Revenues
£mn
1.0
0.1

Interest receivable
£mn
–
–

Expenses
£mn
(0.3)
(1.0)

Amounts owed
by related parties
£mn
–
–

Amounts owed
to related parties
£mn
–
(1.2)
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37. Related party transactions (continued)
2005

Associates
Key management personnel

Revenues
£mn
–
0.1

Interest receivable
£mn
0.7
–

Expenses
£mn
–
(0.3)

Amounts owed
by related parties
£mn
–
–

Amounts owed
to related parties
£mn
–
(5.1)

Transactions with related parties were made at market rates. The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees
have been given or received. No expense for bad or doubtful debts has been recognised in the year in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.
(b) Key management personnel compensation
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Share-based payments

2006
£mn
12.7
0.6
3.3
5.7
22.3

2005
£mn
11.8
0.7
5.2
7.5
25.2

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market rates. The remuneration policy is described in more detail in the remuneration report on page 26.

38. Acquisitions
On 3 May 2006, the Group acquired 100 per cent. of the issued share capital of NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited for consideration of
£57.4 million. This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:
Book value/
fair value
£mn
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Non-current asset investments
Associates
Cash at bank
Debtors
Creditors
Goodwill
Intangible assets

Satisfied by:
Cash
Deferred consideration
Total consideration
1

0.3
0.1
0.1
6.8
1.8
(5.8)
3.3
43.6
10.5
57.4

19.81
37.6
57.4

Includes acquisition costs of £1.1 million.

Excluding the acquisition of intangible assets of £10.5 million, there were no material differences between the fair value and the carrying value of
the assets and liabilities on acquisition.The carrying value of the intangible assets immediately prior to acquisition was £nil.
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38. Acquisitions (continued)
Deferred consideration is stated at its fair value at the date of acquisition and consists of a notional £20.6 million investment in funds managed
by NewFinance Capital, the award of non-voting ordinary shares in Schroders plc with a value of £15.1 million and deferred cash payments of
£1.9 million. Deferred consideration of £36.5 million is due to be paid in equal amounts at the first, second and third anniversary of the date of
completion, subject to certain non-performance related criteria. The remaining deferred cash balance of £1.1 million is payable within ten working
days of agreement between the parties of the audited completion accounts. The award of deferred shares is classified within equity on the face of
the balance sheet as ‘other reserves’.
Additional contingent cash consideration of £20.1 million is payable provided certain stringent performance criteria are met. The Directors
consider that the recognition criteria as set out in IFRS 3 have not yet been met and the contingent consideration has therefore not been provided
for in these financial accounts. The Directors will continue to review performance under the terms of the acquisition agreement to determine over
time whether such contingent consideration should be recognised for consolidation purposes.
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the hedge fund of
funds business acquired (see note 9). The intangible assets represent values attributed to fund management contracts acquired (see note 10).
The result contributed by NewFinance Capital Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries in the period between the date of acquisition and the balance
sheet date was a profit of £2.4 million before tax.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2006, an aggregation of the Group’s gross profit for the period and that of the acquiree would
have been £806.3 million, and the profit before tax for the period on the same basis would have been £292.8 million. The Directors note that such
aggregations ignore the increased effects of the integration costs and synergistic benefits of the acquisition that would arise over the year since
1 January 2006.

39. Acquisitions and disposals of consolidated funds
As described in note 1(c), the Group is in a position whereby it could control a number of its own funds in which it has seed capital investments.
These funds are consolidated unless they are designated as being held for sale. During the year, a number of funds fell under the control of the
Group and were consolidated as acquisitions. Similarly, a number of funds ceased to be controlled by the Group in the year and were
deconsolidated as they were either deemed to be disposals as a result of the dilution of the Group’s existing holdings or the investments
were sold.
Net assets acquired on the acquisition of a controlled fund impact on the Group’s balance sheet to the extent that the Group consolidates the net
assets of the minority interests and records a non-equity minority interest creditor equal to this value. The net assets acquired in the table below
therefore represent those assets acquired attributable to minority interests.
Net assets disposed of when a previously consolidated fund ceases to be controlled by the Group represent either the disposal for cash of an
existing investment or the deemed disposal through dilution of those net assets formerly attributable to minority interests of the Group.
Details of such assets and liabilities acquired and disposed of during the year are as follows:
Cash
Debt securities
Derivative assets
Equities
Non-equity minority interests (see note 32)

Acquisitions
£mn
0.4
25.7
0.2
2.4
28.7

Disposals
£mn
(4.1)
(29.1)
(0.5)
(6.4)
(40.1)

Net
£mn
(3.7)
(3.4)
(0.3)
(4.0)
(11.4)

The acquisitions give rise to an initial cash outflow representing the purchase of the investments. Such cash flows are recorded within net
purchases of/proceeds from current asset investments for the purposes of the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement. Disposals only have
a related cash flow effect where the Group sells its investment in a fund. Such cash flows are recorded within net purchases of/proceeds from
current asset investments. In the majority of cases, there will be a deemed disposal: the Group will not sell its investment, but will cease to have
control of a fund as a result of other investors’ holdings exceeding that of the Group.
Details of cash flows in the year arising from the acquisition and disposal of controlled funds are as follows:
Acquisitions of controlled funds
Disposals of controlled funds
Net purchase of controlled funds

£mn
53.8
(10.3)
43.5

Schroders plc balance sheet
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Notes

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax
Trade and other receivables

45
49
46

2,585.0
5.9
16.8
2,607.7

2,585.0
11.4
39.4
2,635.8

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

46
47

75.1
4.8
79.9

37.8
0.8
38.6

2,687.6

2,674.4

53
53
55
54
55

293.9
36.4
1,406.4
(71.9)
670.4
2,335.2

298.5
32.1
1,401.2
(44.0)
800.8
2,488.6

49
51

–
6.1
6.1

2.6
7.4
10.0

48
50

0.3
3.9
–
342.1
346.3

4.2
3.9
0.5
167.2
175.8

2,687.6

2,674.4

Total assets
Equity
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Capital reserves
Own shares held
Retained profits
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax
Trade and other payables
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Provisions
Current tax
Trade and other payables

51

Total equity and liabilities
Approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2007
Jonathan Asquith
Bruno Schroder

}

Directors

Schroders plc cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Notes

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

(15.8)

635.1

Adjustments for:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Net decrease in financial liabilities
Contribution to defined benefit scheme
Share-based payments expensed
Amounts received in respect of Group tax relief
Interest paid
Interest received
Net receipts from subsidiaries in respect of employee share awards
Net cash from operating activities

(15.1)
175.3
(3.9)
(2.4)
19.0
9.2
(8.5)
1.6
–
159.4

(22.7)
(484.4)
–
(34.2)
2.8
10.7
(36.2)
2.0
1.5
74.6

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Acquisition of own shares
Disposal of own shares
Redemption of ordinary share capital
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

27.8
(72.8)
37.3
(84.3)
(63.4)
(155.4)

21.8
(23.0)
–
(15.3)
(59.5)
(76.0)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

4.0

(1.4)

Opening cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents

0.8
4.0
4.8

2.2
(1.4)
0.8

Operating activities
Operating (loss)/profit

47

Schroders plc statement of recognised
income and expense for the year ended 31 December 2006
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Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes
Fair value adjustment on acquisition of subsidiary
Tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards
Net income and expense recognised directly in equity

2006
£mn
5.6
–
0.7
6.3

2005
£mn
5.5
1,397.4
1.2
1,404.1

(Loss)/profit for the year

(20.6)

613.8

Total recognised income and expense for the year

(14.3)

2,017.9

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

(14.3)

2,017.9

Schroders plc Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2006

40. Significant accounting policies
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985. As permitted by that Act, the separate
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by either the International Accounting Standards Board or the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee or their predecessors, as adopted by the European Union as at 31 December 2006.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 230 of
the Act not to present its own income statement. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 1 ‘Summary of
accounting policies’ except as noted below.
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

41. Revenues and expenses

Included in revenues:
Gain on liquidation of subsidiary
Net (losses)/gains on foreign exchange
Included in administrative expenses:
Salaries and other remuneration
Social security costs
Other pension costs (see note 42)
Employee benefits expense

2006
£mn

2005
£mn

–
(0.5)

621.1
0.6

10.7
2.7
6.0
19.4

12.7
2.4
6.4
21.5

The average number of employees employed by the Company during the year was:

Full-time employees

Average
2006
Number
12

2005
Number
11

The audit fee for the annual accounts of the Company was £0.3 million (2005: £0.3 million). Fees relating to other audit services provided
pursuant to legislation were £nil in the year (2005: £0.1 million).
2006
£mn

2005
£mn

Included in interest:
Interest receivable on loans to subsidiaries

1.9

1.4

Interest payable on loans from subsidiaries
Other interest payable
Interest payable and similar charges

(13.1)
(0.1)
(13.2)

(23.4)
(0.2)
(23.6)

42. Retirement benefit obligations
The expense borne for pension costs represents the charge for the year in respect of the Schroders Retirement Benefits Scheme. Full details of
the Scheme can be found in note 4.
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43. Tax expense
2006
£mn

2005
£mn

Current tax:
Current group relief credit
Adjustments in respect of prior periods – group relief
Total current tax

(8.2)
0.1
(8.1)

(9.8)
0.2
(9.6)

Deferred tax – origination and reversal of temporary differences
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior periods

1.9
(0.3)

8.5
0.1

Total tax credit for the year

(6.5)

(1.0)

2006
£mn
(2.0)
1.7
(0.4)
(0.7)

2005
£mn
2.8
(1.6)
–
1.2

(a) Analysis of credit in year

(b) Analysis of credit to equity
Current tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards
Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit schemes
Deferred tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards – current year
Tax credit reported in equity

(c) Factors affecting tax credit for the year
The current tax credit for the year is lower (2005: lower) than the standard rate of UK corporation tax (30 per cent.). The differences are explained
below:
2006
£mn
(27.1)

2005
£mn
612.9

(Loss)/profit before tax multiplied by corporation tax at the UK standard rate of 30% (2005: 30%)

(8.1)

183.9

Effects of:
Prior year adjustments
Non-taxable income net of disallowable expenses
UK tax on profits of overseas entities
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments
Total tax credit for year

(0.2)
1.8
–
–
(6.5)

0.2
(185.4)
0.5
(0.2)
(1.0)

2006
£mn
2,585.0
–
–
2,585.0

2005
£mn
1,190.0
2,585.0
(1,190.0)
2,585.0

(Loss)/profit before tax

44. Dividends
Details of the Company’s dividends paid and proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting can be found in note 7.

45. Investments in subsidiaries

At 1 January
Additions
Liquidation of former subsidiaries
At 31 December

Schroders plc Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2006

46. Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income
Loans and advances to subsidiaries
Other debtors
Retirement benefit assets (see note 4)
Derivative contracts (see note 52)

Current
£mn
–
41.9
33.2
–
–
75.1

2006
Non-current
£mn
–
–
–
16.8
–
16.8

Total
£mn
–
41.9
33.2
16.8
91.9

Current
£mn
0.1
1.7
35.8
–
0.2
37.8

2005
Non-current
£mn
–
30.6
–
8.8
–
39.4

Total
£mn
0.1
32.3
35.8
8.8
0.2
77.2

Detailed risk information on derivatives contracts can be found in risk management and internal control on pages 37 and 38. The weighted
average interest rate receivable on loans and advances to subsidiaries is 5.2 per cent. (2005: 5.2 per cent.). The loans have no maturity. All other
financial assets listed above are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of the non-interest bearing trade and other receivables approximates
to their fair value. The Company's exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets.
The carrying amounts of the Company’s trade and other receivables are unhedged and are denominated in sterling.

47. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand with external parties
Cash at bank and in hand with subsidiaries

2006
£mn
4.8
–
4.8

2005
£mn
0.1
0.7
0.8

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate on cash
at bank and in hand is 4.8 per cent. (2005: 3.8 per cent.). The book value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. The
Company's exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the assets. All cash at bank and in hand is held in sterling.
At 31 December 2006, the Company had no material undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

48. Financial liabilities: debt securities in issue
Details of the Company’s debt securities in issue can be found in note 22.

49. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 30 per cent. (2005: 30 per cent.).
The movement on the net deferred tax asset account is as shown below:

At 1 January
Income statement expense
Credit taken to equity
At 31 December

2006
£mn
8.8
(1.6)
(1.3)
5.9

2005
£mn
16.2
(8.6)
1.2
8.8

Although the Company made tax losses in recent periods, a deferred tax asset of £5.9 million is recognised as it is expected that the Company
will receive sufficient group relief in future years to benefit from these tax deductions. Controlled foreign company profits are also likely to arise in
future periods.
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by IAS 12) during the
year are shown below.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.
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49. Deferred tax (continued)

(a) Deferred tax liabilities
At 1 January 2006
Transfer to deferred tax assets
At 31 December 2006

(b) Deferred tax assets
At 1 January 2006
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities
Prior year adjustments
Income statement expense
Credit taken to equity
At 31 December 2006

Temporary
differences
on pension
schemes
(2.6)
2.6
–

Tax losses
carried
forward
–
–
–

Total
(2.6)
2.6
–

Temporary
differences
including
bonuses
9.0
(2.6)
0.1
(0.5)
(1.3)
4.7

Tax losses
carried
forward
2.4
–
0.2
(1.4)
–
1.2

Total
11.4
(2.6)
0.3
(1.9)
(1.3)
5.9

All of the deferred tax assets were available for offset against deferred tax liabilities and hence the net deferred tax provision at 31 December 2006
was £5.9 million (2005: £8.8 million).

50. Provisions
2006
£mn
3.9

At 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006

The provision is in respect of certain legal claims brought against the Company. Details of the provision are not given as the Directors feel that to
do so may prejudice any ongoing action. The Company aims where possible to seek resolution of these claims by 31 December 2007.
The carrying amount of the Company's provision is denominated in US dollars, but has been hedged back into sterling through the purchase of
forward foreign exchange contracts.

51. Trade and other payables

Social security
Accruals and deferred income
Loans and advances from subsidiaries
Other liabilities

Current
£mn
2.1
6.9
319.9
13.2
342.1

2006
Non-current
£mn
2.5
3.6
–
–
6.1

Total
£mn
4.6
10.5
319.9
13.2
348.2

Current
£mn
0.1
4.3
158.2
4.6
167.2

2005
Non-current
£mn
–
7.4
–
–
7.4

Total
£mn
0.1
11.7
158.2
4.6
174.6

Detailed information on derivatives contracts can be found in note 52. The weighted average interest rate payable on loans and advances from
subsidiaries is 5.4 per cent. (2005: 5.3 per cent.). The loans have no maturity and are denominated in sterling. All other financial liabilities listed
above are non-interest bearing and are denominated in sterling. The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.
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52. Derivative contracts
The risk management processes of the Company are aligned with those of the Group as a whole. Details of the Group’s risk management
processes are outlined in risk management and internal control on pages 37 and 38.
Details of open derivative contracts held by the Company at 31 December are:
2006

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Notional
amount
£mn
3.7

Assets
£mn
–

2005
Liabilities
£mn
0.1

Notional
amount
£mn
5.1

Asset
£mn
0.2

Liabilities
£mn
–

The contracts are being used to hedge provisions that are held both at Group level and within the Company. These provisions are denominated
in US dollars. The carrying amounts of the Company’s derivative contracts are denominated in US dollars (£0.1 million). The weighted average
period to maturity of such contracts is 183 days (2005: 58 days).

53. Share capital
Details of the Company’s share capital can be found in note 29 to the accounts.

54. Own shares
Employee trusts have been established for the purposes of satisfying certain share-based awards. At 31 December 2006, the employee trusts
held 3,224,308 (2005: nil) ordinary shares costing £32.6 million (2005: £nil) and 6,610,454 (2005: 8,711,635) non-voting ordinary shares costing
£56.9 million (2005: £65.4 million). The market values of these shares were £36.0 million (2005: £nil) and £69.1 million (2005: £78.0 million)
respectively. Dividends on shares held by the employee trusts are waived.
Movements during the year were as follows:
Own shares held
£mn
(44.0)
(72.8)
44.9
(71.9)

At 1 January 2006
Own shares purchased
Own shares disposed
At 31 December 2006

Shares funded by employing companies
Own shares

Number
of shares
1,895,828
7,938,934
9,834,762

2006
Cost
£mn
17.6
71.9
89.5

2005
Market value
£mn
19.8
85.3
105.1

Number
of shares
1,896,474
6,815,161
8,711,635

Cost
£mn
21.4
44.0
65.4

Market value
£mn
17.0
61.0
78.0
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55. Other reserves

At 1 January 2006
Loss after tax
Dividends
Retained loss for the year after dividends

Retained profits
£mn
800.8
(20.6)
(63.4)
(84.0)

Capital reserves
£mn
1,401.2
–
–
–

Total
£mn
2,202.0
(20.6)
(63.4)
(84.0)

5.6
2.0
(1.7)
0.4
6.3

–
–
–
–
–

5.6
2.0
(1.7)
0.4
6.3

22.0
(13.3)
(61.4)
670.4

–
–
5.2
1,406.4

22.0
(13.3)
(56.2)
2,076.8

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme
Current tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards
Tax on actuarial gains on defined benefit pension scheme
Deferred tax on Equity Compensation Plan and share option awards – current year
Net income recognised directly in equity
Share-based payments
Share-based payments vested
Cancellation of non-voting ordinary shares
At 31 December 2006

56. Awards to employees of rights to share-based payments
Details of the Company's awards to employees of rights to share-based payments can be found in note 35.

57. Related party transactions
(a) Transactions between related parties
Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, and transactions between the
Company and other related parties, excluding compensation, are disclosed below.
2006

Subsidiaries of the Company
Key management personnel

Revenues
£mn
–
–

Interest
receivable
£mn
1.9
–

Interest
payable
£mn
(13.1)
–

Revenues
£mn
–
–

Interest
receivable
£mn
1.4
–

Interest
payable
£mn
(23.4)
–

Expenses
£mn
–
(0.3)

Amounts owed
by related parties
£mn
41.9
–

Amounts owed
to related parties
£mn
(333.1)
(0.9)

Expenses
£mn
–
(0.2)

Amounts owed
by related parties
£mn
33.0
–

Amounts owed
to related parties
£mn
(162.8)
(1.5)

2005

Subsidiaries of the Company
Key management personnel

Transactions with related parties were made at market rates. The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees
have been given or received. No expense for bad or doubtful debts has been recognised in the year in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.
(b) Key management personnel compensation
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Share-based payments

The remuneration policy is described in more detail in the remuneration report on page 26.

2006
£mn
8.6
0.2
2.7
4.2
15.7

2005
£mn
7.7
0.2
4.0
5.6
17.5

Schroders plc Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2006

58. Subsidiary undertakings
The following information is given in respect of those subsidiary undertakings which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the
consolidated profits or assets of the Company. They are all wholly-owned subsidiary undertakings of the Company (except where shown)
and their issued share capital consists of equity shares and other classes of shares where indicated.
All undertakings operate in the countries where they are registered or incorporated except where shown. All companies are engaged in the
business of asset management, private banking or private equity.
England
NewFinance Capital Partners Limited
NewFinance Capital LLP
JHSW Leasing (12) Limited
Schroder Administration Limited*
Schroder & Co. Limited
Schroder Financial Services Limited
Schroder International Holdings Limited
Schroder Investment Company Limited
Schroder Investment Management Limited
Schroder Investment Management North America Limited
Schroder Investments Limited
Schroder Pension Management Ltd
Schroder Property Investment Management Limited
Schroder Unit Trusts Limited
Schroder Ventures (1991) Limited

Denmark
Schroder Investment Management
Fondsmaeglerselskab A/S

Argentina
Schroder Investment Management S.A.

Japan
Schroder Investment Management (Japan) Limited

Australia
Schroders Australia Holdings Pty Limited
Preference shares

Korea
Schroders Korea Limited

Bermuda
Schroder Finance (Bermuda) Limited
Schroder International Holdings (Bermuda) Limited
Schroder Investments (Bermuda) Limited
Schroder Investments (SVIIT) Limited
Preference shares
Schroder Venture Managers Limited
Schroders (Bermuda) Limited
Channel Islands
Burnaby Insurance (Guernsey) Limited
Schroder Investments (Guernsey) Limited
Preference shares
Schroder Investment Management (Guernsey) Limited
Schroder Property Managers (Jersey) Limited
Schroder Venture Managers (Guernsey) Limited
Preference shares
Schroders (C.I.) Limited

Germany
Schroder Investment Management GmbH
Hong Kong SAR
Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Preference shares
Indonesia
PT Schroder Investment Management Indonesia – 99.0%
Italy
Schroders Italy SIM S.p.A.

Luxembourg
Schroder Investment Management (Luxembourg) S.A.
Netherlands
Schroder Investment Management Benelux N.V.
Singapore
Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Ltd
Switzerland
Schroder & Co Bank AG
United States of America
Internet Finance Partners L.P – 68.3%
Schroder Investment Management North America Inc.
Schroder US Holdings Inc

A full list of subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates will be annexed to the next annual return of Schroders plc to be filed with
the Registrar of Companies.
*Held directly by the Company.
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Five year financial summary

Profit before tax
Tax
Profit after tax before minority interests
Minority interests
Profit for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share1
Diluted earnings per share1

Dividends:
Cost (£mn)
Pence per share2
Total equity (£mn)
Net assets per share (pence)3
Group employees at year end
31 December
Europe
Americas
Asia Pacific

2006
£mn
290.0
(68.1)
221.9
(0.6)
221.3

Prepared under IFRS
2005
£mn
250.7
(57.4)
193.3
(2.0)
191.3

2004
£mn
211.6
(40.3)
171.3
(15.6)
155.7

2004
£mn
191.0
(41.4)
149.6
(15.6)
134.0

Prepared under UK GAAP*
20035
£mn
65.0
(16.4)
48.6
–
48.6

2002
£mn
18.9
7.7
26.6
(0.5)
26.1

2006
Pence
76.9
75.7

Prepared under IFRS
2005
Pence
65.7
65.1

2004
Pence
53.5
53.1

2004
Pence
46.0
45.7

Prepared under UK GAAP*
20035
Pence
16.5
16.4

2002
Pence
8.8
8.8

2006
63.4
22.0

Prepared under IFRS
2005
59.5
20.5

2004
56.4
19.5

2004
57.8
20.0

Prepared under UK GAAP*
2003
53.7
18.5

2002
53.3
18.5

1,443.6

1,343.1

1,130.6

1,114.1

1,029.2

1,051.9

491

450

381

375

350

355

2003
Number
1,571
164
485
2,220

2002
Number
1,668
220
504
2,392

20064
Number
1,865
225
585
2,675

20054
Number
1,796
205
538
2,539

20044
Number
1,675
181
515
2,371

20044
Number
1,675
181
515
2,371

* The main adjustments necessary that would make this information comply with IFRS are those concerned with the measurement of share-based payments, dividends, leases, employee
benefits, intangible assets (including goodwill), revenue and non-current assets classified as being held for sale.
1

See note 8 for the basis of this calculation.
Dividends per share are those amounts approved by the shareholders to be paid within the year on a per share basis to the shareholders on the register at the specified dates.
3 Net assets per share are calculated by using the actual number of shares in issue at the balance sheet date (see note 29).
4 In contrast to prior years, headcount is stated including short term temporary staff and without netting off known future redundancies.
5 Restated post adoption of UITF Abstract 38 under UK GAAP.
2

Exchange rates
31 December
Sterling:
Euro
US dollar
Swiss franc
Australian dollar
Hong Kong dollar
Japanese yen
Singaporean dollar

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

1.48
1.96
2.39
2.48
15.22
233.20
3.00

1.45
1.72
2.26
2.35
13.36
202.39
2.86

1.42
1.93
2.19
2.48
15.01
197.87
3.15

1.42
1.79
2.21
2.38
13.86
190.86
3.03

1.54
1.61
2.23
2.85
12.57
191.28
2.80

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Important information
This notice of meeting contains important
information and requires your attention. If you
are in any doubt as to what action to take you
should consult with an appropriate adviser.
Notice is hereby given that the 2007 Annual
General Meeting of Schroders plc will be held
at 31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA
on Tuesday 24 April 2007 at 11.30 a.m. to
transact the following business:
Resolutions
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass
resolutions numbered 1 to 10 as Ordinary
Resolutions (requiring a majority of more than
50 per cent.) and resolutions 11 and 12 as
Special Resolutions (requiring a majority of not
less than 75 per cent.).
In the opinion of the Directors, all of the
resolutions proposed are in the best interests
of shareholders and consequently the
Directors recommend that shareholders
vote in favour of each resolution.
Report and Accounts
1. That the Directors’ report and the
Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2006 be received
and adopted.
For each financial year the Directors are
required to present the Directors’ report and
the Accounts of the Company for adoption
by shareholders. Accordingly, the Report and
Accounts for the year ended 31 December
2006 are now presented and proposed
for adoption.
Final dividend
2. That a final dividend of 17.5 pence
per share on the ordinary shares and
on the non-voting ordinary shares as
recommended by the Directors be
declared payable on 27 April 2007
to shareholders on the register on
16 March 2007.
The payment of the final dividend of
17.5 pence per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2006, which is
recommended by the Board, requires the
approval of shareholders in general meeting.
Remuneration report
3. That the remuneration report for the year
ended 31 December 2006 be approved.
Under section 234B of the Companies Act
1985 (as amended), the Directors must
prepare an annual report detailing the
remuneration of the Directors and the
Company’s remuneration policy for Directors.
Section 241A requires that a resolution be put
to shareholders each year for their approval of
that report. The remuneration report can be
found on pages 26 to 33. This notice
therefore contains a resolution to approve the
remuneration report for the year ended
31 December 2006. The result of this
resolution is advisory only.

Re-election of Directors no later than the
third Annual General Meeting following
last election or re-election
4. That Merlyn Lowther, who retires in
accordance with Article 88, be re-elected
as a Director of the Company.
Under Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of
Association Directors must retire and may
offer themselves for re-election not later than
the third Annual General Meeting following his
or her election or last re-election to the Board.
Merlyn Lowther is retiring from office under
this Article and offers herself for re-election.
Merlyn Lowther’s profile is contained on
page 19.
The Board supports the re-election of
Merlyn Lowther who also sits on the
Audit Committee.
Re-election of Directors having attained
the age of 70 (resolutions 5 to 7)
5. That George Mallinckrodt, who retires in
accordance with Article 89, be re-elected
as a Director of the Company.
6. That Michael Miles, who retires in
accordance with Article 89, be re-elected
as a Director of the Company.
7. That Bruno Schroder, who retires in
accordance with Article 89, be re-elected
as a Director of the Company.
Under Article 89 of the Company’s Articles
of Association Directors must retire and may
offer themselves for re-election annually once
they have attained the age of 70. This applies
to George Mallinckrodt, Michael Miles and
Bruno Schroder and they each offer
themselves for re-election. A profile of each of
these Directors is contained on page 19.
The Board supports the re-election of George
Mallinckrodt in view of his many years’
international business experience. The Board
believes that Michael Miles has continued to
lead the Board ably over the past year and
remains the most appropriate person to
continue to lead the Board and therefore the
Board supports his re-election. The Board
further believes that it is appropriate for
Bruno Schroder, as the representative of our
principal shareholder group, to be re-elected.
The Chairman, and the senior independent
Director, Sir Peter Job, in respect of the
Chairman, confirm that, following the
completion of the Board performance
evaluation process for 2006, the performance
of each of the Directors named in resolutions
4 to 7 continues to be effective and
demonstrates commitment to his or her
respective role. Accordingly, the re-election
of each of these Directors is recommended.
Auditors (Resolutions 8 and 9)
8. That PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be
and are hereby reappointed as auditors
of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of this meeting until the
conclusion of the next general meeting
at which accounts are laid before the
Company in accordance with section 241
of the Companies Act 1985 (as
amended).
9. That the Directors be authorised to fix the
remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as auditors of the Company.

The Company’s auditors must offer
themselves for reappointment at each Annual
General Meeting at which accounts are
presented. Accordingly, the Board, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee,
proposes the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company’s auditors. Resolution 9 authorises
the Directors to agree the remuneration of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for their
services as auditors.
Authority to allot shares
10. That the Directors be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally authorised
to exercise all powers of the Company to
allot relevant securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £5,000,000, which
authority shall expire on 1 May 2008 or at
the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company after the passing
of this resolution (whichever is earlier)
(unless previously revoked or varied by the
Company in general meeting), save that
the Company may before such expiry
make an offer or agreement which would
or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the Directors
may allot relevant securities in pursuance
of such an offer or agreement as if the
authority conferred hereby had not
expired. For the purposes of this authority,
the expression ‘relevant securities’ shall
mean relevant securities as defined in
section 80 of the Companies Act 1985
(as amended), but shall not in any
circumstances include ordinary shares
(as defined in the Company’s Articles of
Association) or any right to subscribe
for, or to convert any security into,
ordinary shares.
Under the Companies Act 1985, the Directors
may not allot unissued shares in the Company
without the authority of shareholders in
general meeting, except for the issue of
shares under the Company’s share or share
option plans. If approved by shareholders,
this resolution would permit the Directors to
issue non-voting ordinary shares or rights to
subscribe for, or convert securities into, nonvoting ordinary shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £5,000,000. The authority
would not permit the Directors to issue
ordinary shares or to grant rights to subscribe
for, or convert securities into, ordinary shares.
The maximum amount of the authority is
equal to approximately 1.7 per cent. of the
Company’s total issued share capital and
approximately 7.4 per cent. of its issued nonvoting ordinary share capital, in each case as
at 8 March 2007, being the latest practicable
date prior to the publication of this document.
The Company does not currently hold any
shares in treasury.
The authority given in this resolution would
expire on the earlier of 1 May 2008 and the
conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.
Except for the issue of non-voting ordinary
shares under the Company’s share or share
option plans, the Directors do not presently
intend to allot any unissued shares. Although
they have not sought general shareholder
authority to issue non-voting ordinary shares
in the past, the Directors now consider that it
would be appropriate to have the flexibility to

make limited issues of non-voting ordinary
shares or to grant rights to subscribe for, or
convert securities into, non-voting ordinary
shares. This flexibility could be required
should the Company wish to use non-voting
ordinary shares as part of the consideration
for possible acquisitions.
Authority to purchase own shares
11. That the Company be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally authorised
to make market purchases within the
meaning of section 163(3) of the
Companies Act 1985 (as amended) of
non-voting ordinary shares of £1 each
(‘Shares’), subject to the following
conditions:
(a) such authority be limited to a maximum
number of 14,700,000 Shares;
(b) in the case of purchases made
otherwise than by tender offer, the
maximum price, exclusive of expenses,
at which Shares may be purchased is
the higher of:
(i) 5 per cent. above the average of the
middle market quotations for the
Shares as derived from the London
Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days preceding the
date of purchase; and
(ii) the higher of the price of the last
independent trade and the highest
current independent bid on the
London Stock Exchange at the time
the purchase is carried out;
(c) in the case of a tender offer, the
maximum price, exclusive of expenses,
at which Shares may be purchased
is 5 per cent. above the average of
the middle market quotations for the
Shares as derived from the London
Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days preceding the
date on which the tender offer is
announced;
(d) the minimum price at which Shares
may be purchased is £1 per share,
exclusive of expenses; and
(e) such authority shall, unless renewed
prior to such time, expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company save that the
Company may before such expiry
enter into a contract to purchase
Shares which would or might be
completed or executed wholly or partly
after its expiry and may make a
purchase of Shares in pursuance of
any such contract.
If passed, this resolution would renew the
Company’s general authority to make
purchases of its non-voting ordinary shares.
This authority relates to 14,700,000 shares,
representing approximately 5 per cent. of the
Company’s total issued share capital and
21.8 per cent. of its issued non-voting
ordinary share capital. The authority sets limits
on the price which may be paid for any shares
and is limited to market purchases on the
London Stock Exchange or (so far as required
under the Listing Rules) market purchases by
tender offer to all shareholders.

Since the previous authority was renewed at
the last Annual General Meeting on 26 April
2006, 6,445,073 non-voting ordinary shares
have been purchased and cancelled at a
total cost of £57,792,040. As at the date of
this notice of meeting there were 11,106,854
options outstanding over non-voting ordinary
shares. This represented 3.8 per cent. of the
total issued share capital and 16.5 per cent. of
the issued non-voting ordinary share capital at
that date and would represent 4.0 per cent. of
the total issued share capital and 21.1 per
cent. of the issued non-voting ordinary share
capital if the Company were to purchase the
maximum number of shares allowed under
this general authority.
In recent years, this authority has been used
solely with a view to maintaining the ratio of
ordinary shares to non-voting ordinary shares
over the medium term, taking into account the
issue of non-voting ordinary shares under the
Company’s share or share option plans. If the
authority is renewed this year, the Board
intends that the previous policy would be
extended so as to take into account the issue
of any non-voting ordinary shares pursuant to
the authority contained in resolution 10 as well
as under the Company’s share or share
option plans. In addition, purchases may also
be undertaken at the Directors’ discretion,
where they consider them to be otherwise
appropriate. Purchases under this authority
would only be made where the Directors
believed that they were in the best interests
of the Company, taking into account other
available investment opportunities and the
overall financial position of the Group.
Purchases would only be made where
earnings per share would be increased
(except possibly in respect of purchases
made in relation to the issue of non-voting
ordinary shares under the Company’s share
or share option plans).
If the Company were to purchase any nonvoting ordinary shares pursuant to this
authority, the Directors would consider
whether to cancel those shares or (subject to
the limits allowed by company law) hold them
as treasury shares.
Amendments to Articles of Association
12. That the Articles of Association of the
Company be amended by the adoption of
the amendments to Articles 13, 54, 84,
89, 99, 103, 104 and 146, together with
consequential re-numbering and crossreferencing amendments, highlighted in
the revised print of the Articles of
Association initialled by the Chairman for
the purposes of identification only.
The Company’s Articles of Association were
adopted in 2000 and last amended in April
2004. Since then the coming into force of
the Companies (Audit, Investigations and
Enterprise) Act 2004 has made certain
amendments to the Companies Act 1985 to
clarify the circumstances in which a company
may indemnify its directors against liabilities
incurred by them and to permit a company to
fund a director’s expenditure on the defence
of legal proceedings in certain circumstances.
Amendments to Articles 99 and 146 of the
Company’s Articles of Association are being
proposed so as expressly to provide,
respectively, for the funding by the Company
of a Director’s defence proceedings and for
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the indemnification by the Company of any
Director or any director of any company
associated with the Company (being, in
practice, any UK subsidiary of the Company),
in each case to the extent permitted by
company law.
If approved by shareholders, the amendment
to Article 99 will give the Company express
permission to fund a Director’s expenditure in
defending any criminal or civil proceedings
and to do anything to enable a Director to
avoid incurring such expenditure, as provided
by company law. It will also give the Company
specific permission to fund a Director’s
expenditure in defending himself in regulatory
investigations or actions, as provided by
company law. The Companies Act 2006
makes specific provision for the funding of
directors’ expenditure on the defence of
regulatory investigations and actions,
although the relevant section of that Act
has not yet been brought into force.
The proposed amendment to Article 146 will
have the effect of simplifying the provision in
the Company’s Articles of Association for the
indemnification of Directors. The existing
Article 146 (Indemnity of Officers) provides for
automatic indemnification by the Company of
its Directors and other officers (other than its
auditors) in certain limited circumstances, as
well as permitting the Company to indemnify
such officeholders more broadly to the extent
permitted by company law. The automatic
indemnification provision will be removed if
the proposed amendment to that Article takes
effect. The proposed amendment to Article
146 will also remove the existing provision in
the Company’s Articles of Association for the
indemnification of officers other than directors
and auditors, on the basis that, following the
coming into force of the Companies (Audit,
Investigations and Enterprise) Act 2004, there
are now no specific company law restrictions
on the indemnification of such officers. If the
amendment to Article 146 is approved
by shareholders, it is proposed that the
Company grants specific deeds of indemnity
to each of its Directors and its Company
Secretary in place of the automatic indemnity,
as more particularly described in the
Directors’ report on page 22.
In addition, it is proposed to delete Articles 84
and 89 in their entirety. Section 293 of the
Companies Act 1985 (as amended), which
provides for an age limit of 70 for directors, is
to be repealed as from 6 April 2007. Article 84
excludes the operation of that section and,
to the extent it does, is therefore superfluous.
Article 84 also provides for the Board, when
convening a general meeting at which a
director will be proposed for appointment or
reappointment who at the date for which the
meeting is convened will be 70 or over, to give
notice of the Director’s age in the notice
convening the meeting or in any document
accompanying the notice. In light of the
forthcoming repeal of section 293, the
Directors consider this provision to be
unnecessary. Article 89 provides for a director
to retire if he or she has reached the age of
70 or over at the date of an annual general
meeting. In light of the Employment Equality
(Age) Regulations 2006, the Board considers
it inappropriate to retain this provision.

It should be noted that, in accordance with
the provisions of the Combined Code, nonexecutive Directors who have served at least
nine years on the Board, are subject to annual
re-election.
Minor amendments are also proposed to
Articles 13, 54, 103 and 104 to take account
of developments in market practice or which
are of a technical or drafting nature. Certain
consequential re-numbering and crossreferencing amendments are also proposed.
The number of amendments is such that they
have not been described separately in this
resolution but have been highlighted in the
revised print of the Articles of Association
which is available for inspection as detailed
below.
Proxy forms
A proxy form is enclosed to enable
shareholders unable to attend the meeting
to cast their votes at the Annual General
Meeting by post or online.
By Order of the Board
Graham Staples
Company Secretary
Registered office:
31 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QA
8 March 2007

Notes
Only ordinary shareholders entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and (insofar as permitted by the Company’s Articles
of Association) to vote instead of him or her. The Company
currently has 226,022,400 ordinary shares in issue with
voting rights attached and 67,369,380 non-voting ordinary
shares in issue. No shares are held in treasury. Non-voting
ordinary shareholders have no right to attend or vote
at the Annual General Meeting.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of
proxy is enclosed for ordinary shareholders which should
be completed and returned to the Company’s registrar,
Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West
Sussex, BN99 6AB not later than 48 hours before the time
fixed for the meeting. Completion of the proxy will not
preclude an ordinary shareholder from attending and voting
in person.
Shareholders who prefer to register the appointment of
their proxy electronically via the internet can do so at
www.sharevote.co.uk where full instructions are given. The
personal reference number, card ID and account number
printed on the proxy form will be required. Alternatively
shareholders who have already registered with Lloyds TSB
Registrars’ Shareview service can appoint their proxy by
logging on to their portfolio at www.shareview.co.uk and
clicking on ‘Company Meetings’. A proxy appointment
made electronically will not be valid if sent to any address
other than those provided or if received after 11.30 a.m.
on 22 April 2007. Any communication found to contain a
computer virus will not be accepted.
Only those ordinary shareholders on the register of
members as at 6.00 p.m. on 22 April 2007 will be entitled
to attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number
of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes
to entries on the register of members after 6.00 p.m. on
22 April 2007 will be disregarded in determining the rights
of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service
may do so for the Annual General Meeting to be held on
24 April 2007 and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST
Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members,
and those CREST members who have appointed a voting
service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor
or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behalf.
In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using
the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST
message (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly
authenticated in accordance with CRESTCo’s
specifications and must contain the information required
for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual.
The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the
appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction
given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be
valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s
agent (ID 7RA01) by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxy
appointments specified in the notice of meeting. For this
purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time
(as determined by the timestamp applied to the message
by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s
agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST
in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any
change of instructions to proxies appointed through
CREST should be communicated to the appointee through
other means.
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting service providers should note that
CRESTCo does not make available special procedures
in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system
timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the
input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of
the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST
member is a CREST personal member or sponsored
member or has appointed a voting service provider(s),
to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to
ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the
CREST system by any particular time. In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in
particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical limitations of the CREST system
and timings.
The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.
Profiles of each of the Directors offering themselves for
election or re-election are on pages 18 and 19 of this
report. The profiles include, where appropriate,
membership of Board Committees.
The following documents are available for inspection at the
Company’s registered office during normal business hours
on weekdays and will be available for inspection at least
15 minutes prior to and during the meeting:
• Register of Directors’ interests kept in accordance with
section 325 of the Companies Act 1985;
• Articles of Association;
• Directors’ service contracts or letters of appointment;
and
• Proposed amendments to the Articles of Association
(see resolution 12).
In the event that you have sold or transferred your shares in
the Company, you should pass this Annual Report and
Accounts to the person through whom the sale or transfer
was made for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Shareholder information
Schroders plc
Company No. 3909886
Registered office
Schroders plc
31 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QA
Tel: +44 (0)20 7658 6000
Fax: +44 (0)20 7658 6965
www.schroders.com
Company Secretary
Graham Staples
Schroders plc
31 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QA
Tel: +44 (0)20 7658 6000
Fax: +44 (0)20 7658 6965
Email: company.secretary@schroders.com
Financial calendar
Ex-dividend date
14 March 2007
Record date
16 March 2007
Annual General Meeting
24 April 2007
Final dividend payment date 27 April 2007
First quarter trading update May 2007*
Interim results announcement August 2007*
Interim dividend paid
Sept 2007*
Third quarter trading update Oct/Nov 2007*
* Dates to be confirmed

Investor information
Enquiries and notifications concerning
dividends, share certificates or transfers and
address changes should be sent to the
Registrar; other shareholder enquiries should
be addressed to the Company Secretary at
the registered office.
The Company’s governance reports,
corporate governance guidelines, the terms
of reference of the Board Committees and
our results’ presentations can be found at
www.schroders.com
Registrar
Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing
West Sussex BN99 6DA
UK shareholder helpline:
Freephone 0800 169 1199
International shareholder helpline:
+44 121 415 7192
Fax: +44 (0)870 600 3980

Shareholder services and electronic
communication
Lloyds TSB Registrars provides a range of
shareholder information online. Shareholders
can access their shareholdings, including
balance movements, indicative share prices,
information on recent dividends, portfolio
valuation and update their details at
www.shareview.co.uk.
Following a change in the law, shareholder
documents such as the annual report will now
be available electronically on the Company’s
website or by email. This has the advantage
of reducing the cost to the environment of
printing and enables shareholders to access
such documents more quickly. If you would
like to receive a notification by email that such
documents are available on the website, you
should register your email address at
www.shareview.co.uk. If you wish to receive
hard copies of shareholder documents,
please write to the Registrar.
In addition, shareholders can register the
appointment of their proxy electronically via
the internet at www.sharevote.co.uk where
full instructions are given. The personal
reference number, card ID and account
number printed on the proxy form will be
required when registering online.
Dealing services
Shareview Dealing is a shareholder service
offered by the Registrar. It is a simple way to
buy or sell shares via the internet or telephone
with quick settlement. For further information
visit www.shareview.co.uk/dealing or call
0870 850 0852.
JPMorgan Cazenove Ltd also operates a
postal dealing service in the Company’s
shares. Further information is available from:
JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate
London EC2R 6DA
Tel: +44 (0)20 7588 2828
Fax: +44 (0)20 7155 9000
Sharegift
If you only have a small number of shares
whose value makes them uneconomic to sell,
you may wish to consider donating to charity
through Sharegift, an independent charity
share donation scheme. For further
information, please contact either
the Registrars or Sharegift on
+44 (0)20 7337 0501, or see the website
at www.sharegift.org.
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Share information
Both the ordinary shares and the non-voting ordinary shares are listed on the London
Stock Exchange.
Ordinary shares
Non-voting ordinary shares

ISIN Number

SEDOL Number

EPIC Code

GB0002405495
GB0002395811

0240549
0239581

SDR
SDRC

Share price information
Share price information can be found on
the website at www.schroders.com, in
newspapers such as The Financial Times
and The Times or through your broker.
The Financial Times Cityline service
(telephone 0906 003 000) also provides FTSE
updates and share price information with calls
charged at 60p per minute. When you dial this
number you will be asked to input a four-digit
code for the relevant share class:
Ordinary shares
3939
Non-voting ordinary shares
3941
Dividend mandates
We recommend that all dividend payments
are made directly into a bank or building
society account. This provides tighter security
and access to funds more quickly. To apply for
a dividend mandate contact the Registrars
or call the shareholder helpline on
0800 169 1199.
Dividend reinvestment plan
The Company operates a Dividend
ReInvestment Plan (‘DRIP’) which provides
shareholders with a cost efficient way of
increasing their shareholding in the Company
by reinvesting their dividends. If you have not
already signed up for this service and wish to
do so in respect of the April 2007 dividend,
you should send your DRIP application to the
Registrars, to be received by 4 April 2007.
For a copy of the DRIP information pack and
application form please contact the Registrars
on the shareholder helpline number.
Overseas branch register
An overseas branch register is operated in
Bermuda for the benefit of shareholders with
registered addresses in Bermuda. Enquiries
should be directed to Lloyds TSB Registrars.
Overseas dividend mandates
Schroders offers a service to our overseas
shareholders in participating countries which
enables shareholders to receive their
dividends in local currencies. If you are
eligible, and have not yet taken advantage of
this mandating process, you should already
have received a letter informing you of this and
a mandate form. You can check your eligibility
and/or request a mandate form if applicable
via the shareholder helpline.

Identity theft – protecting your
investments
There is a growing trend for criminals to target
personal information which may put your
shareholding at risk. In order to protect
yourself, you should consider the following
precautions:
• Ensure all your certificates are kept in
a safe place or hold your shares
electronically in CREST via a nominee
company;
• Keep any correspondence from the
Registrar containing your shareholder
reference number in a safe place, or
destroy this information by shredding it.
Shareholders who have their dividends
mandated to their bank accounts should
take particular care with the tax vouchers
as these contain details of their bank
account number and sort code;
• If you move house, please inform the
Registrar. If you receive a letter from the
Registrar regarding a change of address
and you have not moved house, please
contact the Registrar immediately. You
may be a victim of identity theft; and
• Ensure that you know when your
dividends are being paid. You should
consider having your dividends paid
directly into your bank account to reduce
the risk of your dividend cheque being
intercepted or lost in the post.
Capital Gains Tax
Capital gains tax values at 31 March 1982
and values relating to the disposal of the
investment banking business in 2000 can be
found at www.schroders.com or can be
obtained from the Company Secretary at the
registered office.

Term
Above benchmark

Definition
In respect of retail funds, defined as being in
the 1st or 2nd quartile versus our peer group.
In respect of institutional funds the comparator
is defined as the relevant market index.

Active asset management

The management of assets with the objective
of achieving returns over and above those
normally associated with a given level of risk

Asset Management cost:gross profit

Total Asset Management costs divided by
Asset Management gross profit

Asset Management costs on average funds
under management

Asset Management costs divided by
Asset Management average funds under
management

Asset Management gross profit margins

Asset Management gross profit divided by
Asset Management average funds under
management

Assets under management

The total value of financial assets under the
management of the Group

BRIC

The BRIC economies – Brazil, Russia, India
and China

Compensation costs

Total employee benefits expense – see page 10

ECP

Equity Compensation Plan – see page 27

Funds under management (‘FUM’)

The aggregate value of funds managed
on behalf of clients. In Private Banking this
also includes assets held in custody where
execution-only services are provided

Gross profit

Defined under IFRS as external revenues
less cost of sales

High-yield instruments

Instruments such as stocks or bonds that
pay a high rate of income, including dividends
or coupons, in comparison to their price

IAS

International Accounting Standard(s)

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standard(s)

Operating revenues

Gross profit for the Asset Management
and Private Banking business segments

Rights to shares

The entitlements of employees, including
executive Directors, to Company shares
until vesting conditions have been satisfied
and the awards exercised

Total costs: operating revenues ratio

Total Group costs divided by operating
revenues

Total Group income

The sum of:
• gross profit;
• interest receivable and similar income;
• interest payable and similar charges;
• share of profit of associates and joint
ventures; and
• gain on discontinuing outsourcing contract.

Total compensation cost to operating
revenues ratio

Compensation cost divided
by operating revenues
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